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CORPORATE INFORMATION
EXEHR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
TEER &)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #R & ¥4&
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For the year ended
31 December

BE12A31ALZFE = L

2020 Change SeE

RMB’000 -7 cZx

ARBTTT N

Revenue KA 1,376,524 1,281,903 +74% S0

Profit for the year attributable to KRNBHEE ANEL 138,184 145,665 -5.1%

owners of the Company [ ) 0

gem

S @ pe

Gross profit margin ESpE 29.4% 29.9% -0.5PPS Z2H

B

Net profit margin R 10.0% 11.3% ~1.3PPS
ER S
REVENUE ANALYSIS W A 2 47
=
For the year ended -

31 December I

HZ12A31ALZEE 3 2

2020 Change o B

RMB’000 1 ggg

AR T T s

4

Embedded software and secure BRAREGMET 2 752,828 747,781 +0.7% - é‘%

payment products XA E G £eda

Platform and service & kR 623,696 534,122 +16.8% s 2

Total A5 1,376,524 1,281,903 +7.4%

==

FINANCIAL POSITIONS Ef # Ak

Report of
Directors
2

At 31 December fﬁ{
MW12831H
2020 Change
RMB’000 gk
ARBT T sgs
5T
Total assets waE 2,609,965 2,577,263 +1.3% g
Total liabilities wEE (601,360) (579,727) +3.7% -
T o4
Net assets FEE 2,008,605 1,997,536 +0.6% § %fz
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2021 MAJOR EVENTS
20215F KERE

INNOVATION DRIVEN BY TECHNOLOGY
R 5% 58 B B F %R

o 4R 1 AR S B 7
R ABEBAD B RA TR

gt Bl o =

éﬂ;ié%%ﬁ SRR GBA (Greater Bay Area) Youth Card for
5% ¥ ] i . Bank of China

Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award Boost Cross-Field & Cross-Regional

Daily Mirror Collaboration within GBA

2021

(0 (. )s— ) —— ) ) —

HEBUE i B e
WHBFEEREXN
Fingerprint Biometric DECP Card

/R A S . Safeguard the Payment
RERRAE (G) RHI4E Security of Digital Currency

2021 F E B (b HEESGHEE ¢
Best Corporate Governance (G) Case
4 2021 China ESG Award

REEMBRREHF(CER BRI

02V FEHEBERBRFRERELZE

Outstanding Contribution Award

& Best Digital Transformation Practice Award

China International Digital and Software Service Fair 2021
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2021 MAJOR EVENTS (CONTINUED)
2021 KR=ER (&)

i BGSMA SAS-UPRE
BIFISGRZERABERFE
GSMA SAS-UP

Innovate Cross-Disciplinary
Application of 5G USIM

FEBCMMI V2.0 L5RE
EHERGERENIRKAEN&ESIRE

CMMI V2.0 L5

Global Highest Level of Software Development Maturity

TERAREZRLGEEBBTRRERITREPL LR
RAIKMBY HIRITEREZ 2

GoldAudit Content Audit System by Goldpac

Deployed in More than 10 Banks Leverage Al Technology to

Improve Compliance and Security of Banking Industry

B B 9B R 4% ok 5]
BASGEREIRERSRE
IREEERMERBIFTEXNRS BER
Self-service Card Issuance Kiosks
Compatibility Test with the UnionTech OS
(Operation System) Completed

Accelerate Harmonization with Information
Technology Application Innovation Industry

HEEH—RBEZAZESRICK
EREXRBENEEE T A2

Roll-out of Goldpac New-Generation Independent
and Controllable Financial IC Card

Full Industry Chain Independence of Financial IC Card
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Dear Shareholders, BN ENVRE :

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the RNATMAREEEZ== (LT
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of D RIS B[EE | N [EE
Goldpac Group Limited (the “"Company”), & |) @ E TRES HEE
| am delighted to present the Annual =#ERKRAR AT (A TEE
Report of the Company and its subsidiaries [ZHRKAT |) REKFE AT (LA
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 TAE&E[AXEBR]) HZE2021
December 2021. FI2A31MBIEZ2FEWSE o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

2021 saw the global economic situation still facing changes and
challenges. The global epidemic has not been effectively controlled
while the global supply chain system has been severely and
continuously impacted, resulting in an increasingly serious global
chip shortage.

However, the Group’s overall performance remained steady and
achieved an increase in revenue. Of course, this is due in part to
the recovery of China’s high-quality economic development. But
more importantly, the financial rectification measures taken by the
Chinese government have become more and more effective. P2P
platform business has been completely shut down and the rising
trend of systematic financial risks have been curbed. The dominant
position of banks in the national economy has been increasingly
fortified. The Group welcomes this healthy and positive external
development environment.

The rapidly changing world has also demonstrated the importance
of strengthening the proprietary and controllable nature of fintech
and accelerating the digital transformation of the industry.

The Group has taken full advantage of a leading fintech enterprise
by tapping into technology accumulated over the past three
decades, increased investment in R&D for forward-looking
technologies, and accelerated the all-round application of
proprietary and controllable fintech in the fields of secure
payment products, digital equipment and digital currency. The
Group expects that the application of proprietary and controllable
technologies in secure payment products will be further expanded
in the future, and the revenue for digital equipment will continue
to increase on the basis of the rapid growth seen in 2021.

EFEH®RE &)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHRE (&)

As a legal currency issued by People’s Bank of China at its testing
stage, the digital currency needs the support of secure and
convenient payment products to explore innovative scenarios and
promote a wider range of applications. As a fintech company
that has been focusing on secure payment products for the past
30 years, the Group has inherent advantages in providing secure
and convenient digital currency payment products. In line with
its original goal of providing secure and reliable support for the
national economic system, the Group has preemptively deployed
its R&D towards work on digital currency payment products and
already has mature products and supporting service capabilities in
place. The Group will continue to maintain close interaction with
digital currency issuers, actively participate in relevant research
and development and application pilots projects, and will promote
the implementation of more extensive digital currency application
scenarios.

Digital transformation is a global opportunity and the orientation
for fintech products and services. Digital platforms represent the
future model of the smart and secure payment industry. The Group
has been committed to promoting and building the UMV platform.
Through the integration and application of new-generation
information technologies such as artificial intelligence, big data,
and image processing, it has created a digital business ecosystem
with diverse participation, aiming to completely change the
traditional marketing model and innovate inherent services. The
model enables financial institutions, bank card organizations,
consumers and other participants to integrate and interact on the
same platform to promote the evolvement of the industry.

In order to implement the green development concept and respond
to the goals of “Emission Peaks” and “Carbon Neutrality”, the
Group has launched a variety of environmentally friendly products.
It has also actively promoted the implementation of photovoltaic
power generation projects, and identifies green and low-carbon
development as an important pillar of support for enterprise
growth.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERS (&)

In the future, the Group will continue to advance the RHK AEEKEEHTISEFE( Falk
“digitalization and platform-based innovation expansion” strategy, EIFZEREEKE] > ke T aJEL B
to meet the digital transformation needs of core customers. The HEMR @ #HEHS T ER » E v EESZD
Group will promote the in-depth innovation of fintech services, BFHMEF(LEKTE  BEAIFITED
assisting in the digital transformation process of core customers, ZiEREEN  AEFAEFAEBE B
and will fulfill its mission as a “trustworthy fintech products and  #7[{BEEZEMHNE REHE R MRS MHA]
services provider” ! BB R A |
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Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend H#% BN RHH AL ERE TEE
my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the KB EEEEK - 288 T
Board, management teams, staff and business partners of the Hyx3F |
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In 2021, the overall socio-economic and industry environment
presented opportunities and challenges. The Group actively
responded to complex industrial challenges including a global chip
supply shortage, implemented science-based COVID-19 pandemic
prevention and control measures, and seized new opportunities
arising from the strong rebound of China’s macro economy
by investing more resources in innovative areas such as digital
equipment. These have enabled the Group’s innovative business to
grow rapidly and allowed recovery of the Group’s growth trend in
overseas markets, therefore maintained a steady development of
the Group.

Facing complicated market dynamics, the management team of
the Group responded accordingly and achieved remarkable results.
Firstly, the Group promoted the growth of its innovative business
by diligently developing the digital equipment markets. Secondly,
the Group seized opportunities in the digital transformation of its
core customers, promoted digital fintech products and services,
and planned for future growth opportunities. Lastly, the Group
has implemented effective cost control measures and enhanced
the added value of its products to reinforce the development of its
core business and cash flow.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS — SUSTAINED
DEVELOPMENT AND HEALTHY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB1.377 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 7.4% and strong revenue
resilience. The increase in revenue was primarily due to the Group's
commitment to implement digitalization and platform-based
strategy, resulted in an increase in revenue of the platform and
service segment. Meanwhile, the Group also maintained the
business scale of its core business — embedded software and
secure payment products, thus the Group gained further growth
momentum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR DN @

During the year, the Group recorded gross profit of approximately
RMB404.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 5.3%. Despite the spread of the pandemic leading
to rising prices for major raw materials around the world, resulting
in cost pressures, the execution of the digital transformation
strategy has improved the refined management and operation
capability of the Group. A sound supply chain management
strategy also effectively contributed to cost pressures alleviating.
As a result, a healthy gross margin of 29.4% was maintained,
consolidating the Group’s industry-leading profitability ability.

During the year, the Group recorded net profit of approximately
RMB138.0 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 5.0%. The Group, while focusing on the innovation
and development of its secure transaction technologies and
digitization solutions, continued to maintain a relatively high level
of research and development (“R&D") investment, resulting in
an increase in R&D costs by 9.7% approximately compared to
that of the previous year. During the year, 38 new patents and
software copyrights related to the platform and service segment
were registered in total. Meanwhile, in order to develop innovative
business markets, the Group strengthened cooperation with its
partners, resulting in a year-on-year increase of approximately
37.6% in selling and distribution expenses compared to that of
the previous year. However, in view of the middle to long-term
strategic progression of the Group, this sets a sound platform for
development.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1.79 billion, representing a
year-on-year decrease of about 11.7%. The Group still has
abundant cash flow and maintains a high current ratio of
approximately 3.2 and a comparatively low gearing ratio of
approximately 23.0%, whilst most key financial indicators remain
stable.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB8.1 cents) per ordinary share
(HK10.0 cents in 2020) and a special dividend of HK4.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.3 cents) per ordinary share
(HK4.0 cents in 2020) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW — STEADY CORE
BUSINESS, RAPID GROWTH OF NEW
BUSINESS

The pandemic has accelerated the global trend for development
in intelligent and digital technologies, and an increasing number
of financial and governmental services are being delivered
through “non-contact” and digital means. The Group has closely
monitored the development opportunities of digital transformation
in the industry. In this regard, the Group has reinforced fintech
innovation and its application, accelerated digital transformation
and has built a customer-oriented digital marketing and service
platform, and promoted the continuous growth of revenue from
the platform and service segment.

Facing the transition from the scale-oriented to quality-oriented
development of banking customers, the Group capitalized the
opportunity to leverage its core advantages to maintain stable
revenue and profitability through high-quality, high-value-added
products. During the year, the embedded software and secure
payment products segment recorded revenue of approximately
RMB753.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 0.7%.

The Group followed China’s development strategy and has
continuously diversified its products. In 2021, the Group launched
proprietary and controllable embedded software and secure
payment products to the global market. At the same time, in
order to comply with the development trend of green finance and
in response to the international community’s emission reduction
targets for “Emission Peaks” and “Carbon Neutrality”, the
Group took the lead in implementing the practice of green and
low-carbon footprint development, and launched eco-friendly
products. To grasp the quality-oriented development needs of the
Chinese market, the Group not only promoted high value-added
products through individualized and customized design, and special
techniques, but also provided supporting cultural and creative
adjacent products, privacy protection and other value-added
services to ensure the overall value of embedded software and
secure payment products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR DN @

The platform and service segment of the Group continued to
maintain rapid growth in 2021, recording revenue of approximately
RMB624.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 16.8%, accounting for 45.3% of the Group’s
revenue,constituting a year-on-year increase of 3.6 percentage
points. Of which the digital equipment business showed a
rapid growth trend, the revenue of this business increased by
approximately 24.4% year-on-year, and its proportion of the
Group’s revenue rose to approximately 27.9%, becoming an
important new business growth point for the Group.

In 2021 despite the challenges caused by the continuous spread
of the global pandemic, the Group actively responded by
implementing science-lead prevention and control measures. The
Group’s overseas business recovered from the adverse impact
caused by the pandemic. During the year, the overseas business
recorded revenue of approximately RMB121.0 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 33.8%. At the same time,
the Group also launched the promotion of innovative products
such as the telecom Subscriber Identity Modules (SIM) and digital
equipment in overseas markets to expand its customer base
through the “non-contact” digital marketing model.

OUTLOOK — DEEPENING PARTNERSHIP
WITH CUSTOMERS, ACCELERATING
INNOVATION OF FINTECH SERVICE

The global banking industry will continue to see accelerating digital
transformation, and at the same time, digital tools for secure
payments will become more popular. This is expected to enable the
Group to access huge market opportunities in the field of digital
fintech (“financial technology”) services.

The Group will actively implement its “Digitization and Platform
Innovation Strategy” to transform the traditional marketing service
model with digital technologies, establish a business platform for
the digital transformation of core customers, and accelerate the
innovation of fintech services. The Group will focus on the five key
business strategies of “maintaining and enhancing core business
value; expanding the application of secure transaction technologies
into new areas such as digital currencies; accelerating the
expansion of the business scale for digital equipment; establishing
a digital business platform to form a fintech business ecosystem,
and boosting overseas markets expansion”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Firstly, Maintaining and Enhancing Core
Business Value

Firstly, the Group will accelerate R&D of embedded software and
secure payment products, adapting to the development trends
of proprietary and controllable secure products and Information
Technology & Innovation Industry Application (the “ITIIA")'s
products. The Group will bring together security chip vendors,
application developers and universities, etc. to draft a development
route within the industry. The Group will also create a secure
operating system ecosystem by adhering to the design paradigm
for open, secure, proprietary and controllable. This will expand
the Group’s market share for proprietary and controllable secure
products, providing more possibilities for its future business
development.

Secondly, the Group will accelerate the development of embedded
software and secure payment products by individualized and
customized design, special techniques and eco-friendly materials
to enhance the value of its core business through a competitive
strategy utilizing differentiated products. The Group closely focuses
on the needs of its customers, targeting the promotion of high
value-added adjacent products and services such as cultural and
creative product, value-added service and logistics support-related
services etc.

Thirdly, the Chinese government has accelerated the roll-out of
“one card solution” to improve the citizen service. The Chinese
government has launched the issuance of the third-generation
of social security cards and electronic cards to enhance the
capability and quality of citizen services. Since 2000, the Group
has been involved in issuance of the first and second-generation
social security cards. From 2021, the Group has invested quality
resources to actively expand the third-generation social security
card business. Capitalizing decades of experience and leading
technologies in National Cryptographic Algorithm products and
cross-industry applications of smart cards, the Group has taken the
lead in third-generation social security card issuance. The growth
momentum is expected to be maintained during 2022 and the
Group will actively tap the market potential to further solidify its
core business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR DN @

Finally, the Group will accelerate the pace of digital transformation
to integrate its overall strengths in smart card issuance, digital
equipment and systems. It will integrate the potential expansion of
digital currencies to create a total digital solution service platform
to enhance the efficiency and experience of transactions and
expand customer coverage. These efforts will help in increasing the
scale of the Group’s market share and core business by leveraging
the enhanced capability of digital marketing services.

Secondly, Expanding the Application of Secure
Transaction Technologies into New Areas Such
as Digital Currencies

At present, the Chinese government is actively launching pilot
projects for the Digital Currency Electronic Payment (“"DCEP"). The
digital currency is the logical product of trends in the development
of a digital economy. Its related supporting products have
great market prospects in the future. As a leader in the secure
payment industry, the Group has accumulated and maintained
industry-leading technology reserves and service capabilities for
secure transactions and has a first-mover advantage in the digital
currency field. The Group has taken the lead in R&D investment
and built up its capability of providing digital currency-related
products and supporting services, including a series of
cryptocurrency hardware wallet products, digital currency smart
self-service kiosks and digital currency security application systems.

The Group actively participates in pilot projects for digital currency
R&D and their applications. It will continue to expand further to
accelerate the application of digital currency products while closely
liaising and cooperating with banking customers to contribute to
the promotion and application of a digital currency in China and
the world.

In 2021, the Group obtained the SAS-UP certification issued by the
Global System for Mobile Communications Association (“GSMA")
and is qualified for Subscriber Identity Module (“SIM") production.
In the context of the global commercialization of 5G, the Group
will actively develop the application of proprietary and controllable
secure transaction technology in SIM cards. This will combine
traditional business competitive advantages to create secure
authentication and payment products across multiple industry
applications, such as finance, telecommunications, transportation
and licensing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Thirdly, Accelerating the Expansion of the
Business Scale for Digital Equipment

The global pandemic-induced new-normal has led to
“non-contact” socio-economic activities becoming widely
accepted. The continued rise in labor costs has also made
“unmanned” economic activities a common occurrence. This in
turn brings opportunities for the development of the Group’s
digital equipment. At the same time, the Group’'s extensive
security transaction and technology experience will aid the Group
in achieving excellent results in the digital equipment business for
banking and government customers.

At present, the digital equipment business is growing rapidly
and has made an important contribution to the Group’s overall
revenue. The Group will continue to speed up its innovation and
exert R&D efforts in this business to expand its product categories,
especially with respect to harmonization with ITIIA’s products.
The Group will also attract new target customers and extend
application scenarios to accelerate the expansion of the scale of
the digital equipment business.

On the one hand, during the digital transformation process of
commercial banks in relation to their brick-and-mortar branch,
the Group will expand the scale of its business by providing
the banking customers with new and creative choices in digital
equipment so as to adapt to the ever-evolving customer use
case scenario needs of customers in various scenarios such as
self-service, counter service and mobile device service.

On the other hand, the Group will actively expand the application
of digital equipment in government and civilian services,
transportation and retail, to extend the use of digital equipment
to a wider range of “non-contact” application scenarios to achieve
business growth. In order to efficiently support the development
of the digital equipment business, the Group will join forces with
ecosystem alliances within the ITAIIl, technology partners, business
channel partners, universities, laboratories and other institutions
to promote the technological application, innovation, ecological
construction and industrial synergistic development of digital
equipment with the Group’s Guangdong Province loT Security
Transaction Engineering Technology Research Center.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR DN @

Fourthly, Establishing a Digital Business
Platform to Form a Fintech Business Ecosystem

The Group is confident that the future of secure payment and
related fintech products and services lies in digitalization and
platformization is the key future business model for this industry.
Looking ahead, commercial banks, card organizations, end-users,
product and technology providers, business channel providers
and other key industry players are expected to communicate and
interact on the same platform, to meet their respective needs and
create new business models through complementary advantages
and technology integration, to jointly form a fintech business
ecosystem.

Alongside with the trend of digitization and platformization of the
industry, the Group is committed to the promotion and building
of the UMV platform to create a digital business ecosystem with
diverse industry engagement. Through the integrated application
of next-generation information technology such as Artificial
Intelligence (“A.l."), big data and image processing, commercial
banks and card organizations can access a variety of products
and services of digital marketing, digital customer acquisition,
and digital operations. At the same time, consumers can access
individualized, customized and secure payment products as well as
other fintech products and services more easily and conveniently.

Over the past 30 years, the Group has served more than 1,000
banking customers with secure payment products and has
built up deep relationships with them. In addition, the Group
has accumulated an abundance of the world’s leading secure
transaction technologies and rich customer service experience
in the banking industry. Based on these valuable resources, the
Group's UMV platform aims to advocate and promote future
business models that connect various industry players, enabling
them to provide more competitive products and services and to
create an innovative fintech industry. In 2021, the UMV platform
has already entered into service contracts with 16 commercial
banks, including the biggest six state-owned banks in China.

The Group has developed a series of new digital applications
such as “Smart Production”, “Digital Operation”, "“Digital Process
Control” and “Data Governance” to effectively enhance its digital
service and operation capability and provide a reliable capability
guarantee for the construction of a digital business platform.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Fifthly, Boosting Overseas Markets Expansion

As a leading global provider of fintech products and services,
the Group has successfully delivered products and services to
customers over 30 countries and regions. The Group has recovered
from the pandemic and achieved significant growth in overseas
market with a year-on-year revenue increase of approximately
33.8% in 2021.

The Group will strengthen its marketing capabilities by utilizing
digitization and its competitive advantages in embedded software
and secure payment products to enhance penetration into new
markets and customers overseas to achieve its extension of
overseas markets.

At the same time, relying on a stable supply chain and mature
fintech products within Mainland China, the Group will leverage
its capability advantages and further export high-quality products
such as digital equipment, secure payment products and embedded
modules for overseas markets in order to expand its overseas
market share and enhance customer satisfaction.

THE ZHUHAI FINTECH CENTER

The construction of the Zhuhai Fintech Center will be completed
in 2022 and basic preparations finished. Relying on this center,
the Group will concentrate quality resources and strengthen
cooperation with the local government. With competitive
supporting policies to attract talent, resource pools and projects
in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the
Group will integrate its own funds, special government funds and
third-party industry funds to boost the innovative development of
the Group's fintech business.

Looking ahead, the Group will leverage digital technology to
enhance its marketing and service experience and fully deepen its
strategic partnership with core customers. On this basis, the Group
will also accelerate innovation in fintech services to support the
digital transformation of core customers and realize its vision of
being a “trustworthy provider for fintech products and services”.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, no material events have
occurred.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEBNWR DN @

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 17 May 2022, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 May 2022. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
12 May 2022 to Tuesday, 17 May 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 June
2022. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 6 June 2022 to Wednesday, 8 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed
dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Tuesday, 17 May 2022, the dividends will be paid on
Thursday, 30 June 2022 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Wednesday, 8 June 2022.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 December 2013 (the “Listing Date”) with net
proceeds from the global offering of approximately RMB975.0
million (after deducting underwriting commissions and related
expenses). As at 31 December 2021, the Company utilized
approximately RMB836.5 million for the purposes of production
capacity expansion, innovative product and service research and
development, investment in associates and acquisition, market
expansion outside of China, working capital supplementation
and other general corporate purposes. The balances of the net
proceeds were deposited in banking account. The Company has
utilized and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant to the purposes
and the proportions as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 22 November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2021 is

set out below:
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Utilized  Unutilized
amount amount
as at as at
% of net Net 31 December 31 December
proceeds proceeds 2021 2021
20215 R2021F
%3 12A31H 12A31RH
Bt fl BEEs CHEALE XEHLE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETR
R&D of new products and services s E R R IRE 35% 341,113 341,113 0
Expansion to production BREESRE AHR
facilities, upgrades and other BERFEER
improvements to existing card HIREIE R
production and data processing
facilities 35% 341,113 268,332 72,781
Financing future strategic alliances T ARREE FHABETT
with complementary companies REBBREES 10% 97,461 32,120 65,341
Further strengthening presence in E—FMEEREAR
existing markets outside the HAE ([HE ) FEIN
People’s Republic of China BEMSMEEELH
(the “PRC") 10% 97,461 97,461 0
Working capital and other general HBREEEER
corporate purposes He—MRFAE 10% 97,461 97,461 0
Total A&T 100% 974,609 836,487 138,122

The balances of the net proceeds were deposited in banking FIERIEFENBEFZALRITERE - AR

account. The Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds
pursuant to the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the

prospectus of the Company dated 22 November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the daily operations and
working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion
plans. By taking a conservative financial management attitude, the
Group continued to maintain the healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,233.6 million (2020: approximately
RMB1,344.7 million), of which approximately RMB767.1 million
(2020: approximately RMB804.0 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 62.2%, and approximately RMB466.5
million (2020: approximately RMB540.7 million) was denominated
in USD and HKD, etc., representing approximately 37.8%.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) amounted to approximately
RMB180.2 million, which was the structured deposits represented
by principal-guaranteed financial products issued by banks, among
which approximately RMB30.0 million was in Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, approximately RMB50.0 million was in
Ping An Bank Company Limited, approximately RMB50.0 million
was in China Citic Bank and approximately RMB50.2 million was in
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank loans (2020:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB342.3 million (2020: approximately RMB271.0
million). It is the industry practice that settlement of trade
receivables peaks around the end of year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1,785.2 million (2020:
approximately RMB2,020.7 million), representing an decrease of
approximately 11.7% compared to that of the previous year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio was

approximately 3.2 (2020: approximately 3.7), representing a high
liquidity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio (the gearing
ratio is equivalent to total liabilities divided by total assets as at the
end of the year) was approximately 23.0% (2020: approximately
22.5%).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the Group’s sales were mainly
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the operating expenses
and purchases were mainly denominated in RMB with certain
portions in USD and HKD. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of foreign currency rates
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’'s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB81.7 million. (2020:
approximately RMB80.3 million). This capital expenditure is the
expense in fixed assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB33.0 million (2020:
approximately RMB68.1 million). Such increase was mainly due to
the construction of “Zhuhai Fintech Center”, which is currently in
progress. The Group expects to fund these commitments principally
from the working capital of the Group.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits of approximately
RMB219.2 million (2020: approximately RMB244.0 million) were
pledged to secure the bills payables and bank guarantee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEE W R D @)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group plans to utilize its own funds of approximately RMB88.4
million for the purpose of construction of “Zhuhai Fintech Center”
during 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021,
liabilities.

the Group had no material contingent

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

In February 2021, two external professional firms were appointed
by the court to act as the liquidation administrators of Sichuan
Zhongruan Technology Ltd. (“SCZR"), which is the associate of
the Group, pursuant to the court order ((2020) JI101048%455% )& 7F
Z). The operation and management of SCZR during the period
of bankruptcy and liquidation is undertaken by the bankruptcy
administrator. On 24 November 2021, the court declared the
bankruptcy of SCZR, but the liquidation process was still in
progress at the end of the year 2021. Therefore, according to
HKAS28R (“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”),
the Group has reclassified the equity investment of SCZR from
interest in an associate to FVTPL as the Group has lost significant
influence over SCZR. The Group has reviewed and estimated the
fair value of SCZR on a regular basis under the requirement of
HKFRS9.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company purchased
8,870,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate price of approximately HK$15,286,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB12,661,000). The shares were acquired at
an average price of HK$1.72 per share, with prices ranging from
HK$1.62 to HK$1.80. Among the shares purchased, 5,556,000
ordinary shares of the Company were canceled during the year and
the rest of 3,314,000 ordinary shares were cancelled in January
2022.
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The details of the purchase of shares are as follows: RO OB NT
Aggregate
consideration
Highest price  Lowest price paid
Number of per share per share (HKS$)
shares (HK$) (HK$) &t
Month purchased BRESERX SRHEEER X THE
A& iR E (B TS) (B xS) (B xS)
September 2021 20214 9AR 3,623,000 1.70 1.62  6,114,676.93
October 2021 2021410AH 3,025,000 1.77 1.68 5,212,031.88
November 2021 20214 11A4 2,222,000 1.80 1.74  3,958,999.50
Total &5 8,870,000 15,285,708.31
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its [ Fit#EEN A AT REWE QA TRE
subsidiaries purchased,sold or redeemed any of the Company's RigEEE « £ EsE DT AARQFIRG -

listed securities during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEE W R D @)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
management team had managed, monitored, recommended and
reported on environmental and social aspects. An ESG report
is prepared with reference to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
(Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide) and
will be published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment in all material
aspects. The Group encourages its employees, customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social
activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers and provides
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
continued and sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,624 employees (as
at 31 December 2020: 1,643), with a decrease of 19 employees
as compared to that as at 31 December 2020. Total employee
benefits expenses including Directors’ emoluments, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, amounted to approximately RMB216.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately
RMB198.0 million).

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important
assets. In addition to offering competitive remuneration and
welfare packages, the Group is also committed to providing
specialized and challenging career development and training
programs for the purpose of enhancing their knowledge and skills,
such as compulsory orientation, job skills training, improvement
training, information security training, compliance and legal
training and etc.

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. The Group also
adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Scheme to motivate prospective
employees. Apart from basic remuneration, for employees in
Mainland China, the Group makes contributions towards employee
mandatory social security, pensions, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and medical and unemployment insurance in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations of Mainland
China. The pensions and unemployement insurance belong to
defined contribution plans, the Group doesn’t have the right to
confiscate the contributions, and therefore has no use of the
contributions. The Group also provides full coverage of housing
provident fund contributions as required by local regulations in
Mainland China. For overseas employees, the Group also make
contributions towards relevant insurance scheme as required by
the local regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including six executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
following table sets forth certain information relating to the

EENGAREEE @)

=S

EFehNBESFEN  BREAERTE
EZRBUFATEF - UTIRBRSZ
BB

Position in the Group

SER®

Directors:

Name Age
H A FiR
Executive Directors

BITES

LU Run Ting 67
EEE

HOU Ping 61
& ¥

LU Runyi 64
EEe

WU Sigiang 49
REB®

LING Wai Lim 35
& B R

LI Yijin 51
F 5

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

MAK Wing Sum Alvin 69
oK FR
YE Lu 59
® %
YANG Geng 46
B &

Chairman & Executive Director
FERBITES
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

MITEEREFENTE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President

WITEERaREBE

Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer

HITEENERELE

Executive Director

WMITES

Executive Director & Chief Audit Executive & Company
Secretary

HITESE FARIKRAFANE

Independent Non-executive Director
BMYIFRITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BMIFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFATES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (E B £) (“Chairman Lu”), aged 67, is the
chairman of the Board and an executive Director, and the founder
of the Group. He was first appointed as Director on 10 December
2004 and was designated as an executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible for the
overall strategic planning and overseeing the general management
of the Group. He has over 25 years of experience in financial card
industry and was honored as the finalist award of CNBC Asia
Business Leaders Award in October 2015. Chairman LU has been
the Chairman of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited
(formerly named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited”) since
2011 and also has been the director of Goldpac Fintech Private
Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private
Limited), the Company’s subsidiary, from 2016 to July 2018,
and has been the director of Goldpac Investment Limited, the
Company’s subsidiary, since 2016, and has been the director of
Goldpac Innovation Limited, the Company’s subsidiary, since 2018,
and has been the director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited
Company and UMV International Holding Limited, the Company’s
subsidiaries, from 2020.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman
LU wholly owns the entire issued share capital of Goldpac
International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"), the Company’s
controlling shareholder and is a director of GIHL since 1993.
Chairman LU also served as various management positions at the
subsidiaries of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior
to the establishment of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as
the chairman of GIHL. Chairman LU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director of any
other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL. Chairman
LU is the elder brother of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive
Director and senior vice president of the Company, and is the
father of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HOU Ping (2¥), aged 61, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August
2011, and was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years of
experience in the banking industry, including approximately 20
years of experience in the card industry. He has been a Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has
also served as a director of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited and Goldpac Limited respectively, since 2011. He has
also served as a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company,
including as a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since
2016, and a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited
(Hengqin), SecureTech Holdings Limited and Goldpac Fintech Hong
Kong Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries, since 2018, a director of
Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company and UMV Technology
Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020, and also a director of Zhirong
Financial Service Technology (Zhuhai) Co. (“Zhirong Financial
Services”) since 2021 (through the VIE Agreements, Zhirong
Financial Services has been an indirect subsidiary of the Company
as 100% of its equity interest is attributed to the Company
indirectly).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre
from 2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of
China group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC
Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to
2004. Mr. HOU served as an independent non-executive director
of the Huijin Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 300561) from November
2016 to January 2019. Mr. HOU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
December 2003. Saved as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been
a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas
in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Mr. LU Runyi (E814), aged 64, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has over 25 years of
experience in the security payment industry. He has been a senior
vice president of the Group since 2004 and has been the director
of GIHL from June 2006 to March 2021, and has been director of
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited
respectively since 2011, and has served as a director of Goldpac
Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018, and has also
served as a director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
since 2020. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Mr. LU Run Ting, who is
the Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and is
the uncle of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. WU Sigiang (& B58), aged 49, is an executive Director
and the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the
Group in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall
operation of the Group, he was designated as an executive
Director with effect from 18 May 2017, and has more than 20
years of experience in the security payment industry. Mr. Wu
was a manager of the production division, vice general manager
of the operation division, general manager of the production
management division of Goldpac Limited from 2001 to 2011
successively, and has been the chief operating officer of Goldpac
Limited since 2011. Mr. WU was served as a manager of the
procurement division of Goldpac Limited from 2004 to January
2021, and has been the general manager and legal representative
since February 2021. Mr. WU has also served as a director of
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018. Mr. WU
had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University
(E M EFT) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology
(BRI XKE)) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July
1993.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (E & B) (formerly known as Mr. Wai Lim
(B BE) and Mr. LING Wai Lim (O£ g\ B) ), aged 35, joined the
Company as non-executive Director on 18 May 2017. He was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 March
2019 and was appointed as senior vice president of the Group
upon the effective date of 22 January 2021. Mr. LING has also
served a director of three subsidiaries of the Company, including
as a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin)
since 2018, a director of UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since
2020 and also a director of Zhirong Financial Service since 2021
(through the VIE Agreements, Zhirong Financial Services has been
an indirect subsidiary of the Company as 100% of its enquiry
interest is attributed to the Company indirectly). Mr. LING has over
10 years of experience in biomedical research and research project
management. Mr. LING served as a project analyst, a project
manager and the senior scientific advisor, respectively, of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code: 8158), a
company listed on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, from June 2015 to December 2018. Mr. LING served
as a research assistant of The University of Hong Kong, Department
of Paediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, from December 2010 to
May 2012. Mr. LING had not been a Director of any other listed
Companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LING received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology) from
The University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy in
Microbiology from The University of Hong Kong in 2010, and also
the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of
Hong Kong in 2015.

Mr. LING is the son of LU Run Ting, who is the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. He is also the
nephew of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior
vice president of the Company.

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53#), aged 51, is an executive Director, the
chief audit executive of the Company and company secretary,
and joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed as an executive
Director with effective from 18 May 2020. She has over 26 years
of experience in the accounting, auditing and financial reporting
matters. Ms. LI was the financial controller of the Company from
2004 to 2012, and was the chief financial officer of the Company
from 2012 to April 2019, and has been designated as the chief
audit executive of the Company since May 2019. Ms. Li has also
been the supervisor of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
and UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020, the Company
subsidiary.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
in November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified
Public Accountants) Australia since October 2004, a Fellow of CPA
Australia (FCPA) since May 2020, and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had not been
a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas
in the past three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z k&) (also known as Mr. MAK
Wing Sum), aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director.
He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. MAK
is currently an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Technology Venture Company Limited (formerly known as Hong
Kong Television Network Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (Stock Code: 590), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1125) and Crystal International Group Limited (Stock Code:
2232). He was also an independent non-executive director of I.T.
Limited (Stock Code: 999) from 31 March, 2012 to December 2,
2019. Mr. Mak is a member of Hong Kong Housing Society, and is
currently a member of its Supervisory Board and Human Resource
Committee. Mr. MAK, after working in Citibank for over 26 years,
went into his retirement in April 2012. Whilst at Citibank, he has
held various senior positions, managing the regional global asset
management business and financial control for North Asia, he last
served as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong
Kong.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed
herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. YE Lu (E3¥), aged 59, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood
Mallesons in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Ms. YE is a member of the Board of the Singapore
International Arbitration Center, and an arbitrator of American
Arbitration Association, China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission and Hong Kong International Arbitration
Center and Singapore International Arbitration Center, and she
was a member of the Court of the London Court of International
Arbitration.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of
Peking University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws
from the Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in
June 1986, and also received the Master of Laws from the Harvard
Law School in June 1994. Ms. YE was admitted as lawyer in the
People’s Republic of China and New York State in 1988 and 1999
respectively. Ms. YE had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. YANG Geng (&), aged 46, is an independent non-executive
Director. He joined the Group on 22 May 2019, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. YANG has over 10 years of experience in securities investment.
Mr. YANG has been working as investment director in Recent
International Asset Management Company Limited since June
2021, worked in Valuable Capital Group as Portfolio Manager
from May 2019 to June 2021. From January 2018 to April
2019, Mr. YANG has been worked as the First Vice President
(Investment) in Mason Administrative Services Limited, responsible
for constructing the investment portfolios in stock market of Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Mr. YANG acted as an investment
director in Orchid Public Investment Management Company Limited
from April 2014 to June 2017. Mr. YANG worked respectively at
Huaxi Securities Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 002926 Shenzhen) and BOCI Research
Limited from May 2008 to January 2014.

Mr. YANG received Bachelor of Trade and Economics from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in 1997 and received Master
of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2007. Mr YANG had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE
Name Gender Age Position

% & 5Bl F iR %%

LI Yingjie Male 39 Chief Financial Officer
) FE % BREMBE

Mr. LI Yingjie (RIFE#£E), aged 39, is the chief financial officer
of the Company, and joined the Group in 2014. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the accounting and finance
departments of the Group. Mr. LI has more than 15 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. He was the director of
internal audit of the Company from September 2014 to April
2019, and has served as the chief financial officer of the Company
since May 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI worked as the manager of
internal audit in Galaxy Entertainment Group (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 0027.HK) from 2010 to 2014,
and acted as senior auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
2005 to 2010. He graduated from Sun Yat-sen University and
received a bachelor of arts in 2005. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. LI had not
been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53), aged 51, is the company secretary of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior

Management — Executive Directors” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

1. Mr. HOU Ping (/&) was appointed as a director of Zhirong
Financial Services, the Company’s indirect subsidiary, with
effect from 1 March 2021.

2. Mr. LING Wai Lim (/& g B&)was appointed as a director of
Zhirong Financial Services, the Company’s indirect subsidiary,
with effect from 1 March 2021.

Save as disclosed in the disclosure above, during the year and up
to the date of this report, there is no other change in information
of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

EENGAREEE @)

B EmRAIE13.51B(1) §HE - BE=E
EERNEFMOT ¢

1. BEFEER2021F381BEEZFE A
AARIZEEHRBRAIESRESRNE
%O

2. BEEBELEEN2021FE381H BIEE
ARABzHENRBATERESRNE
%O

BREAWBEIN RAFEEZEARER

mz B RIEEMAEAE13.51B(1)IER
F S BEMEEHENESERET o

EHREREERERAT —B-—FFR 39

Corporate
Information
HRER

P E

Financial
Highlights

2021
Major Events
RFiL

20214

W&

=

Chairman'’s
Statement
I3

Management Discussion

REEE

.2
c
Qc

9 @

©
2§
T o
2 &
S ®©
9=
L

=

EER

MEBRE

Social and
Governance Report
& & &

Environmental,
b

BE -

@i
I

¥R

Report of
Directors

- AR)
RBEI/RHS

;

Corporate Governance
Report

Financial
Statements
ISR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERERS

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group (or we) prepared and released the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") Report 2021 (“Report”), which is
in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and is
based on the Group’s actual conditions. The Report presents the
Group’s environmental and social policies, strategies, practices
and performance in 2021. For more information on corporate
governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” of
the annual report.

Reporting Period and Scope

This Report supplements the remaining parts of the Group’s annual
report and discloses performance and progress on sustainable
development from 1 January to 31 December 2021. The scope of
this Report covers the Company and its major subsidiaries. The
information stated in this Report was obtained from the Group's
various reports and records of daily operations.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: We conduct stakeholder communication and materiality
assessments annually to identify significant environmental,
social and governance issues. For more details, please refer to
“Stakeholder Communication and Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” sections.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and source of
conversion factors used in calculating the data are disclosed in due
course.

Consistency: This report has been prepared in a consistent manner
with previous years in order to enhance coherence and provide
a meaningful comparison with previous years’ performance.
Appropriate disclosure and explanation will be provided for any
changes in methodologies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Feedback

The Group considers sustainable development as its imperative
long-term goal. We would highly appreciate any comments on
improving the content and information delivery of this Report. If
you have any queries or suggestions, please feel free to contact us.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre,
No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202
Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Governance Structure

As a global leader in offering smart secure payment total solutions,
the Group upholds the mission of “Make Transactions More Secure
and Convenient” and the vision of “Becoming a Trustworthy
Provider for Fintech Products and Services” to deliver quality
products and services for customers across the world.

The Board of the Group understands the importance of sustainable
development for the community and the Group itself, actively
integrates ESG factors into important business decisions and is
committed to being a responsible leader in the industry. The Board
is ultimately responsible for the Group’s ESG issues and the Board
acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the Report
and to the best of its knowledge that this Report addresses all
material issues and fairly presents the Group’s ESG performance.
The Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

We are the only secure payment solution provider in China to hold
simultaneous certifications by China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard,
American Express, JCB and Diners. Ensuring product quality and
customer data security are defined as our top priorities. At the
same time, we endeavour to explore and investigate suitable
corporate operational processes to cohere with the Group's
sustainability development pattern. In 2021, with the joint
efforts of all staff, the Group won the Award for Best Corporate
Governance (G) Case in the 2021 China Best ESG Selection held
by 2021 CLSeESG Summit Forum, and the “Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility Award” in the 9th “Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility Awards” Selection held by Daily Mirror with
its excellent performance in ESG.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R -#HERERERE 8

The Group is committed to integrating its businesses with the
development of environment and society, pursuing a sustainable
development. We have established an effective ESG governance
structure: The Board is responsible for making decisions on ESG
management policies and strategies, assessing and identifying
ESG-related risks, overseeing the implementation of related
matters and the approval of ESG reports; Management and
management representative are responsible for formulating
ESG-related measures in accordance with ESG management
policies, and reporting implementation progress and feedback;
employees of all departments are the practitioners of ESG works,
who implement ESG measures into their daily practice. During
the year, we continued to promote the collection and reporting
of environmental and social performance information through
collaboration among various departments, e.g. internal control
department, corporate business management department, human
resource department, administration department, engineering
department and etc. Staffs at all levels fully cooperated with
sustainability management work to implement the concept of
sustainable development into practice.

Decision-making layer

REE

Execution layer

HITE

Implementation layer

Bt
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to manage sustainable development better, we continuously
communicate with stakeholders, assess and prioritise the identified
ESG issues based on their materiality, and set up key goals and
work plans. For goals and measures, please refer to “Environmental
Management” section.

The Board oversees the overall management of Group’s risks,
continually overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal
control system and reviewing their effectiveness through Audit
Committee. The Group has in place a risk management framework,
which enables the Group to adopt a proactive and systematic
approach to identify and manage risks (including ESG-related risks)
as well as to evaluate risk severity and likelihood of occurrence.

To achieve environmental sustainability, the Group complies with
all related environmental laws, regulations (Appendix 1) and
standards. Starting from the energy saving, emission reduction
and waste management as key aspects, we established a series of
internal procedures and systems to help our employees properly
handle the wastes generated in the operation process. As a result,
we are able to enhance operation efficiency, reduce the negative
impact on the environment, and fully shoulder the responsibility of
environmental protection.

The Group not only abides by relevant laws and regulations
relating to employment and safety (Appendix 1), but also pays
considerable attention to employee welfare and safety, and at
the same time it devotes itself to a well-established management
and training system, offering employees a broader development
space in an inclusive, fair, safe, healthy and harmonious work
environment, to realise the talents sustainable development.

Appendix 1 presents the list including but not limited to laws and
regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant impacts on
the Group.

Stakeholder Communication and Engagement

We are grateful to every stakeholder for their support on our
growth and improvement. In order to lay a solid foundation
for the success of our sustainable development, we have made
great efforts to understand opinions suggested by stakeholders,
e.g. investors, customers, suppliers, employees, community,
government and etc.. We have established multiple communication
channels for stakeholders to deliver their comments on our ESG
performance and future policies to us.
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Stakeholders
Flz=AEEA

Investors

REE

Customers
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Suppliers

HEERE

Employees

Community

HE

Government

B

Areas of concern

BxEE

Financial performance

Business strategies

Operation in conformance of laws and
regulations and corporate governance .
Sustainable development and risk control
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Fair competition and dealing o
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Training and development o
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FERSEEER .
Fair employment and opportunities o
Environmental protection
Epidemic prevention and control o
L[]
ATRERE .
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Operation in conformance of laws and o
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Business strategies and sustainability o
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Communication and engagement channels

BEKSERE

e Annual general meeting
Regular disclosure on financial and operational

information
Investor relations management
The Group's website

BEAE
BB REEE R
BEEMEESE

A B

Customer service specialist

Customer satisfaction survey

The Group's website

Social media, e.g. WeChat official account

EERBESR
EPmEEREE

7N SR [ 48 uh

HREE MMEE T RARR

Supplier site visit
Regular assessments
Continuous direct communications

B8 B TR 35 7
7 B T
BREEER

Management mailbox
Performance assessments
Employee training
Internal exchange forum

E1E S
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BT
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Regular communications to pay attention to
society issues and neighborhood

Social Media, e.g. WeChat Official Account
Community activities

FHER MIHERA
MR MMEE T AR
At [ 5 B

Forums, thematic meetings, trainings

Communication with government
Regular compliance reports
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We believe that proactive two-way communications with
stakeholders will help formulate business strategies better
conforming to their expectations and requirements, improve
the ability of risk forecast, strengthen crucial relationships, and
finally realise sustainable development in economies, society and
environment together.

Materiality Assessment

We identified 26 ESG issues with reference to industry-related
laws and regulations, the important topics identified by domestic
and foreign industry peers, the business scope of the Group, ESG
risks identified, macro policies and hot topics. Questionnaires
and interviews were conducted to understand the views of
management and stakeholders on these issues, and to assess the
materiality of these issues. The results serve as an important basis
for the preparation of this Report and the promotion of future
sustainable development efforts. The assessment result has been
reviewed and approved by the Board.
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Very Important
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Not Important .
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Not Important
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Environment Protection BiZ{R #&

1.

Usage and recycling of materials

YRR (E A R B B R A E R

Energy consumption and saving measures
BEIRE#E K B0 B HE i

Usage of water resources and saving
measures

IKEIRE R M 817K HE 7

Greenhouse gas emissions and reduction
measures

hE R B R B E i

Wastes and their disposal

BEVHNEENEE

Air pollutant emissions and reduction measures

JEE RHE IR RORL B 4R 1

Employee Policy 8 TH X}

12.

13.

14.

Talent management policies and status

AT EBBR MBI

Protection of employees occupational health and

safety
RIEEEBRERFEEZ S

Employee development and training
18 8 R EiEl

Operation Management E & &8

18.

19.

20.

21.

Guarantee the quality of products and services
REEMRREEE

Protection of customer data and privacy

R&ER P B RAE AR

Customer complaints dealing with and customer
satisfaction improvement
BREZFRFLEFAEFMER

Protection of intellectual properties and research
outcomes

R 8 N 3 EE R S AT ST AR

Community Contribution # & & &t

26.

Community investment
HESE
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22,

23.

24,

25,

Wasted water discharge and reduction measures

JEE K BRI KR B Fa e

R&D on clean technologies and green products

BRI M AR CEROIT KRR %

Compliance with environmental laws and
regulations

BFIRBAERERBMN

Protection of biodiversity

REEMZ RN

Concerns and responds for climate change

B R EHRIERE(L

Internal communications

AEBREBER

Anti-Child and Anti-Forced labour
REZETI K% T

Compliance with laws and regulations of

protection of labour rights and interests
BFSTREREEEER[BR

Compliance with industry-specific laws and
regulations, and business ethics
BTFIRERERNARER

Supplier status

H e IR R

Supplier policies and management
HEBBER RE R

Anti-Corruption policies and performance
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Looking ahead, we will interact with stakeholders and review
our performance as always. We persist in taking the social and
environmental responsibilities, optimising our sustainability
initiatives and integrating our business with environmental
management and social impact to stimulate business growth.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Our commitment to upholding the highest level of business ethics
and integrity connects to what we do and we believe that it is our
competitive advantage.

Product and Service Quality

Following the quality policy “All for better meeting customer
requirements, exceeding customer expectations and improving
customer satisfaction!”, the Group pursues to achieve operational
excellence in line with the value of “Customer-oriented”. Guided
by such policy, the Group has established a quality management
system supported by a set of policy documents, e.g. Quality
Manual for Payment Products, Quality Manual for Data Processing
Services and subordinate documents. The Group has successfully
renewed the 1SO9001 Quality Management System Certificate.
With the joint efforts of all departments, our products and
services are subject to strict safety standards and comply with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations. The Group has been
granted certifications by the six global credit card organisations.

Regarding product quality, we have established quality
management department, which is in charge of carrying out
quality check during the operating process for raw materials,
goods in progress and finished goods, in accordance with quality
management system and industry requirements. Unqualified
products will be analysed and reviewed, adjusted, improved,
re-manufactured or even disposed according to the Unqualified
Products Control Procedure. If the products need to be recalled,
we will arrange the logistics provider to pick up and return the
products, and quality management department will be responsible
for the return inspection of the products. Those products will
be adjusted, improved or re-manufactured based on the specific
situations, and then re-deliver to customers. In 2021, there was no
occurrence of any recall of the Group’s products sold or delivered
due to safety and health concerns.

In terms of customer service, we dedicate in offering high quality
services to our customers. For each customer, the sales staff will
design a tailored sales strategy and a customer service person will
be designated to follow up after-sale issues. Both our product
quality and services and communication have received a high
appraisal from customers. Our Customer Complaint Management
Procedure defines the measures and procedures in dealing with
customer complaints, by which we effectively enhance our internal
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management, assist customers to solve problems and continuously
improve customer satisfaction according to customer suggestions.
We also built a special team to record, internally coordinate and
summarise customer complaints for future reference. In 2021, the
Group received 36 complaints, mainly related to delivery time,
logistics service, card appearance defect (ink spots, scratches) and
quality of supplier products. After receiving customer complaints,
we put them on record, verified the contents of customer
complaints, informed relevant departments to investigate,
worked out solutions and fed back to customers. We followed up
customers’ opinions after implementing the solutions. For customer
complaints received during the year, we provided feedback to
customers within two working days, and most of the complaints
were closed in the same month or the following month. During
the year, we do not find any cases about privacy leak or significant
accidents that have material effects on the Group in terms of
product quality and services.

The Group also adheres to business ethics in advertising and
marketing. All product brochures we provide are reviewed to
ensure the completeness and accuracy of information. Product
design and use of product logo are strictly in accordance with
the requirements of credit card organisations. In 2021, the Group
is not aware of any material breaches of laws and regulations
relating to privacy, health and safety, advertising, labelling and the
products and services provided.

The Group firmly believes that operational excellence is inseparable
from safe and reliable information management. Information
Security Management System Manual and its subordinate
documents are published to comprehensively define the security
management framework and information security objectives,
planning, etc., and clarify the specific security requirements of
information processing. The Group has successfully renewed
ISO27001 Information Security Management System Certificate.

The Group penetrates information security management into
every aspect of daily operations. When signing employment
agreement, employees have to sign the Confidentiality Agreement
and Competition Restriction Agreement. During daily work,
no employees are permitted to disseminate information to
unauthorised persons or outsiders without authorisation.
Copying of any confidential information is also strictly prohibited.
Information security training is carried out annually to continuously
enhance employees’ security awareness. We also use technical
methods such as anti-virus software, firewalls, network diagnostic
tools and data encryption to protect information security. Random
and regular security inspections by industry supervision authorities,
card organisations, customers and professional institutions reassure
the reliability of our service and ensure a high standard of security
management.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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According to the results of 2020 annual quality and safety
inspections announced by China UnionPay, the Group was once
again listed as a top performer with exemplary performance in the
assessments for our security management, products and services.
China UnionPay security management inspections assess the
quality standards around safety management, industry compliance
and product quality for China UnionPay certified enterprises. The
inspections are carried out without prior notice of inspection time,
inspection content nor inspection team members. In this inspection,
the Group topped the list with an awarded score of over 90 (out
of 100 points), which is a testament to the fact that we have
always been committed to providing customers with products and
services of the highest standards in safety and quality, and thus to
be exempted from the 2021 inspections.

For independent intellectual property, the Group has developed
Intellectual Property Management Manual and other relevant
procedures to clarify intellectual property management principles
and objectives, and standardise the management of existing
information assets and intellectual property rights. The Group
identifies, obtains and updates applicable intellectual property
legal information and other requirements in a timely manner and
communicates them to employees. We will be mindful of suppliers’
relevant intellectual property information when purchasing to avoid
the purchase of infringing products. Intellectual property rights in
R&D activities will be tracked and monitored to timely adjust R&D
strategies and contents, make reasonable use of intellectual property
rights of others, and avoid infringement risks. We also monitor
our intellectual property rights in the product market, timely track
and investigate if our intellectual property rights are infringed, and
actively take measures to protect our rights. The Group successfully
obtained the Intellectual Property Management System Certification
in 2019 (valid for 3 years), indicating that we have established
a scientific, systematic and institutionalised intellectual property
management system which will help us further promote independent
innovation and enhance our core competitiveness.

In 2020, the Group successfully passed the certification of 1SO/
[EC20000 IT Service Management System, which marks that
our information technology service management system has
reached international standards, and the standardisation level
of information technology service management has entered the
advanced level of the industry. In 2021, the Group successfully
passed CMMI L5 certification, which represents the highest
level of maturity and difficulty in the international evaluation of
software development capability. This marks we have reached to
a new height in the process organisation ability, software R&D
ability, project management ability, program delivery ability, and
can provide users with more mature industry solutions and more
efficient service with better quality. This is also an important
milestone for us in the standardisation and systematisation of R&D.
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Upholding the core values of “Virtue, Innovation, Efficiency,
Cooperation”, the Group closely follows the pace of market
developments and customer needs to continuously strengthen its
technological innovation to build excellent quality. We continue
to promote the diversified innovative development of payment
methods, actively expanding in the fields of mobile payment,
Internet of Things, smart wearable devices, smart life, smart city
and etc.. The new series of products, such as fingerprint biometric
smartcard, cryptocurrency hardware wallet and eco-friendly
card, have been highly recognised and praised by customers.
The Group actively joins hands with domestic mainstream chip
manufacturers to continue to carry out the research of financial
security chip operating system, for accelerating the full industry
chain independence of financial IC card. In the past year,
the Group has developed and launched a new generation of
financial security chip operating system such as “CardArmour”,
which has obtained the authoritative qualification certification —
embedded software security certification of UnionPay card chip.
Since the use of the customer, it has been highly praised. The
new generation of financial security chip operating system has
performance advantages such as large user space, fast running
speed and so on, and also has the advantages of high security.
While effectively avoiding the waste of resources, the operating
system can be closely combined with domestic safety chips, and
the safety protection ability of hardware can be deeply explored,
so as to build a protective wall for hardware and software of
the chip system, and also build a safe bridge for the effective
connection between the application of domestic chip system and
the industry ecology. It can be widely used in financial payment,
mobile communication, electronic wallet, Internet of Things,
transportation, industrial applications and other fields.
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In 2021, the Group won the bidding of China Minsheng Bank’s
Smart Bank Experience and passed the equipment Proof of
Concept test with the first place, helping China Minsheng Bank
to promote and build smart bank experience in 2021. Goldpac
SCE302-A was shortlisted and included in the centralised
procurement catalogue for this equipment procurement project of
China Minsheng Bank’s Smart Bank Experience. Goldpac SCE302-A
smart kiosk is a highly integrated model in the Group’s smart kiosk
family. It can realise instant card issuing of credit cards, debit cards
and special cards, and perform business functions such as issuing
a new card with the card number unchanged and issuing social
security cards. At present, it supports instant credit card issuing
with UnionPay, Express, VISA, MasterCard, and JCB. The Group
launched a new generation of smart vehicle management kiosk in
the year. By leveraging a series of advanced technologies such as
biometrics identification, artificial intelligence, precision control
and so on, it can achieve on-site license making in 35 seconds
so driving license can be received immediately and it also has a
set of “smart steward” back-office system solutions. The kiosk
can greatly reduce the working pressure of the police, improve
the operational efficiency, and effectively promote the reform of
scientific, intelligent, digital and precision management. Based
on years of experience in designing smart hardware products, the
Group’s smart kiosks are able to provide total solutions integrating
operating system, hardware and software for the fields of finance,
government, transportation, police and others through innovative
technologies such as biometric identification, big data and artificial
intelligence.

In recent years, the Group has rapidly established a unique
competitive advantage in the field of A.l. image recognition by
focusing on the development needs of the digital transformation
of its core customers and on the core technology of fintech.
We make full use of deep learning, machine learning related
A.l. technologies, such as image processing, video processing,
natural language processing (NLP) for technical layout and system
development, to provide financial institutions with comprehensive
solutions for business processes online. “GoldAudit Content
Audit System Solution” (“GoldAudit”) successfully integrates
A.l. technology with the online requirements of bank card
business. Through the A.l. application, it can solve the massive
picture compliance audit challenges faced by banks. It can
accurately identify and flag illegal videos, pictures and texts in
various fields such as violence and terrorism, pornography and
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copyright infringement according to the needs of customers. The
identification scope, accuracy and processing speed are among the
leading levels in China, which can help banks effectively control
risks, reduce labour costs and risks, facilitating the development
of banks’ core businesses and in turn creating excellence.
“GoldAudit” utilises independent intellectual property rights and
a number of invention patents, and was recognised as the “2020
Zhuhai Best Software Technology Innovation Product”, which has
been successfully implemented and deployed at many large banks.
In the future, as a trusted financial technology service provider,
the Group will continue to increase investment in A.l. computer
vision and NLP fields, in-depth research on A.l. algorithms, and
is committed to providing a full range of services of “technology
+ industry + ecology” for the digital transformation of financial
institutions, and to promote the integration of online and offline
construction, improving the intelligent, digital and scenario-based
financial services, and creating excellence by leveraging innovative
solutions to help financial institutions.

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of
business ethics in terms of information disclosure, integrity and
accountability. The code of conduct to prevent corruption has
been set out in Staff Manual to enhance self-discipline among
employees. Our Anti-Fraud Reporting Management System strictly
manages our businesses with all business partners, including
our customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors. We encourage
employees reporting on any suspected behaviours against policies
and protect the whistleblowers against any punishment due to
his/her accurate report. The whistleblowers’ identities are strictly
kept confidential unless it is necessary for investigation, malicious
reporting or required by relevant laws and regulations. We treat
with and fight against fraud and bribery in any forms such as cash
or gifts seriously.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Whistleblowers can report to the Chairman of the Group’s audit
committee or to the Chairman of the Board. Materials will be
forwarded to the other audit committee members for internal
investigation or to other department for investigations if it is in
line with the best interests of the Group. Regular evaluations on
our management system ensure the compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations and their effectiveness. In 2021, the Group
carried out anti-corruption training for directors, management and
employees from top to bottom, and also provided legal training
classes to disseminate relevant legal knowledge and cases to
employees, so as to further strengthen anti-corruption education
among employees. During the year, the Group did not notice
any material issues relating to bribery, blackmail, fraud, money
laundering or any misconduct which may have a material impact
on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that effective management on suppliers and
good cooperation with suppliers will help us reduce costs and
cooperation risks, improve the quality of products and services, and
build up an excellent brand. As such, we have developed Supplier
Evaluation and Control Procedures to ensure that all the Group’s
suppliers possess adequate capacity and are able to maintain
suitable and reliable quality.

We also maintain regular communication with suppliers to ensure
that both sides are well prepared to forecast capacity (mainly
monthly and quarterly) and supply. Where feasible, we will prepare
multiple suppliers so that, in addition to maintaining the supply
cost advantage, the Group has standby suppliers. Under this
mechanism, when a supplier is at risk in its supply chain, we can
quickly switch to another supplier to ensure that the product can
be completed on time. The Group maintains 3 or more suppliers for
major materials (financial chips, key base material for cards, etc.)
and smart kiosks. In addition to reasonable prices, environmental
and health considerations are also taken into account in the
procurement review. The Group will sign contracts with suppliers
based on a reasonable account period and payment method, and
suppliers are required to sign an Anti- corruption commitment to
emphasise the spirit of honest cooperation between both sides. At
the same time, the Group will cooperate with suppliers to jointly
explore the market, so as to promote long-term cooperation and
achieve win-win results.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE2REBRE @)

During the year, the Group has 198 suppliers, 187 of which are
in Mainland China and 11 in other areas. Among them, 70% are
excellent suppliers, 22% are qualified, and 8% are in need of
continuous communication and improvement. We have conducted
new supplier assessment for 37 suppliers. In the future, we will
keep building healthy relationships with supplies, achieving mutual
benefits and growth.

Number of Suppliers

HEEBHE

M

We will track the daily supply and service quality of our suppliers
to form monthly statistics, which will serve as an important basis
for the annual review. Meanwhile, we continue to evaluate new
suppliers, which are assessed from different perspectives by
various departments, including application of new technologies,
quality, delivery, cost, environment, safety management and etc..
After each assessment, we issue the corresponding evaluation
reports and update the list of qualified suppliers, so as to provide
reference for screening suppliers.

On the other hand, according to Risk Management Procedures, the
Group regularly conducts supply chain risks assessment, evaluates
the possibility and severity of related environmental and social risk
events, keeps communication with suppliers and formulates and
implements management measures to proactively control related
risks. For example, when there was a risk of sporadic covid-19
cases in the regions where some of our suppliers located during
2021, we will stock up with relevant suppliers in advance to
prevent supply problems caused by the suspension of production
due to the pandemic, and strengthen quarantine measures when
receiving the goods. When there are supply quality problems or
potential risks, we will form a panel with suppliers to deal with the
problems and propose solutions to minimise the impact.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Increasing the proportion of eco-friendly products or renewable
materials is the key strategy of the Group’s long-term development.
We actively promote green procurement practice, and during
supplier assessment, suppliers are required to ensure that their
products comply with 1SO14001 and HSF (Hazardous Substance
Free), and will not contain the materials that are harmful to the
environment and human body and are prohibited by national
standards and EU RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances). For
products using eco-friendly materials, we will evaluate and record
the supplier’s environment-related certifications, including UL safety
certification and Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) certification for
the supplier's products and supply chain. In the meantime, the
Group reviews suppliers regularly to check whether the relevant
production control procedures conducive to environmental
protection are properly managed and implemented, and
continuously introduces biodegradable or recycled raw materials to
improve the sustainability of the products. Moreover, along with the
industry’s acceptance and maturity of eco-friendly products, we will
develop suppliers and run product testing in advance, to gradually
increase the proportion of eco-friendly products.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Our main principles in environmental sustainability are to
diminish consumption of materials and energy and optimise
waste management, achieving the “energy saving and
emission reduction” goal, and to reduce negative influence on
eco-environment, creating an eco-friendly enterprise.

In addition to seeking business growth by providing high quality
and high class techniques, products and services to customers,
the Group, as a trusted financial technology service provider,
always concerns environmental management to mitigate negative
influence on eco-environment through operational excellence.
The Group’s major impacts to the environment were mainly
resulted from the energy consumption and emissions caused
by the operation processes of smart secure payment products.
Through risk control and measures on minimising resource usage,
we will continue to monitor the impacts on the human being and
the environment. The Group has strictly abided by all relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and other regions where the Group’s subsidiaries locate.
During 2021, we were not aware of any practices or issues
caused by environmental problems may significantly influence the
environment or the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE2REBRE @)

Guided by standards under the 1SO14001 Environmental
Management System and referring to environmental factors, the
Group has established an environmental management system
in which Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual provides the general guidelines and other
subordinate documents describe the implementation details, in
order to make best utilisation of raw materials and resources
and to reduce pollution, eventually realising the sustainable
development goal. In addition, management designates
environmental management representative to communicate
with stakeholders and understand their opinions, to confirm
environmental management plans and internal approval, and
to report to the CEO to ensure the environmental management
system functions well.

Environmental

Zli%tmomoouﬁf%%@ BARERE
A 2BRERZEEEZYL T UNCGRER
H&%&Eﬁ%ﬂ%?ﬂmﬁ%m BEF

ReEMEZAXHAEHRMAUNREETE
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Stakeholder Programs Internal management Report to
mmunication confirmation approval system assurance Report to CEO the Board
FMz=AERE 7 FTEIRER REPE AL RIEER [MCEO%RE MEES
BiE BRRE wE
To maximise the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates AERFZHEBEAHEBERAL  AEET
environmental protection concepts with its business to realise the EiIiSRERENMOMAEL LUERE
vision of environmental friendly and a harmonious development ERTFABE  ERCEHRREREL N

mode between economy and environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Resources Consumption

The Group’s energy consumptions are mainly due to electricity
usage in operation facilities and office activities, fuels used by
automobiles, and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG"”) consumed
by cooking stoves. We have strengthened the management of
resource usage by a series of management procedures, such as
Energy and Resource Consumption Control Procedures, Regulations
on Electricity Consumption, and Regulations on Automobile Safety.
We make timely adjustments to the supply and usage of electricity
including lighting system, air conditioning system, ventilating and
operation facilities. We analyse the energy efficiency based on the
collected data and computed statistics. If any exceptions are noted,
necessary improvements will be carried out. We actively implement
the concept of “energy saving and emission reduction” and adopt
a series of control measures to improve energy efficiency:

o Electrical engineers should be qualified to guarantee an
effective allocation and management of electricity to avoid
waste;

o Electrical facilities shall be switched on and off at the right
time and shall be at closed state when off duty or when
people leave the offices;

o Carrying out energy saving projects, such as air pressure
system improvement, installation of central dust collection
system, using energy-saving lamps in the workshop and
offices, and using energy efficient stoves in canteen;

o Automatic modification of central air conditioning in office
area to achieve smart control;

o Regular maintenance of air conditioning equipments to
ensure cooling effect;

o Considering energy-saving equipments when purchasing new
equipments;

o Regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to maintain
engine efficiency and reduce fuel waste;

o Planning driving routes in advance to optimise fuel
consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE2REBRE @)

Energy consumption figures are summarised as follows:

REIRHRE R A&

EERBMANT

Resource type Unit 2020 Unit 2020
ERESE By By
LPG KG 20,250 22,740  MWh 282 316
BALARER NS JK FLBF
Unleaded petrol Litre 7,217 5,981 MWh 70 58
P st KR
Diesel oil Litre 2,977 1,631 MWh 32 17
i 7+ KR
Electricity kWh 13,960,570 12,822,568 MWh 13,961 12,823
&7 TR JK FL B
Total energy consumption MWh 14,344 13,214
BEREREE K LB
Energy intensity MWh/RMB Million 10 10
BERE E revenue

KEE,

ARBBEBBA

Notes: 1Bt
1. The above consumption figures’ calculation methods and relevant conversion 1. A ERERBERENFTE R ARHBEREA T

factors refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting
guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
Energy Statistics Manual — Annex 3 Units and Conversion Equivalents issued by
the International Energy Agency.

2. In 2021, the Group's revenue was approximately RMB1,377 million (2020:
approximately RMB1,282 million). This figure is also used to calculate other
intensity data.

For the current business operation scope, the Group will continue
to implement various measures to improve energy efficiency and
strive to achieve the energy consumption intensity target of 10
MWh/RMB Million revenue in 2022.

For Zhuhai Fintech Center, which is scheduled to be put
into operation in 2022, we will closely monitor its electricity
consumption so that we can set energy efficiency target for it in
the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In terms of water consumption, our operation activities do
not involve massive water usage. Our water consumption is
mainly from daily office and life activities. Our water source is
municipal water supply and we do not face any problem or risk in
accessing sufficient water source. Administration department and
engineering department are responsible for daily management and
control of water consumption, collecting and analysing monthly
consumption figures. We are committed to water consumption
reducing and water saving, so timely renewal and modification
of water pipes are carried out to avoid water leakage caused by
pipe rupture, replacing traditional faucets with time-lapse faucets
to reduce waste of water, advocating water-saving information
to employees to improve their water-saving awareness and
encourage them to develop a habit of conscious water use. Water
consumption figures are listed below:

BE HE2REBRE ®@)

KERERAE  RANELBETFE
RERKNIF TEKERBERRET
BERL  EEMRTE - HANEKIR A
R oK AN R SR EGE A KR 7 E A R
BRER - TR IENE ZHKER
HREETREEEES  Seto & AN
FEBM - BB B A REK - BT
SERMERERRERKESE  #@2H
BEWIGERRAORE ¢+ LR B K EE
SEREEGKER  BDARNKERR
B REISEHOKRES RESE8T
EIHEH  SBETEKEBHAKNEE -
RKRAEZERBHMLAT :

Resource type Unit 2020 Intensity unit 2020
ERESR By EEEN
Water (current business Tonne 77,225 74,677  Tonne/RMB 56 58
operation scope) U7 Million revenue
BARK(BRIZGELEHE) WE AR
BEBA
Water (construction in Tonne 20,941 4,935
progress: Zhuhai Fintech M
Center)
BRK (FERPHIKET
S RBHRFR )
Total water consumption Tonne 98,166 79,612  Tonne/RMB 71 62
BRKBE iz Million revenue
PN
BERA

For the current business operation scope, the Group will continue
to adopt water-saving measures and strive to achieve the water
efficiency target of 56 tonnes/RMB Million revenue in 2022.

As for the Zhuhai Fintech Center, which is scheduled to be put into
operation in 2022, we will closely monitor its water consumption
in order to draw up water efficiency targets for it in the future.

In addition, the Group also established OA system to promote
paperless office, achieving paperless operation of office processes
such as document release and process approval. Double-sided
or multi-page printing is encouraged to reduce paper waste. We
post warning signs around printers and copiers to remind staff not
to over-print to avoid unnecessary paper waste. The Group also
advocates the “Clean your plate” initiative to reduce food waste.

HHBARMEBELHRE AREGEEH
TTER AR B IRIEE - & HER20224F
B KB Es B IR56ME ARBEBWA -
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Mo A8 EREREKERER
B A RS A E Rk B AR -

BEN - RE B IR ZOAR ST HETT B (L ¢
R BRANEM O RRBLERARE
RV ACIRIE  HETTEMTE] - Z AEEH
FEATENHAE N EERL R IR - 1R
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R -#HERERERE 8

Emissions Reduction

In order to effectively reduce the emission of various pollutants,
the Group on one hand strictly complies with applicable laws
and regulations; on the other hand, specific pollution preventing
procedures have been formulated to standardise pollutant emission
processes from business operations and office activities, and to
control the discharge and release of exhaust air, greenhouse gas,
sewage and noise.

Each department is responsible for the control and prevention of
the possible water, air and noise pollutions generated during their
operation and office activities. Engineering department takes the
responsibility of regular maintenance and management of the
equipments. Quality management department works together with
qualified testing organisations to monitor pollutions. They will
compare the testing results with standards set by relevant laws
and regulations and report to the environmental management
representative. Once any inconformity is noted, departments
involved have to investigate and solve the problem in accordance
with Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures, and
then propose improvement measures.

In 2021, independent testing organisation has tested the quality
of noise, sewage and exhaust air in Goldpac Tech Park located in
Zhuhai. It indicates a qualified result when comparing with relevant
national standards or local standards in Guangdong Province.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The main sources of the Group’s exhaust air emission come from
fuel combustion, vehicle exhaust and volatile organic compounds
(“VOCs") during operating processes. Based on the Group's
records on fuel and vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the
amount of air pollutant emissions as presented below:

BE HE2REBRE ®@)

REBERFBREIZERMEMRE "=
ERMELBREIFELNEZELEETRD
(VOGs) - RIBEAEBE MR REWMHERIS
o BRI ELHERSRDEERESI RN
T~

Air pollutants Unit 2020
BREEY By
Sulfur oxides (SOx) KG 0.2 0.1
i &L ¥1(SOx) N
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) KG 16 18
RE/LP(NOX) NS
Particulate matter (PM) KG 1 1
SERLY(PM) NI

Note: The above emission figures’ calculation methods and relevant emission factors
refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Group will continue to control the use of vehicles, regularly
inspect and maintain vehicles to reduce fuel waste and optimise
fuel consumption, and strive to achieve emissions target of 2022:
NOx emissions to be controlled within 16 KG, SOx and PM have
similar emissions with 2021.

The Group's operation and office activities, such as fuel
combustion, vehicle fuel usage and electricity consumption,
lead to both direct and indirect carbon emissions. We dedicate
to integrating the concept of environmental protection into our
corporate culture and encourage low-carbon office activities.
During daily operation, we actively advocate employees’ awareness
of environmental protection through documents, slogans,
training, publicity boards and etc. Environmental and occupational
health and safety training is not only a mandatory item for new
employees, but also a regular item for all employees every year. On
2021 World Earth Day, we launched an initiative of “Low-carbon
travel, healthy travel, green travel, civilised travel” to all employees
to propagandise the idea of environmental protection. The
emissions of greenhouse gases are presented as below:

it LN EBFREMF EN AR BRBERER T2 E
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ERWE - M RRHABARERERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

IRE ﬁé&”ﬁﬁ%ﬁ>

Scope of greenhouse gas

Intensity Unit

BEEBN

2020

(CO,e) emissions Unit 2020
BERB(CELLHES)

e E B

Scope I: direct emission Tonne 88 89
HE— - BEHEN A

Scope Il: indirect emission Tonne 11,224 10,312
HE— c EEENR Mg

Note: The above emission figures’ calculation methods and relevant emission factors

refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting guidance
on Environmental KPIs issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Baseline
emission factors of China’s regional power grids for emission reduction projects
in 2019 released by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

The major sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are
direct greenhouse gases emission from LPG and fuel consumption
(Scope 1) and indirect greenhouse gases emission from electricity
consumption (Scope Il). We will continue to control the use of
vehicles and control power consumption through energy saving
measures, so as to achieve emission intensity targets for 2022:
For the current business operation scope, the emission targets for
Scope | and Scope Il are 0.1 tonne/RMB Million revenue and 8
tonnes/RMB Million revenue, respectively.

For the Zhuhai Fintech Center, which is scheduled to be put into
operation in 2022, we will closely monitor its power consumption
so that we can set emission target for it in the future.

In order to meet the emission standards of exhaust air and reduce
carbon emissions, we have developed a series of control measures:

o Upgrading VOCs exhaust gas processing system, the
processing efficiency increase by 40%. Specifically, the device
has the capacity to filter tiny PMs and VOCs are absorbed by
activated carbon. After desorption and catalytic combustion,
VOCs are finally decomposed into non-hazardous gases
and water, and then discharged into the atmosphere. The
desorbed adsorption material can be reused for adsorption
after cooling, which can largely reduce the replacement
frequency of activated carbon;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

o Gradually replacing the high-VOCs printing ink by eco-friendly
UV ink;

o Adopting advanced technologies and processes to reduce
errors and wastes, and improve efficiencies;

o After entering the Tech Park, vehicles must stop and turn off
the engine to reduce exhaust emissions;

o Encouraging employees to choose public transportation;

o Using teleconferencing instead of business travel whenever
possible.

The Group has been treating sewage and effluent according to
wastewater treatment plan made in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to mitigate the impacts on the environment.
The Zhuhai Fintech Center currently under construction is designed
with wastewater treatment facilities, which can handle wasted
water from kitchens and toilets.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Waste management is another key focus for the Group’s
environmental management. Under the requirements set out
in relevant laws and regulations, we published Waste Disposal
Control Procedures which manages the generation, storage,
marking and disposal of wastes, to pursue wastes deduction in
operation activities and to prevent and lower the negative impacts
on environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE2REBRE @)

We compile a detailed list of wastes annually to conduct a
comprehensive review on the waste production and treatment
and submit it to environmental management representative for
approval. Wastes are classified into non-hazardous wastes and
hazardous wastes, while the non-hazardous wastes are further
classified into non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes and recyclable
non-hazardous wastes. Through collaboration among departments,
specific waste management is designed to each type of waste
according to their classifications. Departments where the wastes
are generated account for collection and storage. Administration
department is responsible to contact qualified waste management
contractors for treatment and final disposal of recyclable
non-hazardous wastes and hazardous wastes. For non-recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, they are disposed with the assistance of
the municipal sanitation department contacted by administration
department.

BMEBFRUBRENEE 2HEEER
MEENMEEBR  KARFEEERR

HE REREVWEEEE AREER
MOR—REZDNERERY  —RE
ZY N0 /A A B — AR REZ ) AR @
—REEY - RMARBEEZEDNER B
BERFND THEGE HEEWETH
HHMMEE BEVELFMERELRSE
YEFRE -THHFIAEBEAEELD
BEEMREEASHE HADKk-—REEY
MERBEEVETRENZKEE R
AR] e — AR RE Y - 1T ERER P B A% T IR
REMPTETRIE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE @)

During reporting period, the Group's wastes are mainly recyclable WRARBEARN  AEEEEYW T E AA [
non-hazardous wastes, e.g. leftover materials, wasted packaging W —fEEZEY T ZEYRE2AR - BE
materials, wasted paper and etc.. Hazardous wastes, mainly from ERNBSEYE  -BERHARAAE - GREE
printing process, account for only a small part of total wastes. ¥JR{WEEYREN —/NEn  EEREH

Corporate
Information
BERER

It is estimated that there will be 6 tonnes of used activated carbon in 2022.

Our waste management system, following the 5R principle of ERER - RPN EEMEELRKFTER/Y L
“Reduction, Replace, Reuse, Recycle and Reduce”, allows most of TR TH[MEER BKER - - EYWF %:iL
the materials to be recycled so that environmental impacts were F - BB EBEA - WA FE R ISREL] - A o
significantly reduced. Wastes-related figures are presented as H ¥R SLABEBT A @ 7821 [§ (K EBIE gl
below: WEEFZE REZVEBEEITOT gé*;
Waste type Unit 2020 Intensity Unit 2020 28
BEYER By BEEN o
Fis
Hazardous wastes Wasted ink Tonne 19 21  KG/RMB Million revenue 14 16 ééﬁ
EREREY & i & A AT AREBEBRA
Developer/fixative ~ Tonne 10 9 KG/RMB Million revenue 7 7 5
solution Su®
B EEER I A/ AREBERA °Ts
Wasted rags and Tonne 28 21  KG/RMB Million revenue 20 17 %;u
gloves with ink i
SMBEERMA - M AR/ AREBERA 2
== -
Wasted empty Tonne 7 7  KG/RMB Million revenue 5 5 g
barrel 2
B 1 D/ AREEBKA £
Others (eg. Used Tonne 0.1 5 KG/RMB Million revenue 0.1 4 g
activated carbon) -
Hab (B/EMERSE) W DTS AREBEBRA o
Total hazardous wastes Tonne 64 63 KG/RMB Million revenue 46 49 = g‘bﬁ
fEREEYEE I AR/ AREBERA 5ol
Non-hazardous Recyclable Tonne 271 217 KG/RMB Million revenue 197 169 53 §f‘:‘
wastes g” %’;
— AR R ] B I RFF/ AREEBURA w
Non-recyclable Tonne 16 15 KG/RMB Million revenue 1 11
T a] [B WE AT AREBBRA Sew
Total non-hazardous wastes Tonne 287 231 KG/RMB Million revenue 208 180 %?f
—BEEDEE WA AR/ AREBERA =Ou
Note: There was a significant reduction of Others (eg. Used activated carbon). /& - HthEREZEMARBRIOEREZEREER %
Activated carbon only needs to be replaced about every two years after GABREEHEREFTHNEMFELR R & s u
the upgrade of the exhaust gas processing system. Therefore, there was no 2020F B R MR IE - 2021 F BEERF N 554
activated carbon replaced in 2021 after we replaced activated carbon in 2020. R oo BEF2022F & FE A BEE M R6ME o 2 &r‘”f
g <

Financial
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE2REBRE @)

The Group will continue to implement waste disposal control
procedures, properly dispose of waste, reduce waste by improving
technologies, and strive to achieve 2022 targets: 50 KG hazardous
waste/RMB Million revenue (considering that there might be 6
tonnes of used activated carbon in 2022 as activated carbon needs
to be replaced about every two years, the intensity of hazardous
waste in 2022 will be higher than the intensity in 2021), 208 KG
non-hazardous wastes/RMB Million revenue.

In our operation process, packaging materials are mainly
composed of paper boxes, paper carton boxes, tags, tapes and
fillers. These materials are necessary to prevent the smart secure
payment products from any damage. Packing materials are strictly
forbidden to be discarded randomly, and are regularly recycled by
professional companies.

AEBEHERNTEEYEEZEHNER
HERIBEREY  BBNRE MR E
BYMELS  BHBEIR2022FHEH BZ
TREZYSORT  AREGERA (B
BEEEREENTMEER — X FEaT
20224 & B HE6ME BEVE Mk 0 2022F Bk
BEEYZEESR2021F)  —REEY
2082 T /S ANREFHBRA -

BMELBRETRANBRYHEIERR
e ME S8 BT ER®WE B
RREEELEIXNEMRRBENLR
BEY BRUMBEBEEEE HHmE
ERAETER YR IE -

Packaging type Unit 2020 Intensity Unit 2020
SEMBER By BEEN

Paper box Unit 1,503,200 1,798,325 Unit/RMB Million revenue 1,092 1,403
Hwa &l B/ AEBEERA

Paper carton box Unit 189,438 197,077 Unit/RMB Million revenue 138 154
e & B\ ARBEEERA

Tag Piece 5,673,200 5,536,415 Piece/RMB Million revenue 4,120 4,319
ZH & ®OARBEBRA

Tape Roll 37,589 42,983 Roll/RMB Million revenue 27 34
B4 & B/ AREGERA

Filler Piece 384,670 355,600 Piece/RMB Million revenue 279 277
B i R®OARBEBRA

Green Product REER

As an excellent technology enterprise, the Group actively responds
to the call of the government, undertakes corporate social
responsibility, takes the lead in practicing green and low-carbon
development, increasingly invest in the development of eco-friendly
manufacturing industry, and dedicates to being a green and
low-carbon practitioner in the fintech industry, contributing to
achieving China’s “3060" carbon peaking and carbon neutrality
goals as planned.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In the past 30 years, the Group has been adhering to the
exploration and innovative application of cutting-edge
technologies. We have actively practiced the concept of green
and low-carbon life, leading in the research and development of
“eco-friendly cards” manufactured by eco-friendly materials, such
as recycled materials, biodegradable materials, bio-based materials
and others. The eco-friendly materials used in these cards have
been certified or tested by testing and certification bodies like UL,
TUV, and HTP.

So far, the Group’s eco-friendly cards have passed the certification
of card organisations such as Visa and MC and have several
eco-friendly related patents. We have a number of projects on
eco-friendly cards, for example, LPG green finance card with
Bank of Shanghai, Expo themed bank card with Bank of Beijing,
and low-carbon credit card with Industrial Bank, etc., which have
effectively promoted the practice of green and low-carbon concept
in the field of bank card and were highly recognised by financial
customers.

The eco-friendly cards developed by the Group are in line with
China’s policies of “low carbon”, “plastic ban”, “biodegradable”,
and it is the Group's practice in fulfilling ESG mission. Looking
ahead, green and eco-friendly is still the main melody of the era.
The Group will follow the green demand of the financial market,
pay attention to the green resources and technological innovation,
and continue to explore in the field of eco-friendly and low carbon
as always, so as to achieve a long-term and in-depth sustainable
development.

BE HE2REBRE ®@)

M=% AEE—EHEERERIARIEOE
REAIFER BHRETHBERETEN
B EEMBELHZRS B HEKEEMN
B ATAEMREM R EMEM R FRR
MEINTEENTRR K] - EERR KA
FRAMRRKEME - E&SUL TUV » HTPE
EHRBARERBOFZURFTNARS

BR AEMEREFERBVIsa, / MCEFE
HBREF ESLZEEETRAREN WA
BEEZEEMIEE - fltn REEBH L
HIRITEIT TIPGERER SR F » it 5E
AHAME THE S TERIT R EEE
BITEARBHPEERER TS BH#E
BTHERRESERTFEINERE
I EEEREFNSGERA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

REB-HERE

SBHRE |\

Concerns and Responds for Climate Change

The Group is also concerned with climate change related issues,
constantly identifies and evaluates the risk of climate change on
our business operations, and formulates policies to manage the

identified risks based

Physical risks
Acute risks

Chronic risks

68

on Risk Management Procedures.

These risks are mainly related to extreme
events under climate change (such as super
typhoons, floods, epidemics, etc.) which
may bring risks to the assets of the Group,
affect our ability to operate, make damage
to our reputation and cause loss of business.
Through Business Continuity Management
Procedure, we developed business continuity
plans for the events of non-destructive
and destructive natural disasters to ensure
that our business can continue to operate
and provide uninterrupted service to our
customers.

These risks refer to risks arising from
long-term shifts in climate patterns, such as
chronic heat waves and rising sea level. For
example, an increase in average temperature
would increase the demand for cooling
equipments in data centres and failure to
meet this requirement could adversely affect
the Group's service provision. Thus, we
monitor the risks closely so as to take timely
measures.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE @)

Transition risks 8% B B
Policy and legal The introduction of policies and measures % & B B HE B B A BUR
risks related to carbon peak and carbon neutrality FEERR O EEHAgEREEM
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may bring about legal and regulatory
changes, which may increase the legal
risks faced by the Group. We will continue
to monitor climate change related trends,
policies and regulations to avoid cost
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Market risks The Group will be at risk if it fails to ™WiFEK RITREEEPHGZEE
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keep pace with the growing demand for
green products from its banking and retail
customers. After years of exploration and
innovative application of cutting-edge
technology, the Group has developed
a number of “eco-friendly cards” and
implemented a number of projects, which
largely improve our market attractiveness
and competitiveness, and turn risks into
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Reputation risks As a responsible fintech company, we must  Z & &g EA—XRABEEMNS A

strongly support sustainable development.
If we fail to address the climate change
issues proactively, we will expose to the risk
of losing recognition from our customers
and society. Therefore, we actively monitor
the climate change issues, continuously
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Employees are critical support to our on-going development. We
treat our people well to bring mutual advancement. The Group’s
operations also need to cooperate with the community. Thus, we
proactively contribute to the community and endeavour for mutual
prosperity.

The Group regularly reviews Human Resource Management
Procedure and Staff Manual, which specify the Group’s
requirements and procedures for employment, including
recruitment, dismissal, promotion, remuneration, working hours,
rest periods, diversity and other benefits. Under the principle
of being open, fair and just and merit-based selection, we treat
every candidate equally regardless of their race, ethnicity, colour,
religion, gender, age, region, marital status or disability. However,
child labour is strictly prohibited. We will verify the age of
candidates to avoid child labour. Once we discover that individuals
below the legal working age are hired, the Group will take
immediate action to rectify the situation. The Group also forbids
any form of forced, bonded or forced labour, and no employee
will be required to surrender original identification documents or
lodge deposits as a condition of employment. Candidates need to
pass rigorous written tests and interviews in order to obtain the
offer. Besides specific professional skills and working capabilities,
candidates should be honest, possess a correct working attitude
and a high professional dedication and comply with laws,
regulations and ethics. The Group is committed to creating a
diverse, inclusive, egalitarian and collaborative workplace for
its employees and protecting them from discrimination and
harassment. Any employee who is intimidated, humiliated, bullied,
harassed (including sexual harassment) or discriminated in any
way can report to human resources department or file complaints
directly to the management representative or the general manager.
Upon receiving the above complaints, human resources department
will cooperate with relevant departments to investigate, and the
relevant personnel will be seriously dealt with if the complaint
is true. Similarly, procedures for termination or cancellation of
employment also follow the requirements and procedures stated in
the above documents and comply with the statutory requirements
of the place of operation. Human resources department will
also conduct exit interviews with employees in conjunction with
employees’ department to gain insight on employees’ opinions and
suggestions to ensure the implementation of relevant policies. The
Group treasures every staff, pays attention to staff mind and takes
action to retain talents as early as possible.

The Group’s employment policies comply with all relevant labour
laws and regulations at each operation location. During 2021, the
Group observed no violations of any applicable labour laws and
regulations including child labour and forced labour issues.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, employee-related figures are as follows:

Total number of active employees 1,624
EBEEAH

By gender
B & D

Male

Bt

Female

Eegid

By employment type
REBERES
Direct labour
AIZET

Indirect labour
JERARE T

By age group
REFRARE D
Under 30 years old
DIR3075%

30 to 50 years old
30&508%

Over 50 years old 52
5088 A =

By geographical region
R EE 5

Mainland China

HE A

Other Areas 27
E b (&

928

696

799

825

461

1,111

1,597

BE HE2REBRE ®@)

R2021F12A318 " EEBBEIELOT :

Employee turnover rate 28%
BERKE

By gender
ez E By

Male

5

Female

gegid

By age group
RERAR 2D
Under 30 years old
LH305%

30 to 50 years old
30E505%

Over 50 years old
5055 A

By geographical region
RitES D
Mainland China

Fh B A 3,

Other Areas

H b=

27%

28%

54%

17%

19%

28%

4%
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Achievements of the Group are attributable to the hard-working
of all employees. Therefore, we consider humanistic care being
important by creating an enjoyable working environment and
providing sound payment and harmonious working atmosphere.

Remunerations are determined and adjusted based on factors
including economic conditions, personal experience, performance
assessment and operational results. To motivate employees at
every level to fully reach their potentials, in addition to basic
salaries, we also offer bonuses, allowances, option plans and other
benefits. Employees are entitled to paid leaves, including but not
limited to annual leave, overtime leave, marital leave and maternity
leave, as stated in applicable laws of their working places. Working
hours also complies with local laws and regulation, as well as
the industry norms. Forced labour is prevented within the Group
and we do not encourage employees to work overtime under
normal circumstances, while legal and reasonable subsidies will be
provided to suitable voluntary overtime and special positions.

Statutory benefits are offered to employees under the requirements
of local laws and regulations. Such benefits include insurances
and paying entity’s section of accumulation funds on time. The
Group also arranges physical examinations for all staff every
year and bears all expenses. The physical examinations of 2021
were successfully completed in the fourth quarter. The group
companies convey policies about settling down in local household
to employees and support them on such issue. Furthermore, the
Group distributes festival gifts and organised various staff activities
to enhance the sense of belonging of employees, such as new staff
forum, photography competition, etc.

New Staff forum
T EH

Photography competition
BEAE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Development and Training

The Group emphasises on employee performance and
development, and is committed to enhancing their knowledge
and skills. We encourage and motivate skills and knowledge
improvement so as to offer better products and services to our
customers. Training Management Procedures defines the types
of trainings and standardises the ways and processes of training
participation. Comprehensive internal and external trainings are
provided. Internal trainings include compulsory orientation, job
skills training, improvement training, information security training
and etc.; while external trainings include meetings, courses offered
by various institutions and organisations. Training allowances
are provided accordingly. This year’s trainings, such as safety
awareness training, business etiquette training, improvement and
innovation camp and etc., were held in various ways including
online and offline. Trainees are evaluated at the end of the training
to ensure the effectiveness. In 2021, the Group launched Goldpac
Learning College online, with a total of 284 courses, including
comprehensive courses such as professional literacy, office skills,
leadership, marketing, human resources and project management,
as well as professional courses such as internet and manufacturing.
It also includes courses independently developed by the Group,
such as legal training. Employees can log in Goldpac Learning
College anytime and anywhere to find their favourite courses
according to their preferences and needs.

Improvement and innovation camp

EER e

Goldpac Learning College
2 HEIE ) ZE T
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Data on employee training in 2021 are as follows:

Total

HwES

By gender

e 3k oy
Male

B

Female

Z

By employment type
RESERE S
Direct labour
RIZEE T
Indirect labour
JERIEET

According to Management Method of Performance Appraisal,
employees are assessed on a regular basis, that is, performance
appraisal, to review their work progress, quality and effectiveness,
so as to set further improvement plans and better goals in the
future. Performance appraisals are carried out every month,
quarter and year and its contents should be specific and
quantified. The results serve as a vital reference in deciding salary,
promotion and training opportunities, as well as a platform to
strengthen communications between department and employees.
In addition, benefiting from a complete promotion procedure,
the Group’s management team is able to improve its overall
quality and competence. A broader platform could be provided
to qualified employees through comprehensive assessments under
the principles of being open, fair and just. Meanwhile, the Group
becomes energetic with positive competitions which also lay a
good foundation of greater progresses in the future.
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20215 EEFIIBBEBEMNT

Percentage
of employees Average training
trained hours (hours)
SEEELTES
ZilEERS L (/NEF)
91% 11.73
92% 12.50
89% 10.69
91% 9.43
90% 13.95
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to investing continuously in occupational
health and safety. The Group has obtained OHSAS18001 (upgraded
to I1SO45001) Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Certificate since 2012, and has successfully renewed the certificate.
The Group issues Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual as a general policy, together with other
subordinated documents as specific procedures. Our occupational
health and safety related policy complies with all applicable
laws, regulations and standards, aiming to improve the Group’s
management on occupational health and safety, manage risks and
mitigate the operational impacts on employees and create a safe
and harmonious environment.

We encourage employees to engage in the management of
occupational health and safety and work together to establish
a safe workplace. The Group has appointed the management
representative to implement the management of occupational
health and safety. Employee representatives are also selected to act
as a communication bridge with management to reflect employees’
opinions about matters related to occupational health and
safety. In addition, there are regular internal monitors by quality
management team to ensure the effectiveness and compliance
of the health and safety management system, operational
controls and emergency preparation control procedures. To
promote occupational health and safety education, the Group
strictly implements employee safety training. During the year, we
organised a series of occupational safety training such as fire drill,
epidemic prevention training and emergency evacuation drill.

There was no work-related fatality occurred in the past 3 years
and there was no lost day recorded due to work injury. Facing the
epidemic, the Group responded quickly, and effectively protected
the health and safety of employees via making detailed prevention
and control plans, providing epidemic prevention guidelines to
employees, purchasing and distributing protective tools, and
strictly disinfecting operation and office sites. We constantly
tracked the changing situations of the epidemic, updating and
implementing necessary health control measures in real time. We
complied with the government’s epidemic prevention and control
requirements, and implemented the epidemic prevention and
control measures for trucks entering and leaving Guangdong and
Hong Kong to ensure the safety of employees and goods. We also
actively cooperated with the community to facilitate employees’
vaccination against COVID-19.

BE HE2REBRE ®@)

BEEEZE

AEBRNFER A ABERREL S
H2012F #8 - A& B ES I E A I & B
OHSAS18001 (3R B F+ 4% A1S045001 ) B %
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The Group is committed to growing together with the community.
We understand the importance of community engagement and
encourage our employees to participate in community activities to
strengthen our relationship with the local community. As a fintech
company, the Group is also actively taking social responsibilities
while providing quality services and products. Our smart products
and services not only serve for people’s livelihood in the fields of
social security, transportation, medical care, etc., but also promote
the sustainable development of charity and philanthropy and
spread positive energy. The Group have participated in charity
and donations many times to grow and progress with the society.
Over the years, we have actively engaged in poverty alleviation,
education assistance, anti-epidemic relief, public facilities
construction, voluntary services, etc., and participated in charitable
donation projects in several cities such as Zhuhai, Lushui, Yingde,
Yangchun, and Guangzhou to practice social responsibilities and
promote social development.

In addition, the Group has always attached great importance to
the cooperation between industry, university and research, fully
tapping the resources of scientific research teams, promoting
the commercialisation of scientific research achievements, and
realising cutting-edge technologies and talent reserve. At present,
the Group has established partnerships with domestic colleges
and universities on projects and talent trainings, including joint
laboratory of Internet of Things with Wuhan University, talent
training programs with Zhuhaishi New Thinking Secondary
Vocational School and Zhongshan Torch Polytechnic, teaching and
practice base for Jinan University, Beijing Normal University Zhuhai
Campus and other colleges and universities.

In response to collaboration and paired assistance between the
eastern and western regions, giving full play to the important
role of labour cooperation in paired assistance, the Group actively
responded to the call of government to engage in the labour
cooperation between Zhuhai and Zunyi. We went to Fenggang and
Wuchuan in Zunyi, studied the situation of their labour force and
employment demand to provide targeted assistance, and reached
a preliminary cooperation framework with two local secondary
vocational colleges in talent training and talent delivery.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the epidemic period, the Group actively cooperated with
epidemic prevention and control works of the local communities
and undertook the epidemic prevention responsibility. In addition
to doing well in our own epidemic prevention and investigation,
we also gave great support to the community team.

By leveraging our experience and expertise, we offer supports in
a wide range of areas in infrastructure construction, technology
development, education, and etc., fostering the development of
the community and giving back to our society.

BE HE2REBRE ®@)

RIEHHE  AEEXHEABILENOR
BIETE BEAEHERET B THK
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Basketball match organised by local community Supporting the community in epidemic prevention
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BE HE2REBRE @)

ESG CONTENT INDEX

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
BEIEERE

ESGHREARRGI

Section/Remarks

B HE

Governance Structure

BRI

Reporting Principles
E R R A
Reporting Boundary
EdREE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IRER EFEH  —REBERBREXRERS

Governance Structure
ERRE

Stakeholder Communication and
Engagement

EY D S =) i
Materiality Assessment
BEEZMHEENG
Reporting Principles

E R R A

Reporting Period and Scope
WMEBEREE

Section/Remarks

BEHE

A. Environmental

Environmental Management
Emissions Reduction

(b) compliance with relevant laws and  Waste Reduction and Recycling

IRIEEE
B HE R
93
B 851

A B
Aspect A1 Emissions
BE A1 B
General Disclosure Information on:
(a) the policies; and
regulations that have a significant impact  Appendix 1
on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RRIRE BRAERMREREHM  MKRTHAOHES -
FENBERREYNELESTH
(@ HER: K
by ETFHETABEAZENHEEZEZRR
ey & xL
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions

data.
PERR & K8 R AR B HE B -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE HE2REBRE ®@)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EEH  —REBERERERER

Section/Remarks

BHBE

KPI A1.2

KPI'A1.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI'A1.5

KPI'A1.6

Aspect A2
B A2

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (FBE) katRHEEE (HE2) AEREENRE
(LB E) R (mER) BE (MABEEEM -
BIEFETE) ©

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
EXEEEZEYDES CAME) & (@Ef)
BRE(MAGESEN BERMETE) ©

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
MELBEREYRE AMETHE )&@D )
BE(MAGESEMN  FERMAHE

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

M FAT B B R R RE
HRE 28R

AELERAER

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HAREEEREEEEMON L - RIEMATET
VEBEEERAERELEZARNMA SR -

Use of Resources

BERER

Policies on the efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER(BERIR - KEEMEREME) K
ﬁ o
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B HE R

Waste Reduction and Recycling

& IR EE

Waste Reduction and Recycling

TRIR R R

Emissions Reduction

B HE R
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EEH  —REBERERERER

KPI' A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI'A2.5

Aspect A3
JEEA3

General Disclosure

— MR I BR

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RENESHEEZER REEZER(WE - Fk
) EEE (UNTHETFRERAE) REE (MAE
ESBA  BERMTHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.qg.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BERERKERTE (WASESEN  BERME

#) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
RPTEI L WREREM MR BE R REDELR
TR P EREREY 2P BR:

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

fie 3t SR EE B /KR £ AT A ] - A KPR AT 32
BVRK S B R R AESE L B IRATERIEY T 5R -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

R mABEEMENEE (UEFE) & (1nE
R)BEESBMHLE -

The Environment and Natural Resources

RERRXARER

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

MEZETAHRRERRAEREREATENK

o

Eﬁo
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Section/Remarks

BE B

Resources Consumption

BRER

Resources Consumption

BRER

Resources Consumption

BRER

Resources Consumption

BRER

Waste Reduction and Recycling

BRI

Environmental Management
Resources Consumption
Emissions Reduction
RIREE
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RIE

HEREARRE @

e

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Remarks @5
IEGR FE -MEBERBRENLE BE gEx
524

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities  Environmental Management e
on the environment and natural resources and  Resources Consumption S Sum
the actions taken to manage them. Emissions Reduction E2E

M EBEHHRBERRARERNEATER RIREE

RRERBHETENTE - BRfER 25
D B Sk
Aspect A4 Climate Change E4n
[EEA4 RIRE L

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

Concerns and Responds for
Climate Change

— MR FHAREHCLERAIGEEHBETAELELENE BIREEL
Kﬁﬂ%*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ’]ﬂ(ﬁ
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related  Concerns and Responds for

issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
HABKERAEEEHBTAEEZENEARIK
HEEE  REHTH-

Climate Change
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EEH  —REBERERERER

B. Social
B. &

Employment and Labour Practices

EBRERETIER
Aspect B1

JE ™ B1

General Disclosure

— AR 4% 5R

KPI'B1.1

KPI'B1.2

Employment

ER=

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

ERAFTHNRARE BERTH - TERS - BRE

TEH#e Lot REKUREMESRRER

H

(@) EE: Kk

(b) BTFHETABEAZZNHBEEZERN
By & #E -

Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

BRI ERAL (MR RHEE)  Ficdn R
MEESHWEELE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

B FRANMREDNWEERKLE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER -EEH  —REBERBERERER

Section/Remarks

BHBE

Aspect B2
[Em B2

General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Aspect B3
[EmEB3

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Health and Safety
REHEZ2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occu-pational

hazards.

FHRHLZ2IHERBAREREEBEBENLRE

EH

(@ BE: R

(b) BFHBETABEATZENHEBEEZLR
BIE)E# o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years including
the reporting year.

BEZF (BRERFE)SFRAITHNDARRK
L o

Lost days due to work injury.

RAIBEATIERH -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PR ER B R R B e 245 5 - A RABB R
TRERITE -

Development and Training

B KIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.
BRARTEESRIT LIERE N MB N R MEER -
Rt Z SRS -
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Occupational Health and Safety
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EEH  —REBERERERER

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Aspect B4
JE E B4

General Disclosure

— AR 4% 5R

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2

Operating Practices
EEEH

Aspect B5

[& EBS

General Disclosure

— R R

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
BMRIREERMN(NERERRE hREEE)
gSomXillEERA L -

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
RERMEEEERE D  BREETAXINF
B RF B -

Labour Standards

TR

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

BB IEETHEGSTH

(@ HER: K

(b) BEBFHBETABEATZENHEBEZLR
{5189 & # o

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
AR ST R E A B AR R E T RGRGIS T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

R TE B IR E RTINS E IR A BB S PT ERER A 2
B e

Supply Chain Management
HEHEER

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHERNRE T ERREBER
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RE -HERERBRE @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER -EEH  —REBERBERERER

Section/Remarks

BHBE

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3

KPI B5.4

Aspect B6
[T B6

General Disclosure

—RIWE

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

miwmE D HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

MG AR HERNED - mERTARBIED
BHEREE  ARMBERITRERTE-

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M B EENFEEEGERSNREI LG AR
BB - ARAMBERITRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

il it 7 SRR L E B S (2 (2 2 IRIRE mn R RTSH9
ol - ARMBEEARITRERTE -

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to prod-ucts

and services provided and methods of redress.

FRAMREHERMRENEREERZE  BE 17

KLEMEEEURBRAEN

(@ HR: Rk

(b) BEBFHBETABEATZENHEBERZLR
BIE &R o

EHEREEZRERAT

Supply Chain Management
HEHEE R

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

Supply Chain Management

HEEEIE

Supply Chain Management

HEEEIE

Product and Service Quality
Information Security and Privacy
Appendix 1
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EEH  —REBERERERER

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Aspect B7
[E ™ B7

General Disclosure

— R E

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEXCDEXEMERTER2EEFEIEHMA
EEENER A

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with.

EEBANE®RMRGORFEE ARBETTL -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
B g RRE MBI ERE AN BRI -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
i E 2 e T B2 N Em @R fF -

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

i 8 B & ERHRE RALBBUR - A RIBBRTT
NEERTTE

Anti-corruption

k&S

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
BRAIEFE - $1R - MFERARES
(@ BXR: K

(b) BTHETABEAZENHEBEEIRZENR
ey B HYL o
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Product and Service Quality
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Product and Service Quality
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER -EEH  —REBERBERERER

Section/Remarks

BHBE

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

KPI B7.3

Community
HE
Aspect B8
[Em B8

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHBTASIEHBEERHVEELENE
R AARMT B E RFRER -

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

M BRI R BBIET - ARBERTRER
& °

Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff.
fitmEERE TRHENREFEI -

Community Investment

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BN E2ERTHREEMELETEMNRR
HEBKEHGE R RN EHE -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

BETERERE (HE BREFH LIFXK.
f@f b - BBE) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIHRBEMBAER (NEERER) -

EHEREEZRERAT

Anti-corruption

REB

Anti-corruption

REB

Anti-corruption

REB

Community Investment
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Community Investment

HESE

Community Investment
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B HBREARE

APPENDIX 1
LIST OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS WITH
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The following table presents the list including but not limited to
the laws and regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant
impacts on the Group.

GENERAL

Constitution of the PRC

Civil Code of the PRC

Criminal Law of the PRC

Company Law of the PRC

PRC tax laws

The Basic Law of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region of the PRC

Companies Ordinance

Inland Revenue Ordinance

LISTING

Listing Rules
Securities and Futures Ordinance
Rules of Securities and Futures (Listing on Stock Markets)

OPERATION ISSUES

Information security and privacy

Guidelines for the Supervision of Information Technology
Outsourcing Risks in Banking and Financial Institutions

Guidelines for the Administration of Outsourcing Risks in Banking
and Financial Institutions

Cybersecurity Law of the PRC

Data Security Law of the PRC

Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC

Patent Law of the PRC

Copyright Law of the PRC

Trademark Law of the PRC

Regulations on Customs Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

Card organisation

Rules and guidelines on the qualification certifications,
quality control certifications, security management for
product manufacturing and personalisation enterprises

PCI Card Production Physical Security Requirements
PCI Card Production Logical Security Requirements
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE @)

Product and service quality

Law of the PRC on Work Safety

Product Quality Law of the PRC

Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of
Production License for Industrial Products

Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes

Advertisement Law of the PRC

Regulation on the Administration of Outdoor
Advertising Facilities Recruitment and Establishment
in Special Economic Zone of Zhuhai

Specification for Identification Code and
Card Number of Bank Card Issuer

Specification for Format and Use of Bank Card
Magnetic Stripe Information

Anti-corruption

Law of the PRC Against Unfair Competition

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ISSUES

Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes

Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
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Atmospheric Pollution
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Pollution From
Environmental Noise
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National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste

EMPLOYEE AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

Labour Law of the PRC

Labour Contract Law of the PRC

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Treatment of Infectious Diseases

Social Insurance Law of the PRC

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour

Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours of
Workers and Staff

Labour Relations Ordinance

Employment Ordinance
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group is specialised in
delivering embedded software, secure payment products and A.l.
financial self-service kiosks for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide date processing, system platforms
and other total solutions for customers in a wide business range
including finance, government, healthcare, transportation and
retails. The Group is the only secure payment products supplier
in the PRC certified by all six of the world-leading credit card
organisations of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American
Express, JCB and Diners Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier, the
Group is actively involved in drafting and formulating industrial
standards and criteria. Driven by customers’ diversified demands
and evolving technologies in innovation, the Group watches
the cutting-edge technologies trends with the closest interests,
covering digital currencies, A.l., mobile payment, loT, to reinforce
the Group’s leading industrial position and boost the whole
industry’s evolution. Motivated by the strong R&D aptitudes and
affluent practical experiences, the Group was actively involved
in numerous significant industrial events and projects, including
China’s secure and reliable financial IC card chip promotion
project, the first EMV (Europay, MasterCard and VISA) projects
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the first provincial social
security card project, the first financial social security card
project, the first citizen card project and the first healthcare card
project in Mainland China. Adhering to the spirit of "Virtue,
Innovative, Efficiency and Cooperation” and leveraging its
leading technologies, preeminent qualities and premium service,
the Group is fully engaged in promoting a wider and in-depth
Fintech application. At the same time, inspired by the Chinese
government’s “Belt and Road” initiative, the Group is now
continuously expanding its international market and extending its
superior solutions and services to a wider geographical area and
delivering convenient, secure and easy payment experiences to
people around the globe.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2021 are set out

in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 244 to
page 249 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 173 and 174 of this Annual
Report.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2020: HK10.0 cents) and a
special dividend of HK4.0 cents (2020: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 has been
proposed by the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2021, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 12 to page 29 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 17 May 2022, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 May 2022. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
12 May 2022 to Tuesday, 17 May 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 2 June
2022. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 6 June 2022 to Wednesday, 8 June 2022, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed
dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Tuesday, 17 May 2022, the dividends will be paid on
Thursday, 30 June 2022 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Wednesday, 8 June 2022.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEESRE @)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i) The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production of financial payment
products and data processing. The consumer financial services
industry is characterised by rapid launches of new products
and services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards or other relevant
products, such as the Group’s customers, may face difficulty
in anticipating changes in consumer tastes, preferences and
requirements and designing financial products to meet such
changes, which could lead to a lower demand for financial
payment products and in turn decrease these organisations’
demand for the products and services, which may adversely
affect the financial results of the Group.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(ii) As a supplier to financial institutions and

government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions providers, which the Group must satisfy
in order to be eligible to supply products and services to
these customers. For example, as required by the Group’s
financial institution customers, the Group has obtained
certifications from all six of the leading worldwide payment
card organisations (VISA, MasterCard, American Express,
China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club) with respect to the
Group’s card manufacturing and personalisation services.
To maintain such certifications, the Group is subject to
rigorous periodic audits by these payment card organisations
to review the Group’s compliance with their standards and
criteria. The Group makes significant investments in order
to meet these standards and criteria, which vary depending
on the organisation or body, including investments required
to satisfy changes adopted from time to time by these
organisations and bodies in their respective standards
and criteria. Further investments to meet these standards
and criteria may be costly, and if the Group is unable to
continue to meet these standards and criteria, the Group
may become ineligible to provide products and services that
have constituted in the past an important part of the Group’s
revenue and profitability.

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will
not produce the same or similar products or products of a
better quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services
at the same or lower prices than the prices at which the
Group’s products and services are provided.
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(iv)

94

The Group's competitors may also react more quickly to
new or emerging technologies or changes in customer
preferences. In addition, the Group may face greater than
expected downward pricing pressure as a result of possible
price competition by competitors seeking to stimulate
demand in order to maintain or increase market share. Such
competition could adversely affect the Group’s results of
operations and business prospects. Any adverse changes in
the Group’s competitive environment could cause a reduction
in the sales quantity, its market share, or the sales price of
its products, which would lower the Group’s profitability.
As a supplier to the major financial institutions in China,
the Group’s performance and profitability may be adversely
affected if its customers, when faced with operational
difficulties and decreasing profit margins, seek to demand
more favourable trading terms from the Group in relation
to price and credit period. The Group’s performance and
profitability will also be adversely affected if any of its
customers faces cost control or cash flow problems due to
such operational difficulties.

Fluctuations in consumer spending

and financial services in the PRC may
significantly affect the Group’s business
and financial performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy. The
Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy will
continue to grow at historical rates, or that it will not grow
at all, and any slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy
or consumer spending or consumer banking may adversely
affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and growth prospects.
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(v) Adverse changes in China’s economic,

political and social conditions as well

as laws and government policies, may
adversely affect the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in China differ
from those in more developed countries in many respects,
including structure, government involvement, level of
development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange,
capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation
and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform
and opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a
planned economy. In recent years, the PRC government has
been reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform and measures emphasising the utilisation
of market forces in the development of the PRC economy
in the past three decades. These reforms have resulted in
significant progress in economic growth and social prospects.
Economic reform measures, however, may be adjusted,
modified or applied inconsistently from industry to industry
or across different regions of the country. The Group cannot
predict whether the resulting changes will have any adverse
effect on the Group’s current or future business, financial
condition or results of operations. Despite these economic
reforms and measures, the PRC government continues to
play a significant role in regulating industrial development,
allocation of natural and other resources, production, pricing
and management of currency, and there can be no assurance
that the PRC government will continue to pursue a policy of
economic reform or that the direction of reform will continue
to be market friendly.
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The Group’s ability to successfully expand its business
operations in the PRC depends on a number of factors,
including macro-economic and other market conditions, and
credit availability from lending institutions. Stricter credit or
lending policies in the PRC may affect the Group’s customers’
consumer credit or consumer banking business, and may
also affect the Group’s ability to obtain external financing,
which may reduce its ability to implement its expansion
strategies. The Group cannot assure that the PRC government
will not implement any additional measures to tighten
credit or lending standards, or that, if any such measure is
implemented, it will not adversely affect the Group’s future
results of operations or profitability. Demand for the Group’s
goods and services and its business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected by the
following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;

J changes in laws, regulations, and administrative
directives or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation
or deflation;

o changes in the rate or method of taxation; and

J Emergency lockdowns due to public health emergencies.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which
are beyond the Group’s control. Although China’s COVID-19
epidemic has been effectively controlled by the prevention
and control strategy of “Both Imported Cases and Spreading
within the City should be Prevented”, the epidemic has
brought about an impact on China’s economic development,
and the government has implemented regular prevention
and control measures, which may continue to have a certain
impact on the Group’s business development, but temporarily
will not constitute a significant impact.
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(vi) The Group’s business may be adversely

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group face competition from new payment technologies,
which could reduce the demand for financial cards as a
payment method. If there are any new payment technologies
which will reduce the demand for financial card products
or other new products the Group may introduce from time
to time, including new products arising from the Group's
research and development activities, the Group may
experience material and adverse effects on its business,
financial condition and results of operations.

(vii)The Group’s adoption of contract-based

arrangements and/or structures in certain
lines of businesses brings about certain
risks

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Risks relating to
the Contractual Arrangement” under the section headed
“Information on Contractual Arrangement” in the Report of
Directors.

Information on the Contractual Arrangement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Group dated
8 February 2021, UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) (the
“WFOE") has entered into the VIE Agreements with Zhirong
Financial Services (the “OPCO") and/or Mr. Xian Jun (the
“PRC Equity Owner”) on 8 February 2021. Through the
following agreements (the “VIE Agreements”), the Group
was able to exercise 100% control over the OPCO in
substance notwithstanding the absence of legal ownership of
the company.
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Particulars of the OPCO and its registered
owners and the WFOE

The OPCO is a limited liability company established and
subsisting under the laws of the PRC. Pursuant to the
VIE Agreements entered into between the OPCO, its
registered shareholders, namely the PRC Equity Owner,
and the WFOE, the WFOE was allowed to exercise
control of and enjoy economic benefits generated from
the OPCO.

The PRC Equity Owner is a nephew of each of Mr. Lu
Run Ting and Mr. Lu Runyi. Mr. Lu Run Ting is the
Chairman, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and Mr. Lu Runyi is an
executive Director of the Company, and therefore, the
PRC Equity Owner is a deemed connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The WFOE is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established and subsisting under the laws of the
PRC. The WFOE is principally engaged in technical
services, technical development, technical consultation,
technology exchange, technology transfer and
technology promotion. As at 31 December 2021, the
entire equity interest of the WFOE is owned by the
Company.

Description of OPCO’s business

The OPCO is principally engaged in (i) computer
software and hardware, (ii) research and development
in network technology, and (iii) information service
platform for online data processing and transactions
processing services as well as information service
businesses (the “Restricted Business”, and collectively,
the “Subject Business”). The OPCO has obtained the
Value-added Telecommunication Business Operation
Licence (“VAT Licence”) under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC to operate the Restricted
Business.
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Summary of the major terms of the underlying
contracts of the Contractual Arrangement (the
“VIE Agreements”)

A summary of the terms of the VIE Agreements is set
out below.

(1) The Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE; and

(i) the OPCO.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until all of the
PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the OPCO
is transferred to the WFOE and/or its designated
nominee in accordance with the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement. The WFOE may at any time
terminate the Exclusive Technological Consultation
and Services Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the OPCO and the PRC
Equity Owner. The OPCO has no right to terminate
the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement on its own initiative.

Major terms: The OPCO shall engage the WFOE
on an exclusive basis to provide technological
consultation and services, including but not limited
to consulting services on company management
and business strategy; website design, design,
installation, debugging and maintenance services
for computer network systems; system integration,
system maintenance, server maintenance,
database support and software services; and other
related services at the OPCQO’s request.
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Fee determination: The service fee shall be paid
on an annual basis and calculated by deducting
all costs and expenses approved by the WFOE
from the revenue generated by the OPCO for
the relevant financial year. Furthermore, the
WEFOE shall be entitled to adjust the service fee,
taking into account the scope of services as well
as the operating conditions and development
needs of the OPCO, without the OPCO’s consent.
The WEFOE shall fix the service fee taking into
account the complexity and difficulty of the
services provided by the WFOE, the time incurred
by the WFOE's employees for the provision of
the services, the actual services and commercial
value of the services provided by the WFOE, and
the prevailing market rates for the same type of
services.

Intellectual property rights: The WFOE shall enjoy
exclusively the rights, interests and intellectual
property arising from the performance of
the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement, including but not limited
to copyrights, trademarks, patents, technology
secrets and trade secrets, irrespective of whether
they are developed by the WFOE or the OPCO,
unless the relevant government authority requires
such rights to be held by the OPCO or if such
rights are the prerequisites for the OPCO to renew
its operating licence and permit.
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(2) The Exclusive Business Co-operation

Agreement
Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i)  the OPCO; and
(iii)  the PRC Equity Owner.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until the
OPCO is dissolved in accordance with the PRC
laws. The WFOE may extend the term of the
Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement before
expiry. The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner shall
have no right to terminate the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement before expiry. The WFOE
may at any time terminate the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the OPCO and the PRC
Equity Owner.

Major terms: Unless prior written consent has
been obtained from the WFOE or its designated
nominee(s), the OPCO shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially
adversely affect the assets, business, personnel,
obligations, rights or operation of the OPCO,
including but not limited to: (i) carrying out or
conducting any activities or operating the OPCO
in a manner that is beyond the OPCO’s usual
and ordinary scope of business; (ii) selling to,
acquiring from or otherwise disposing to any
third party any assets or rights (including but not
limited to any intellectual property) worth more
than RMB100,000; and (iii) assigning any rights
and obligations of the OPCO under the Exclusive
Business Co-operation Agreement to any third

party.
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The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner shall accept
and strictly implement the suggestions and
instructions provided by the WFOE from time to
time on matters such as employment and dismissal
of employees, daily operation and management,
and the financial management system of the
OPCO. The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner
shall elect or appoint persons designated by the
WFOE to serve as directors (or executive directors)
and supervisors of the OPCO in accordance with
the procedures prescribed by laws, regulations
and the OPCO’s articles of association, and shall
procure the election and appointment of such
persons designated by the WFOE as the chairman
(if there is a board of directors), general manager,
chief financial officer and other members of
the senior management of the OPCO. The PRC
Equity Owner shall sign a power of attorney to
irrevocably authorise the WFOE to exercise all his
shareholder’s rights in the OPCO on his behalf (the
“Irrevocable Power of Attorney”). The WFOE
may in its sole discretion designate a nominee to
exercise such shareholders’ rights granted under
the Irrevocable Power of Attorney.
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(3) The Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i) the PRC Equity Owner; and

(iii) the OPCO.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until all of the
PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the OPCO
is transferred to the WFOE and/or its designated
nominee in accordance with the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement. Notwithstanding, the WFOE
may at any time terminate the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the PRC Equity Owner
and the OPCO. Neither the PRC Equity Owner nor
the OPCO shall have the right to terminate the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement on his/its own
initiative.

Major terms: The PRC Equity Owner unconditionally
and irrevocably granted the WFOE an exclusive
right to, to the extent permissible under the PRC
laws, purchase or nominate any third party to
purchase, on one or more occasions, all or part
of the PRC Equity Owner's equity interest in the
OPCO. The purchase price shall be the lower of: (i)
the actual amount contributed by the PRC Equity
Owner to acquire the registered capital of the
OPCO; or (ii) the lowest price permissible under
the PRC laws (the “Permissible Minimum Price”)
(Note 1).
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Unless with the prior written consent of the
WFOE, neither the PRC Equity Owner nor the
OPCO shall assign or transfer any of his/its rights
and obligations under the Exclusive Purchase Right
Agreement. The obligations under the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement shall be binding on the
PRC Equity Owner, the OPCO and any of his/its
successors, assignees and transferees. Upon prior
written notice given to the PRC Equity Owner,
the WFOE may, to the extent permissible under
the PRC laws, assign all or any of its rights and
obligations under the Exclusive Purchase Right
Agreement to any third party.

Note 1: As advised by Jincheng Tongda & Neal (the “PRC Legal
Advisers”), under the PRC laws, there is no legal requirement
on the value of the Permissible Minimum Price. The Permissible
Minimum Price is to be agreed between the parties, and for
illustration purpose, it can be as low as RMB1. Nevertheless,
if the Group is to acquire all the equity interest in the OPCO
(assuming there is no restriction on foreign investment) and if
the consideration/equity transfer income for the equity interest
of the OPCO received by the PRC Equity Owner is regarded as
too low and without any reasonable ground, pursuant to the
Measures for the Administration of Individual Income Tax on
Equity Transfer Income (for Trial Implementation)* (f% # 2 2
FRSEAFTISBLE B #1104 (F197))), the tax authority may assess
such equity transfer income and charge 20% tax thereof.
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Undertaking and covenants: The PRC Equity
Owner undertook (inter alia) that, prior to the
exercise of the exclusive purchase right by the
WFOE or its designated nominee to acquire all
of the equity interest in the OPCO, he shall not,
without prior written consent from the WFOE or
its designated nominee: (i) increase or reduce the
OPCO'’s registered capital or otherwise change
the registered capital structure of the OPCO;
(ii) procure the OPCO to enter into or carry on
any transactions or actions that will materially
adversely affect the assets, responsibilities,
operations, equity, and other legal rights of the
OPCO (except those which are in its usual and
ordinary course of business or those disclosed to
and with the prior written consent of the WFOE),
(iii) sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose
of any legal or beneficial interest in the OPCO’s
equity, or allow any other security interest to
be placed on it, or procure the shareholders’
meetings of the OPCO to approve these acts.

In addition, the PRC Equity Owner and the OPCO
jointly and severally undertook that, prior to
the exercise of the exclusive purchase right and
acquisition of all of the equity interest in the
OPCO by the WFOE or its designated nominee,
the OPCO shall not, without written consent from
the WFOE or its designated nominee commit
certain acts, including but not limited to (i)
entering into any transaction that will or may have
a material adverse effect on the OPCO’s assets,
responsibilities, operations, equity and other legal
rights (other than in its usual and ordinary course
of business, or prior disclosure has been made and
written consent has been given by the WFOE); (ii)
distributing dividends or equity entitlements in
any form to its shareholders; and (iii) dissolving
or liquidating (unless mandatorily required by the
PRC laws).
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(4) The Equity Pledge Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i) the PRC Equity Owner; and

(iii) the OPCO.

Duration: Effective upon the Equity Pledge
Agreement being duly executed and registered
by the relevant administrative authority and
shall remain binding until the WFOE’s written
confirmation of the discharge by the PRC Equity
Owner and the OPCO of all their obligations
under the Exclusive Technological Consultation
and Services Agreement, the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement, the Loan Agreement,
the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement and the
Irrevocable Power of Attorney (the “Contractual
Obligations”).

Major terms: The PRC Equity Owner agreed to
pledge all of his equity interest in the OPCO
and any interests arising therefrom during the
term of the Equity Pledge Agreement in favour
of the WFOE to secure the due performance of
the Contractual Obligations and as guarantee
for all the representations, undertakings and/
or warranties made to the WFOE by the PRC
Equity Owner or the OPCO under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Services
Agreement, the Exclusive Business Co-operation
Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement and the Irrevocable
Power of Attorney.
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(5) The Spousal Consent Letter

Date:

Parties:

8 February 2021

Ms. Zhao (the spouse of the PRC Equity
Owner)

Major terms: Ms. Zhao unconditionally and
irrevocably agreed, confirmed and undertook that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

she does not possess any rights or
entitlements to the equity interest of the
OPCO;

all the equity interest held by the PRC Equity
Owner in the OPCO and all the benefits
derived therefrom shall not form part of the
matrimonial property between her and the
PRC Equity Owner;

the performance, amendments, termination
and execution by the PRC Equity Owner of
the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Exclusive
Business Co-operation Agreement, the
Irrevocable Power of Attorney and the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement (the
“Transaction Documents”) did not require
her authorisation or consent;

she shall sign all necessary documents and
take all necessary actions to ensure the due
performance of the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time); and

if she shall acquire any equity interest in the
OPCO for any reason, she shall be bound by
and comply with the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time), and upon
the WFOE's request, she shall sign a series
of documents essentially with the same form
and content as the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time).
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(6) The Loan Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE; and

(i) the PRC Equity Owner.

Duration: The term of the loan granted under the
Loan Agreement shall commence from the date of
the Loan Agreement for five years, which shall be
automatically renewed for another five years and
a further five years after expiration of each period
of automatic renewal.

Major terms: The WFOE shall provide to the PRC
Equity Owner a non-interest bearing loan in the
sum of RMB10,000,000, and the PRC Equity
Owner shall accept such loan in accordance with
the Loan Agreement. Such loans will be used
for the PRC Equity Owner’s contribution to the
paid-up capital of the OPCO. The loan will become
due and payable upon the WFOE's demand under
any of the following circumstances:

(i)  the PRC Equity Owner is dead, or has limited
or no civil capacity;

(i)  the PRC Equity Owner engages in any
criminal acts or is involved in any criminal
activities;

(iiiy  failure of the PRC Equity Owner to repay
any debts owed by him or taking up of any
material personal debts which may affect
his ability to repay the loans under the Loan
Agreement; or
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(iv) the WFOE gives written notice to the PRC
Equity Owner in accordance with the Loan
Agreement to exercise its right to purchase
the equity interest in the OPCO to the extent
permissible under the PRC laws.

Dispute resolution clauses

The VIE Agreements are governed by and will be
construed in accordance with the PRC laws. Any dispute
arising from the VIE Agreements between the parties
should first be resolved through negotiation. In case the
dispute cannot be resolved within 30 days, any party
may submit the said dispute to the Zhuhai Arbitration
Commission* (/8 {H&FH Z & €)in accordance with its
arbitration rules. The arbitrators may award remedies
over the equity interest or assets of the OPCO, grant
injunctive relief (e.g. mandatory transfer of assets) and/
or order the winding up of the OPCO. The results of
the arbitration shall be final and binding. When the
arbitral award is granted, any party can apply for its
enforcement in any courts of competent jurisdictions
such as courts in Hong Kong, the PRC and locations
where the principal assets of the WFOE or the OPCO
are located.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangement

The consolidated total revenue of the OPCO for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMBO.7 million. The consolidated total assets and net
assets of the OPCO as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB10.2 million and approximately
RMB9.0 million respectively.
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Background and reasons for use of the
Contractual Arrangement

Regulations on foreign-invested telecommunications

According to the Regulations on the Administration
of Foreign-invested Telecommunication Enterprises
(2016 Amended)* (K/NEIREBFREERRTE (2016
F{&%E7))) (the "FITE Regulations”), (i) the ratio of
investment by a foreign investor in a company providing
value-added telecommunications services shall not
exceed 50%, and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a
value-added telecommunications services company shall
have a good track record and operational experience in
providing value-added telecommunications business (the
"Qualification Requirement”) in the PRC.

According to the Administrative Measures of Foreign
Investment Admission (Negative List) (2020 Revision)*
(I EEAFREERE (BAEFE) (2020
fFhR))) (the “2020 Negative List"”), value-added
telecommunications businesses are classified as
industries where foreign investments are restricted, and
the proportion of foreign investment shall not exceed
50% (except for e-commerce, domestic multi-party
communication, storage and forward, and call centre
businesses).

Reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangement

Pursuant to the FITE Regulations and the 2020 Negative
List, (i) the ratio of investment by a foreign investor in
a company providing value-added telecommunications
services shall not exceed 50%; and (ii) a foreign investor
who invests in a value-added telecommunications
services company shall have the Qualification
Requirement in the PRC.
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As advised by the PRC Legal Advisers, there lacks a
clear guidance or interpretation on the Qualification
Requirement. Furthermore, due to the foreign
ownership restrictions as outlined above and based
on the formal consultation with the officer of the
Guangdong Communications Administration by the
PRC Legal Advisers on 19 November 2020, since the
Group had no operational experience in value-added
telecommunications business in the PRC nor had
it previously acquired any equity interest in a PRC
enterprise engaged in telecommunications business,
the PRC Legal Advisers have taken the view that from a
regulatory perspective, unless it is through Contractual
Arrangement, the Group would not be able to engage
in the value-added telecommunications business in the
PRC directly or hold any equity interest of the OPCO.
In the event that the Group holds any equity interest
in the OPCO, the application to renew the VAT Licence
of the OPCO would not be approved. The PRC Legal
Advisers have confirmed that all possible actions or
steps taken to enable it to reach its legal conclusions
had been taken.

As advised by the PRC Legal Advisers, the Group
has reasonably assessed the requirements under
all applicable rules, committed financial and other
resources and implemented all the PRC Legal Advisers’
recommendations prior to establishing the Contractual
Arrangement.

In view of the above, the VIE Agreements were entered
into among the WFOE, the OPCO and the PRC Equity
Owner. Through the VIE Agreements, the WFOE will
have effective control over the finance and operation of
the OPCO and will enjoy the entire economic interests
and benefits generated by the OPCO despite the lack of
registered equity ownership.
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The Company has discussed with its auditors and
confirms that the financial results of the OPCO has
been and will be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group under the prevailing
accounting principles. On the basis of the aforesaid
confirmation and pursuant to Rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules, the Company further confirms that the OPCO is
an indirect subsidiary of the Company as 100% of its
equity interest is attributable to the Company through
the WFOE.

Commercial Benefits of the Transactions

The Group aims to become the world’s leading supplier
of Fintech products and services and a leader in the
financial payment products. Accordingly, the Group
has been actively looking for opportunities to tap into
the Subject Business, including the Restricted Business.
As outlined above, due to the foreign ownership
restriction, the Group would not be able to engage
in the Restricted Business other than adopting the
Contractual Arrangement (namely, entering into the
VIE Agreements). After in-depth discussion of the
management of the Company, it was decided that the
PRC Equity Owner, who is a deemed connected person
of the Company and a current employee of the Group
and as such whose interest would be more aligned
with that of the Group and the potential conflict of
interest would be mitigated, is a suitable person to
establish the OPCO with the principal business of
offering information service platform for online data
processing and transactions processing services as well
as information service businesses which will then enter
into the Contractual Arrangement with the Group.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021

PN/NEIIRREEE: SN = Bl i
R RERITEFIRA - OPCO
BB T S4B S 0 A R & B ) 4R
EUBEmMER - ERN LA ER
BRIELETRINEI01E  AA
B — SRR OPCO AA R
AN —REEERBAG  mMA
A B) B BWFOEFE (5 E100% A%
7 o

REEENBHERG

AEBEBNBEEZEK AT REL
MNemBRERMREERERD
ﬂi@iﬁ%%m%%% N

CREBE —ERERS K
Q RABERAIEEBEN
MIZMER - Rt B R
SNELFT B RERR I %Lﬂ%%
G 8 WE (BERTVIEH ) - &
SEETE %%x@ﬂ%%ﬁ
KRN R EIRE W ERE A&
WARTE - PEREESB AE
BRDAIR— R @B A TR
SEN—ZRTREE  EFx
ﬂﬁﬁEIMM SEM—E

BEF = EEABE &R -
/H\F'Ei% iOPcos’JAm/\ao
OPCOMEE XK BIRMHELFE
BEENRSEIERSENALE
ERBEBNEERBTE -
I%%éﬁﬁilﬁi 49 %

u:}t



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Apart from the regulatory benefits, adopting the
Contractual Arrangement will bring the following
commercial benefits to the Group:

(i) It allows the Group to have effective control over
the finance and operation of the OPCO and to
enjoy the entire economic interests and benefits
granted by the OPCO. By introducing the Subject
Business, the OPCO will create a new business
driver to the Company and generate a long-term
return to the Shareholders.

(i) It enables the Group to obtain the VAT Licence
necessary for providing the value-added
telecommunication services in the PRC and
enhances the competitiveness and adaptability of
the Group in the market.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangement

The Group will bear economic risks which may
arise from financial difficulties in the operation of
the OPCO

As the primary beneficiary of the OPCO, the Group
will bear economic risks which may arise from financial
difficulties in the operation of business of the OPCO.
In such events, the WFOE will have to provide financial
support to the OPCO. Accordingly, the Group’s financial
results and financial position may be adversely affected
by the worsening financial performance of the OPCO
and the need to provide financial support to the OPCO.
As discussed above, none of the VIE Agreements
provides that the WFOE is obliged to share the losses
of the OPCO or provide financial support to the
OPCO. However, since the Group conducts the Subject
Business through the OPCO and the financial results
of the OPCO would be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group, any losses suffered by the
OPCO would be reflected in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the Group’s consolidated
financial position such as the consolidated earnings and
profits would be adversely affected.
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There is no assurance that the VIE Agreements
could comply with future changes in the regulatory
requirements in the PRC and the PRC Government
may determine that the VIE Agreements do not

comply with applicable regulations

Despite there is currently no indication that the VIE
Agreements will be interfered or objected by any PRC
regulatory authorities, the PRC Legal Advisers have
advised that there is a possibility that the relevant PRC
regulatory authorities may have different opinions on
the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would
not agree that the VIE Agreements comply with the
PRC laws, and the authorities may deny the validity,
effectiveness and enforceability of the VIE Agreements.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to
the interpretation and implementation of the
Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact
the viability of the current corporate structure,
corporate governance and business operations

The Foreign Investment Law stipulates certain forms of
foreign investment. However, the Foreign Investment
Law does not explicitly stipulate the contractual

arrangements as a form of foreign investment.
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As discussed above and advised by the PRC Legal
Advisers, since contractual arrangements are not
specified as investments under the Foreign Investment
Law, and if future laws, administrative regulations and
provisions of the State Council do not incorporate
contractual arrangements as a form of foreign
investment, the Contractual Arrangement as a whole
and each of the VIE Agreements will not be affected.
Notwithstanding the above, the Foreign Investment Law
stipulates that foreign investment includes “foreign
investors invest through any other methods under laws,
administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council”. Therefore, there are possibilities
that future laws, administrative regulations or provisions
prescribed by the State Council may regard contractual
arrangements as a form of foreign investment, and
in such events it would be uncertain whether the
Contractual Arrangement will be recognised as foreign
investment, whether the Contractual Arrangement will
be deemed to be in violation of the foreign investment
access requirements. Therefore, there is no guarantee
that the Contractual Arrangement and the business of
the OPCO will not be materially and adversely affected
in the future.

The Contractual Arrangement may not be as
effective as direct ownership in providing control
over the OPCO

The Group relies on the Contractual Arrangement to
operate the business of the OPCO. The Contractual
Arrangement may not be as effective in providing the
WEFOE with control over the OPCO as direct ownership.
If the WFOE has direct ownership of the OPCO, it
will be able to exercise its rights as a shareholder to
effect changes in the board of directors of the OPCO,
which in turn could effect changes, subject to any
applicable fiduciary obligations, at the management
level. However, under the VIE Agreements, the Group
relies on the performance by the PRC Equity Owner of
his obligations under the VIE Agreements to exercise
control over the OPCO. Therefore, the VIE Agreements
with the PRC Equity Owner may not be as effective in
ensuring the WFOE’s control over the OPCO as direct
ownership would be.
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The PRC Equity Owner may potentially have a
conflict of interest with the Group

The Group’s control over the OPCO is based on the
Contractual Arrangement. Therefore, conflict of
interests of the PRC Equity Owner will adversely affect
the interests of the Company. Conflict of interests may
occur when the interest of the PRC Equity Owner no
longer align with that of the Group. In such events,
the PRC Equity Owner may breach or cause the OPCO
to breach the VIE Agreements. If the Group fails to
resolve this internally, it may have to resort to dispute
resolution, other legal means, or ultimately removing
and replacing the PRC Equity Owner, which might affect
the WFOE's business, prospectus or results of operation
and the investors’ confidence in the Contractual
Arrangement.

Certain terms of the VIE Agreements may not be
enforceable under the PRC laws

The VIE Agreements provide that the arbitration tribunal
of the PRC may award remedies over the equity interest
or assets of the OPCO (e.g. in relation to its conduct
of business, transfer of assets and equity interest) or
winding up of the OPCO. The VIE Agreements also
provide that any party thereto may seek temporary
injunctive relief from the courts in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the location where the principal assets of the
Company or the OPCO are located.

However, the PRC Legal Advisers have taken the view
that pursuant to the PRC laws, the arbitration tribunal
may have no power to grant the aforementioned
remedies or injunctive relief or to order the winding
up of the OPCO. In addition, even though the VIE
Agreements provide that overseas courts (e.g. courts
in Hong Kong) shall have the power to grant certain
relief or remedies, such relief or remedies may not be
recognised or enforced under the PRC laws. As a result,
in the event that the OPCO or any of the PRC Equity
Owner breaches the terms of the VIE Agreements, the
Company may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies
in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective
control over the OPCO may be materially and adversely
affected.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Limitations in acquiring ownership in the equity
interest of the OPCO

In case the WFOE exercises its option to acquire all
or part of the equity interest of the OPCO under the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, such acquisition
may only be conducted to the extent permissible
under the PRC laws and will be subject to necessary
approvals and relevant procedures under the PRC
laws. In addition, the aforementioned acquisitions may
be subject to a minimum price limitation (such as an
appraised value for the entire equity interest in the
OPCO) or other limitations as imposed by the applicable
PRC laws. Further, a substantial amount of taxes, other
necessary costs (if any), expenses and time may be
involved in acquiring and transferring the ownership of
the OPCO, which may have a material adverse impact
on the WFOE and/or the OPCO’s businesses, prospects
and results of operation.

The Company does not have any insurance which
covers the risks relating to the VIE Agreements and
the transactions contemplated thereunder

The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks
relating to the VIE Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder. If any risk arises from the VIE
Agreements in the future, such as those affecting the
enforceability of the VIE Agreements and the operation
of VIE Agreements, the results of the Group may be
adversely affected. To this end, the Group will monitor
the relevant legal and operational environment from
time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. The Company will continue evaluating
the feasibility, the cost and the benefit of insuring the
transactions contemplated under the VIE Agreements.
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The VIE Agreements may not be subject to scrutiny
of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may

be imposed

The Group could face adverse tax consequences if the
PRC tax authorities determine that the arrangements
under the VIE Agreements were not entered into
based on arm’s length negotiations, and as such the
tax authorities may adjust income and expenses of
the WFOE and/or the OPCO for the PRC tax purposes,
which could result in higher tax liabilities on the WFOE
and/or the OPCO. The operating and financial results of
the WFOE may be adversely affected if the tax liabilities
of the OPCO or those of the WFOE increase significantly
or if they are required to pay interest on late payments

and other penalties.

7. Internal control measures implemented by the

Group

With a view to enhancing effective control over and
safeguarding the assets of the OPCO, the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement provides that the PRC Equity
Owner shall not sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise
dispose of any of his interests in the OPCO or create
any encumbrances on them without the prior written
consent of the WFOE. Under the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, the WFOE has the right to request
for the OPCO’s financial information to ascertain its
consolidated profit before tax from time to time.

In addition, the Company has also put in place the

following internal control measures:

(i)  the seals, chops, incorporation documents of the
OPCO are kept at the office of the WFOE to the

extent permissible under the PRC laws;

(i)  the WFOE is involved in making corporate
management and strategic planning of the OPCO;
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(iii) the WFOE shall nominate directors, supervisors,
general manager and other senior management
staffs of the OPCO; and

(iv) the WFOE is involved in assessing financial matters
of the OPCO.

Material change

There has not been any material change in the
Contractual Arrangement and/or the circumstances
under which they were adopted during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Termination of Contractual Arrangement

The Company will unwind the Contractual Arrangement
as soon as the PRC laws allow the Restricted Business
to be operated without the Contractual Arrangement,
and the Company or its nominee may acquire the
equity interest in the OPCO held by the PRC Equity
Owner and/or the assets of the OPCO are allocated to
the Subject Business to the extent permissible under
the PRC laws. In the event the WFOE exercises the
right under the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement to
acquire the equity interest in the OPCO held by the PRC
Equity Owner and/or the assets of the OPCO to unwind
the Contractual Arrangement, each of the PRC Equity
Owner and the OPCO has undertaken to return to the
WEFOE any consideration he/it shall receive.

However, as at 31 December 2021, there is has not
been any termination of the Contractual Arrangement.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

120

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a
clear career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. The Group provides
pre-employment and on-the-job training and development
opportunities to its staff members. The training programs
cover areas such as managerial skills, R&D capacity, innovative
technologies, sales and production, customer services, quality
control, workplace ethics, information security, compliance
and legal and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, for all employees in Mainland China, the
Group provides employee mandatory social security funds,
pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance,
medical and employment insurance, and full coverage of
housing provident fund contributions in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations of Mainland China. The
pensions and unemployement insurance belong to defined
contribution plans, the Group doesn’t have the right to
confiscate the contributions, and therefore has no use of the
contributions. For overseas employees, the Group also makes
contributions towards relevant insurance schemes required by
the local regulations.
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(ii)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Meanwhile the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme to
recognize and motivate the contribution of the employees
and attract suitable personnel for the long-term growth and
further strategic expansion of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2021, no shares or share options have been
granted or agreed to be granted to any selected participants
or eligible employees (2020: Nil) under the Share Award
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme, respectively.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics.
The Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track record,
experience, financial strength, reputation, products qualities
and quality control effectiveness. The Group also requires its
suppliers to comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy.

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its
diversified clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental
organizations, world-leading financial institutions,
transportations projects and multinational companies. The
Group maximizes client value by offering professional and
effective operation model and innovative and differentiated
products and services, to intensify the interaction and
viscosity between clients and the Group and enhances the
client experience.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year 2021, the
Group have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and other regions where the Group’s
subsidiaries locate.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year 2021 are set out on pages 177 and 178
of this Annual Report and in Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 295 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In February 2017, the Group acquired the 50-year land use right of
a land parcel with new industry related use with RMB26,669,442
in Zhuhai. The total area is approximately 20,999.56 square meters
situated in the west of Goldpac Tech Park, where the operation of
the Group is located, for the future development of the Group.

In October 2018, with the support of Zhuhai municipal
government, the Group started the construction of “Zhuhai
Fintech Center” on this land parcel, with a total construction area
of approximately 56,000 square meters, which was capped in
December 2019 and is expected to be put into use in 2022 as the
Group’s R&D center office and as an office building for absorbing
upstream and downstream Fintech enterprises, and no more than
15% of the area of the center will be used as commercial rental.
Through its own funds and bank loans, the Group expects the
total investment for the center will be approximately RMB320.0
million among which RMB68.2 million has already be invested
in 2021. The Group will leveraging its own industry resources
accumulated over the years in the field of Fintech to bring together
global professionals in the loT, intelligent security payment, data
encryption, integrated circuits and other industries, and will jointly
make forward-looking technological exploration and technological
innovation in areas such as block chain, A.l.,, big data, biometrics
and other areas.

122 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021

BT EERGER

AEENEHEZHRARQRRHE AW
FBEKE R BETT - AR A A S R
LW -Hl AEEZEEABTH
Bk EEOEBERIEMR - 12021
FoAKEDETHEAN FEMDX
WIBPTEM NPT B B RARMIEM -

&t

AEBRARATR2021ENEE SIS
DAIEN AR EEREE177EMITISEH AR
F295B MR TR W 5141 ©

WX BERKE

201 7F2R  AREBETEKRBUARE
26,669,44270L MBMN R A KB EE S
e HEFERFRAAN —RRAEDES
20,999.56F 75 K 7 U = 3£ A A ) - b (5
it - FEAS0F - BRNAEBERRER -

2018F10A ' EHREMBNZET » A&
EEZI B GEmERB P L) #
R BEEMBENSEEF K B52019
F12REFHTE - BT B E2022F | AfE
B BEAREBRHEHRLBAET UK
EARMETHEmMBERCEARNRAD
BERA BBEETBBIS%HOEREANE
WA -  AEERBEBEESMBITER
A HZP ONARAEREEINHARE
32BL Hh R 201EEERANDAR
Meg2E B L ASEEBREASESH
MEEEZFEENELZELER BB K
MBI AL BRAMBE - S
EYN - -HBEBEMNE SXNEESZERM
EEMDIREEAN  KAREERE - A
THEEE  K8E £EDENEMEBELSE
B BT 1% R AR AT -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In 2016, the Group acquired the property located in 13th
Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre No.56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for HKD178 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB159.0 million) with a total area of 7857 feet.
More than half of this property is used as the headquarters office
of the Group, and the remainder is currently leased for office use
by an independent third-party enterprise for 3 years.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2021 are set out in Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 263 and 264 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank loans (2020:
Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2021 are set out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 284 and 285 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB99.5 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB234.2
million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST FIVE
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past five years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 296 of this Annual
Report.
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INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(a) Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme was conditionally adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of recognising and
acknowledging the contributions of any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, any Directors, any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Group,
or such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, and the

principle terms are as follows:

(i)  The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the

Stock Exchange;

(i) The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the

date of offer to grant;

(iii) Options granted should be taken up on payment of
HKD1.0 by the grantee on or before the relevant
acceptance date. The exercise price is determined by
the Directors of the Company at their discretion and
will not be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing
price of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b) the
average closing price of the ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (c) the nominal value
of the Company’s share. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, except that no option
may be exercised more than ten years after it has been

granted; and

(iv) There is no minimum period for which an option
granted must be held before it can be exercised except
otherwise imposed by the Directors.
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(b)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no options were granted
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this Annual Report, there was no outstanding
option not exercise under the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have been
granted, the total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, representing approximately 9.7% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
Annual Report.

Subject to early termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the adoption date (i.e. 4
December 2023).

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from
11 December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award
Scheme are to (i) align the interests of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of
any member of the Group whom the Directors in their sole
discretion consider may contribute or have contributed to
the Group (the "Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate
the contribution of the Participants and to provide incentives
in retaining the Participants for future operation and
development of the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel
for the long-term growth and further strategic expansion of
the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the "Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants.
The Trustee purchases the Company’s shares being awarded
from the open market with funds provided by the Company
by way of contributions.

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under
the Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares
awarded shall be vested in three years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date, which is 26 November 2017,
in equal portions. The estimated fair value of the shares
award granted at the grant date were approximately
HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the
market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.
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As at 31 December 2020, all these shares were either vested
or forfeited.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Trustee did
not acquire any ordinary shares of the Company (2020:
3,766,000, for a total consideration of approximately
RMB5,501,000), no shares have been granted or agreed to
be granted to any selected participants during the period
(2020: Nil), and The Group did not recognise any expense for
the year ended 31 December 2021 in relation to the share
awards (for year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, 8,146,000 shares of the Company
under the Share Award Scheme were held by the Trustee.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2021 and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Ms. LI Yijin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

Ms. YE Lu
Mr. YANG Geng

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 30 to 39 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year 2021 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are as follows:

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited (deregistration on 2
December 2021)
Mr. LIU Xuhui

Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Sigiang

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Innovation Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

SecureTech Holdings Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. HUANG Minjie
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Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. FU Kwan Lun Peter (resigned on 20 December 2021)
Mr. NG Chun Hung (appointed on 20 December 2021)

Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

UMV International Holding Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang

Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co.
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, which
shall be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.
Each of independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.
The appointment of each Director is subject to the provisions of
appointment and retirement of directors under the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. LU
Run Ting, Mr. LU Runyi and Mr. YANG Geng shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. LU
Runyi, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-elections at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. YANG Geng will not
offer himself for this re-election and hence will cease to be a
Director upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE
Lu and Mr. YANG Geng, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence
of each of these Directors. The Company considers that the
independent non-executive Directors had been independent from
the date of their appointment to 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO")), which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein;or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”), were as follows:
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Interests in Shares

B 42§

L

=

e
m

T

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company (%)®

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held”  FT{E A A AR
EEgg EmniE FriERsga” BOEI (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)  Interest of Controlled Corporation®” 299,759,422 shares (L) 36.20%
ERELXE(FE) Pk B 299,759,422 % (L)
Beneficial owner?® 1,740,000 shares (L) 0.21%
T2k N0 1,740,0008%(L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner® 12,000,000 shares (L) 1.45%
® Fh4a FaHAY 12,000,000 (L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner® 48,321,000 shares (L) 5.84%
EHIREE FHAY 48,321,0004%(L)
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner® 725,004 shares (L) 0.09%
REBELE ZHA® 725,004(%(L)
Mr. LING Wai Lim Beneficial owner® 16,000 shares (L) 0.002%
ERELE FaHAC 16,000%(L)
Ms. LI Yijin Beneficial owner” 2,044,000 shares (L) 0.25%
¥ Y o FHA” 2,044,000%(L)
Notes: Yotz
(1 The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the (1) LIREEERAATBRHOTFFEENETA -
Company.

(2)

130

Mr. LU Run Ting's interests are consisted of: (i) 299,759,422 shares are held
by GIHL, which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU
is deemed to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the
SFO; and (i) 740,000 shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme (this scheme has expired on
3 December 2019) exercised on 29 July 2015; and his interests in 1,000,000
shares as beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 300,000 shares issued pursuant
to the exercise of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(this scheme has expired on 3 December 2019) exercised on 25 August 2015;
and (i) 1,200,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award
Scheme; (iii) 10,500,000 shares transferred from GIHL (being a controlling
shareholder of the Company and wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 10 June
2020.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(4) Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 2,120,000 shares and 45,000,000
shares respectively transferred from GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of
the Company and wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015 and 10
June 2020; (ii) 400,000 shares issued pursuant to the exercise of the options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (this scheme has expired
on 3 December 2019) exercised on 25 August 2015; and (iii) 801,000 shares
awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

(5) Mr. WU Sigiang's interests are consisted of: (i) 130,000 shares as beneficial
owner; and (ii) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share
Award Scheme, and because of the expenses caused by this scheme, 205,996
shares was deducted on 26 November 2019 which was the final vesting date.

(6) Mr. LING Wai Lim holds 16,000 shares as beneficial owner.
(7) Mr. LI Yijin holds 2,044,000 shares as beneficial owner.

(8) As at 31 December 2021, the number of issued shares of the Company was
828,005,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021 none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), (b) pur suant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein ,or (c) pursuant to the Model
Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with any
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021 or as at 31
December 2021.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2021 or as at 31 December 2021 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
of the Company or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31
December 2021, no Director had interests in any business apart
from the Company’s business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1)
and (2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “"Companies Ordinance”), it is
confirmed that the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above
is/'was in force for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance;
and has been in force throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2021, respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, subject to the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, every Director or other officer or auditor may be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability,
loss or expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted
to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done
by him as an officer or auditor of the Company and in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or
incurred in connection with any application in which relief is
granted to him by the court from liability in respect of any such act
or omission.

132  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year 2021.

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2021 are set out in
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 252 to
257 of this Annual Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings
provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition
(as defined in the Prospectus). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have
been complied with by the controlling shareholders.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee to the Board and are decided by the
Board, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted one share option scheme and one
share award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and
eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the
paragraph headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 33 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 285 to 286 of this
Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year
2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) and entities had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

B B R

REBENFHMBRTDEREREENER
BEREN  UEHHFHEZESEM -

E=nHM O BaTMEEE2EAEEN
REXE BAARARALEROTISRA
BEANEFEMHES  YHAEFSRE -

AARERM—BERETE R —ERG
HENETE AEB R ERHEESERAER
BE -ERZESTENFHBIHR LXK
BtEll — B R ARFHRF FE2858 2868
AR RRMIFE33 -

R20215F R IEEENEETAME

TERRR2ARGMNEE
R zERZRRXE

MR20214F12A831H  hES A UK
AL (ERABEZESEIERITHRABRIIN &
B BE(ESRBEIEG) EXVIBE2
MEIDBATFUEBIRB(ESLBAE
1&H1) E336IFBRBERARFETHER
A RARBRG REEROFERSDN

AR

Approximate

shareholding
)

Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held™ percentage
®E REmtE FEEsEE” BasREI LY
GIHL Beneficial Owner? 299,759,422 shares (L) 36.20%
& HE BB Z@ A 299,759,422 %(L)

Ms. ZHANG Jian Spouse@ 301,499,422 shares (L) 36.41%
SRR+ i g” 301,499,422 8%(L)

Agende des participations de  Interest of Controlled Corporation(‘” 152,931,181 shares (L) 18.47%

IEtat (" APE") F i E R
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The letter “L" denotes a person’s long position in the shares of the Company.

The 299,759,422 shares are held by GIHL, which is wholly-owned by Chairman
LU.

Ms. ZHANG lJian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU’s interests in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (“GISA"), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto. Based on the
disclosure of interests forms filled by Thales, Gemalto is owned by Thales as to
85.51% and Thales is owned by APE as to 35.68%. Therefore, APE is deemed
to be interested in GISA's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of issued shares of the Company was
828,005,000 shares.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as the

Directors were aware, no other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) or entities had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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BEEERE @)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company purchased
8,870,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate price of approximately HK$15,286,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB12,661,000) in order to simplify
the company’s capital structure. The shares were acquired at an
average price of HK$1.72 per share, with prices ranging from
HK$1.62 to HK$1.80. Among the shares purchased, 5,556,000
ordinary shares of the Company were canceled during the year and
the rest of 3,314,000 ordinary shares were cancelled in January
2022.

The details of the purchase of shares are as follows:

REE2021F12A31B L2 FE - A TH
{EEARGEER ARREEEHAEZFFT
LA & 5H4915,286,0008 % (16 ARB A
12,661,0007T) # & 7K A 7]8,870,000% &
R ERRZEHRL1.62BTLE1.8B T
2B FHBRRZERAE172ET &
f - 5,556,000 @R A HRNESE - H
#43,314,0008 B 7R2022F 1 A 5E$H -

i BB IR -

Aggregate

consideration

Highest price  Lowest price paid

Number of per share per share (HKS)

shares (HKS$) (HKS$) &t

Month purchased BRESER SRHEEER EXTHE
A& mEROBE (B xS) (B TS) (B TS)
September 2021 20214 9A 3,623,000 1.70 1.62  6,114,676.93
October 2021 20214104 3,025,000 1.77 1.68 5,212,031.88
November 2021 20214 11AH 2,222,000 1.80 1.74  3,958,999.50
Total &%t 8,870,000 15,285,708.31
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its [ FitiEEN A AT REWE QA FTRE

subsidiaries purchased,sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

The Directors were of the view that the purchases and subsequent
cancellation of the shares can result in an enhancement of the net
asset value per share and earnings per share and were therefore
beneficial to the company and the shareholders as a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 11.0% (2020: 9.7%) and
approximately 34.9% (2020: approximately 35.4%), respectively,
of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 18.8% (2020: approximately
14.3%) and approximately 51.5% (2020: approximately 46.5%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the shares of the Company in issue) had interests in any of
such suppliers and customers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mutual Supply Agreement with Gemalto

The Group has been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto
(a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company). On 25 February 2016, the Company,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited, Goldpac Limited
(the "Goldpac Entities”) entered into a mutual supply agreement
for a term from 1 January 2016 until 31 December 2018 (the
“Mutual Supply Agreement”) with Gemalto, pursuant to which
(i) the Goldpac Entities shall supply to Gemalto with, among
others, products such as banking card modules, cardbody and
personalisation machines, equipment, spare parts and relevant
consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac Products”); and (ii)
Gemalto shall supply to the Goldpac Entities with Gemalto IC
Chips (the “Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).

BEEERE @)
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

The Mutual Supply Agreement was not renewed upon its expiration
on 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
both the actual transaction amount in respect of the Supply of
Goldpac Products and the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted
to RMBO. The Supply of Goldpac Products and the Purchase of
Gemalto IC Chips are expected to continue to be conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms, and each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) for such transactions calculated in accordance
with Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules is expected to continue to be
below 0.1% on an annual basis, such transactions, if any, will fall
within the de minimis threshold as stipulated under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules and will be exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

The Contractual Arrangement

According to the section headed “Information on the Contractual
Arrangement” disclosed above, certain transactions contemplated
under the VIE Agreements constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

For the transactions contemplated under the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, as the Group has discretion to exercise the right
to purchase all or part of the PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest
in the OPCO under the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement,
the acquisition of the right is classified based on the amount of
premium payable by the Group in accordance to Rule 14A.79(2)
of the Listing Rules. As no premium is payable by the Group under
the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, all of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than profits ratio) with reference to the
Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement are less than 0.1%, the
connected transaction contemplated thereunder is fully exempt
under Rule 14A.76(1) (a) of the Listing Rules.

For the transactions contemplated under the Loan Agreement,
as all the applicable percentage ratios (other than profits ratio)
exceed 0.1% but all are less than 5%, the connected transaction
contemplated thereunder is subject to the reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Moreover, the transactions contemplated under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Service Agreement constitute a
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted, a waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules
from (i) setting a fixed term for each of the VIE Agreements for
a period of not exceeding three years pursuant to Rule 14A.52
of the Listing Rules; and (ii) setting a maximum aggregate annual
cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules for the services
fees payable by the OPCO to the WFOE under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Services Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no services have
been provided by the Group to the OPCO under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Service Agreement. No profit was
generated by the OPCO for the year.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the Contractual Arrangement and confirmed that (i) the
transactions carried out during such year have been entered into
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the VIE Agreements
and have been operated so that the profit generated by the
OPCO (if any) has been substantially retained by the Group; and
(ii) no dividends or other distributions which have been made
by the OPCO to the PRC Equity Owner which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged
to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740(Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter to
the Directors confirming that they have reviewed the Contractual
Arrangement and confirmed that no transaction amount had
been incurred under the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Service Agreement during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that there have been any transactions which (i) have not received
the approval of the Directors; (ii) have not been entered into in
accordance with the relevant VIE Agreements; or (iii)any dividends
or distributions which have been made by the OPCO to the
PRC Equity Owner which have not been otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group. A copy of this letter has
been provided to the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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Please also refer to the details set out in the section headed
“Information on Contractual Arrangement” above and the
announcement of the Company dated 8 February 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, none
of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirement sunder Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has fully complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that was publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
permitted under the Listing Rules since listing of the shares of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until the date
of this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material events occurred subsequent to 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 19 June 2020. The Board appointed
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 19 June 2020 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting on 17 May
2022.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in auditor
of the Company in the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent
as the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the “"Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LING Wai Lim (Senior Vice President)

Ms. LI Yijin (Chief Audit Executive and Company Secretary)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr. YANG Geng (Member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30
to 39 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 39 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses
on the Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of
three years and is subject to retirement in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.

The Company’'s Articles of Association also provides that all
Directors appointed by the Directors, either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional director, shall retire at the next following
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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All Directors have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management, environmental and social responsibilities,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the
Board to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, each of Mr. LU Run
Ting (Chairman), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Runyi, Mr. WU Sigiang,
Mr. LING Wai Lim, Ms. LI Yijin, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE
Lu and Mr. YANG Geng has read books/journals and attended
relevant training to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and
regulatory update have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the Chairman and members of each board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review
interim and the annual financial results and the annual report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, the interim results and
the interim report in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2021
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions,
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties, the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report. The Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of
Audit Committee), Ms. YE Lu and Mr. YANG Geng.
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The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration of the Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration of the
senior management (other than the Directors) is listed as below by
band:

B A8 5

Band of remuneration
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Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive
and Employees are set out in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on the pages 252 to 257 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
performance and contributions of the Directors and the senior
management and the change in market conditions.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review
and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
adjustment principle of all employees as a whole, the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and other related matters.
Currently the Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely, Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of Remuneration Committee),
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin and Mr. LU Run Ting.
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take the Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination
Policy into consideration, to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee should consider the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to character and integrity, qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy), any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board, requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules, any
potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board
in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity, and willingness and ability to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committees of the Company.

The Nomination Committee evaluates such candidate (include any
person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company) based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee should rank them by order
of preference based on the needs of the Company and reference
check of each candidate (where applicable), and recommend to the
Board (as applicable).
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For the re-election of Director at General Meeting, the Nomination
Committee should review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring director and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set out above,
and make recommendation to shareholders. The Nomination
Committee will conduct regular review on the structure, size and
composition of the Board and this Policy and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

At the same time, in assessing the board composition, the
Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and
regional experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and to
consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for
election at the annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board is maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises
five members currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of
Nomination Committee), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin,
Ms. YE Lu and Mr. YANG Geng.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced
diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity
at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, skills, knowledge, industry experience and
professional experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing
the suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity.

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code and is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties set out therein.
The Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021 and other legal and
regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in the year ended 31
December 2021 as required by the Listing Rules.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZEEE€REMHER
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Corporate
Information
tEEH

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board S EEZ=LEARAATREZE2021F12A31
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company HItYEERETHESS L2320 S
held during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the REFEAXEHHFLIEDNTRAT
table below:

Financial

S
Attendance/Number of Meetings é%*
HERE, B "5
Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General L2
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting % B
EEpE Exg REEZES FHESS EREEE KRIRBFAE S 3
Executive Directors % 5=
BITES 5
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 1”71 11 N/A 1”71 5
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 1”71 N/A N/A 1”71 §
&k FEAE -
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1”71 2
EEREE %u 2
Mr. WU Sigiang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171 -
REBEE §e
Mr. LING Wai Lim 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171 s
EW%%E 4
Ms. LI Yijin 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171 . 5%
EHERL 228k
Zie
Independent Non-executive Directors %3 g+
BUEHTES S
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 1”71 11 3/3 171
EABGELE 5ol
Ms. YE Lu 4/4 1/1 171 3/3 11 T
® x&t <0y
Mr. YANG Geng 4/4 1”71 N/A 3/3 17
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Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of executive Directors during the year 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 161 to 172 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB1,311,000 and
RMB415,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out below:

BTEENESZEE N2021F RN
MBYIFATEETARATRBERTEEH
rﬂfjaui‘ﬁt°

EERMBHRERNBE

EFEHEREMNBREAQREE2021F12
A31ALLZFEHBERENOBE -

EZUTABEMABEBAEESARARN
BREENZIERERNEMHHBERD
ERTHERR -

B B ST AR B B B S R E
MR E RN RN FR 2B LB RE S
161BEE1728 °

R AV =

S FARRBINEZEATE B E E2021F
128318 1L 2 FEWZ BRI & IEZEUR
BzE s Bl A ARE1,311,000T AR
#415,0007T °

S F ARG INEZEAN R KB g T
BB EE E2021E12A318 12 4F
[ E AR N I BUR T 2 Bl & &9 5 4T 40
T

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category BREEE Bt ERER

RMB

AR

Audit Services ZE AR 1,311,000
Non-audit Services IEZBRT

— Interim review — hHEIEH 415,000

1,726,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually verseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
oversight and corporate governance role in the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls
and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group’s risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Bz

TEERTE @)

| e 5 7 B R AR EE 42

EEeRAEFECHERERASEN
REREEMATEZERG  WEBEZRER
B2 0BFRAERM ERLZEEH
PEFERTHERRERERBE - &
EAKENME B AR BERER
RAEEE AR BERIAGETBR

ak
Be °

[ B R AR AR

AEEEREY —EEEHERE MRERE
FREBRE AR ESe2REEE
EEENRARERE  YTHEZZESHH
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RER BOREESERBREREMAIE
THEHB LR  c XA AEEEBER
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MBI HERBHTEMK -

AEENRBREERBUATEITOI=
BRI RAAERIES

AUDIT

COMMITTEE

GROUP
MANAGEMENT

SEEERE

1ST LINE OF DEFENSE
E—EHR
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BB AR

ENEEE
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Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to
effectively identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business,
financial, operational and compliance risks. The framework
enables the Group to adopt a proactive and systematic approach
to identifying and managing risks across the organisation to
evaluate risk severity and likelihood of occurrence. The framework
also sets out the procedures of risk management and clarifies the
roles and responsibilities of various departments in relation to risk
management.

Bk EEMR
EERYTEBERIEUENHI P

i BEMEZRTEXR EZ BRI
BHREE o WA R R B IR — EBH M
AW EE BRI ME R E R - A MG

RERHBEEEMBELENEE - R &
AHETSRENRREERRE BT S

BPERBRERETERONBES T -

CORPORATE STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVES
EEBE B

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis,
the respective operating units of the Company review and access
the status of potential risks which may impact on their ability
to achieve their business objectives and/or those of the Group,
determine and implement treatment plans where risk mitigations
are actionable. This review process includes assessment as to
whether the existing internal controls continue to remain relevant,
adequately address potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards
and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may
impact the Group’s performance are appropriately identified
and managed. The system and internal controls can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to be managed, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
92 to 119 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works
to improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace
with the changing business environment.

Internal Control

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group's risk management and internal control system. Internal
Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated
and rectified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group’s compliance, financial, procurement and operations. On
a regular basis, Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit
Committee the results of their activities during the preceding
period pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls, and follows up the progress of rectification for control
weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently
in an appropriate and transparent manner.

The Company formulated the insider information policy and
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the insider information. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.
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The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effectively implemented.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also accessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made
the requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and
568 respectively of the Companies Ordinance. The general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting must be stated
in the request. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening a
general meeting.
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Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Center
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through Annual
General Meetings and other general meetings. At the Annual
General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2020 Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on Thursday, 13 May 2021, a special resolution to adopt the
Company’s new articles of association was passed. An up to date
version of the Company’s Articles of Association is also available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B ZBERE
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To the Shareholders of Goldpac Group Limited BeHEEZLRERATARRE N

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REBEF M BB R a]) _:
OPINION =R
What we have audited EMEFTHAR S

Chairman’s
Statement

The consolidated financial statements of Goldpac Group Limited F{FIEFHEHNE173E E295H & HBiES
(the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are BRIEBRER AR ([EAF]) REKE QA
set out on pages 173 to 295, comprise: (TBEE])NiEeMBRE B

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 o  R2021F12A318B M4 A B Kk R
December 2021; =

Management Discussion

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other o HEZBHILFENGLABZREMSE
comprehensive income for the year then ended; E A

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year o EHZEZHILFENGAEZEHE
then ended;
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e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o HEZBILFENGABEERE

ended; and 54
e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which ¢ $GZAHBREINTE BEFEe
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory FTREMEMBEEER -
information.
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
o Impairment assessment of trade receivables

162  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B HRE (®)

B ESTEE m)

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories

FERREFERE

Refer to notes 2.15, 4(a) and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2REAMBEWKRMEE2.15 » 4@)HM19 °

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group's inventories amounted to RMB286,921,000 (2020:
RMB190,375,000), net of provision for slow moving
and obsolete inventories of RMB46,260,000 (2020:
RMB55,770,000).

20215 12A318 - IR BHEREFTERBARE
46,260,0007T (20204 : A K #55,770,0007T) - E&H
NIFEREEESARK286,921,0007T (20204 : AR
#190,375,0007T) °

Our procedures in relation to the provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories included:

BPEGHERETEREBZEFEE

—  We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal controls and assessment process of
the provision for slow moving and obsolete
inventories and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

— BMTHETEEEUFHIREFENREN
RIEBHE RO ST (3B A2 - WA E B Ak 5T &Y T
EMEMEAE S REREEOIZEPINEFENE
THIE BN EEBEXERRIHMGE
HEAERNE G R AETTIGE -

— We understood, evaluated and tested key
controls over the provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

— HEMTH FEMARTEBRSENMRETE
BER RIS

—  We understood the basis of provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories and evaluated
the appropriateness of the basis adopted.

— BMTHRTHAHENREGEREOER AT
ETHERAERNSIEN -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BERETEE W)

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
(Continued)
HHERREFERE (H)

Management identified slow moving and obsolete
inventories that were no longer suitable for use in
production or sales based on ageing analysis, and
estimated the provision for inventories based on ageing
of inventories, current market price and estimated future
market demand.
EREERBREOMAFNFHITIBEANREERHE
WREFE  YREFEREK ZAMSBERMESR
RIIHHERMEAFEREE -

The identification of slow moving and obsolete
inventories required the use of significant judgment
and key assumptions which take into consideration of
historical sales records, utilisation records, ageing and
expectations for future sales orders. Such judgment was
subject to uncertainties as a result of future changes in
market trends and customer demands.
BRABHEERREFTETERTAABEABERBR X H
ERELHEREALE FTERKALE RKHEER]
BENEH AR MEBEMNELPFRNOARKE (L EL
HEMBRREFETHEEM
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Our procedures in relation to the provision for slow
moving and obsolete inventories included: (Continued)

BREPEIREFEREZREFRE  (B)

—  We tested the accuracy of the inventories
ageing report on a sample basis by tracing to
the purchase invoices and delivery documents.

— HMERBEZNIERIETHERSE N
RIS TF AR & H) ERENE -

— We tested key assumptions used in the
provision assessment, including expectations
for future sales orders by tracing to the related
source documents, such as the historical sales
records and usage records.

— HMUEBRETETEANBERER (BEYER
KEETENTRY) BEMEELHE RER
A ERRR TR o

— On a sample basis, we examined the
subsequent requisition documents of raw
materials to test the subsequent utilisation of
raw materials.

— BMMETEMENSBEEBERELIRATR
MEEERERBR -

— On a sample basis, we examined the
subsequent selling invoices to check if any
significant differences between the estimated
selling prices and subsequent actual selling
prices.

— BMMETHREEER UEFEM[ANEE
BREZENERHEBER L RARERFEERX
ERe
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRETSE@

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories
(Continued)
FHERREFERE (H)
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We focused on this area because of the significance Our procedures in relation to the provision for slow
of the inventories balance in the Group’s consolidated moving and obsolete inventories included: (Continued)
financial statements and significant judgments were HMHEFHERETERE2EZFRE - (B)
involved in estimating the provision for slow moving and

Chairman’s
Statement
fE¥E

obsolete inventories. — We assessed the reasonableness and the 1
B BE5ERSUBREATPFERESEEAN - TE accuracy of the estimated costs to completion,
HHRREFTEBEOT IR R AR KRG &MATNU other costs necessary to make the sale and the
BEET related taxes by comparing with the historical

costs to completion, other costs necessary to
make the sale and the related taxes for the
similar inventories.

— BMBBRESTHKELKAN  ETHEHEMFENE
R ARARBEUFENHERBEITLR - 77
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N E 6 & 1R A ZE R

Management Discussion

— We obtained and tested the mathematical
accuracy of the calculation of the provision for
slow moving and obsolete inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FERETTEE W

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

P& W & SR 18 FF A

Refer to notes 2.13(d), 2.16, 3.1(b), 4(b) and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B2 REAUMBEMERNTE2.13(d) ~ 2.16 ~ 3.1(b) ~ 4(b)H
20 °

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables of RMB347,374,000 (2020: RMB277,939,000)
against which expected credit loss (“ECL") provision of
RMB5,035,000 (2020: RMB6,893,000) were made. ECL
provision for impairment losses on trade receivables was
made using simplified approach.

M2021F12A31H AEEHNEREREERARK
347,374,0007T (20204 : A R #277,939,0007T) * f& U
BERHEHREEBRERE R/ ARES5,035,0007T (20204 :
AR #6,893,0007T) - W E RIZRE HEL IR RE
e
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

B REEFREMNEZEFEH

—  We obtained an understanding of management’s

internal control and assessment process of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors, such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

— HZMTHTEEBYREKRERNBEENEHNA

ERIEHI M (5 B1E - WiRBE BIA T HEE
MMEBEERREZNEEIMEME X
Bl BN EEETHRRERAENTE Y
EREHROE A REETHGE -

—  We understood, evaluated and validated the

key controls that the Group has implemented
over trade receivables portfolio grouping and
ECL determination.

— BMTH FENRIET EEEHELKEX

e HEMBERERBRETNBEIZES



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B HRE (®)

B ESTEE m)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)
FE W & FORLE R 14 ()

The approach was assessed based on the provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of their
corresponding estimated default rates and loss rates,
together with the forward-looking information.
TIRAERENBEER  BAKAGHEUGHRRY
BHEBEBASHE WEBEEMEENGFEZLHEMNIE
KE - DARATE NS SR AR -

Management used estimations and judgments to estimate
default rates and loss rates by making reference to
the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
EREREZ2ZIMTARBLEENERATIANEBHELR
BERBEREZNAEMEES - ARG MA@ RETED
EMBREK

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included: (Continued)

BPYHERESREN G ZEFRE (8

— We evaluated the reasonableness of the
judgment that management made in grouping
various debtors by assessing credit risk
characteristics.

— HfBBANEERARER FETEEREEY
FEREBADHARETHABRNSGEN -

—  We evaluated the reliability of the key data
input to calculate estimated default rate,
including related credit rating and current
status of each portfolio, trade receivables
lifetime recovery information and other relevant
data.

—  FHMFETARBEBERANAEG  AtERK
TR X BIEAEAE R RN EE YK
FAEHEAIREE  BRERNFERLKE
BUA K H At 4 B BUR -

—  We understood and evaluated the reasonableness
of the factors used in making forward-looking
estimation, including changes of future
economics, GDP growth rate forecast and
market environment.

— BN THLTEHTARETIEEGTNREE
WalElt SUERBREARKLELS - GDP
#RERFEBMASZREN S o

— On a sample basis, we tested the accuracy
of the ageing analysis of trade receivables by
tracing to the relevant supporting documents,
including the sales invoice.

— BMBAEBHERHEERRTEANZRAXXMY
ORI T W B KBRS D AT EEREIE -

EHEABZRERAT —B=-—F58% 6/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 E R E (®)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREITEIE W

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Continued)
FE W & FORE R 14 (8])

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
the trade receivables and the assessment of the ECL
provision involved significant accounting estimations and
judgments.

HRERERREEEcBENEREREHEEEERR
BRI RERAB MG - Bu® M T AZEET -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included: (Continued)

BPHERESRENGZREFRE (8

— We obtained ECL determination documents
of each portfolio of trade receivables and
examined their mathematical accuracy.

— BMARGREERZHENRHERBERGAE
Xt BERRSE mﬁﬁﬁo

— On a sample basis, we also tested the
subsequent settlement of trade receivables
after 31 December 2021 by tracing to the
related supporting documents including the
bank receipts.

—  BMWMERE T RITEGE EAMEREM K
Eﬁiéﬁ@mmiuﬂmﬁ%@%ﬁﬂ%&
B WHER

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the judgment and estimates adopted by
management in determining the expected credit
losses of the trade receivables were supported by the
obtained evidence.

REBMATHRERF  RMRREEEEERIER
MIEMERBASARAN B MEGAIAKRE
BESHF ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

B AR E (#)

HER

ERREFHHEAMEEAR - HMES
BREINENFERSANEE  BETEE
RAEPBRRRRMNZBEIRE -

BMESEAMBRENBR L TREEM
8 BT AHZEEMEEEREM
A EE &R °

BEBMYREMBHREROEFT  RAD
EERMHEBEAMER HUHBREP TR
HE R B BRABRAKKMESR
AR T BB FEEREBLE
UFFEERNBERBENER -

ERNBMEHRTOITE NREMABHE
MEEFEERNERRL  RMFTERS
ZFE-fE E RMALETARS -

EERFERZEEENGESE
BHRRARENEML

ERAREFAAREFEGHMAGHEM
MEBEEW B REERREE QR GROEE
EEMPEMNSAVBERER  THERS
REFRATBRENBE T FEBARKT
sk $5 &R 0 48 B B K 85 R BRAL P 75 B9 R &P
ZHAaR-

ERBESEAVBRRE EFREN
i BEXEERERLENEN YEEAR
MATIRBEEFELLABNTE AR E
RAFEELERETER REEFHEL
EEBEBRIFLELE  HBEEMATTT
MEBERTER-

EZZREEARRER
EBiE

BEREM R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 E AR E (#)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

B AR E (#)

REMMBSTGREMERR
AENET @

s HEERAFELESFTERNNR
EUHELE® o RBAERMER
O BMTELSFEEFEIBRA
FEEBEATHEEN  EmAsEH
i EEENRBEKLERIELEXR
RE - MRBEMARSFEERNTEE
o RIA W BB RS T R AR
REIZHREMBERERTNEBK
B-BREABANOKRETR  RIRFE
ERRFERERR - HMNGEHRE
ENZHENHE B LR HOFS
BEE o AW RREREBRAELSE
B EEETERELE -

o ERAUBHROERIIHRTA
RENMAT BREE URKEEHM
BRREEPERRZXZMEE -

e B ESEERAERBAXBEADNOY
BEEERTR  BEENELERE
UHEGRAMBRERERER - B
BE BESEEWNAR BB
T -BMAEABRRAEZNAME-

BREMEREN BMEEZZEERAT
AEIMERTEHE BRTH BXERTE
BE BREBMAESEE T &5 H AR E )
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 2 E AR E (#)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is YAO WenPing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HREeREkEMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE2021F12A3181E2FE

2020
Notes RMB’'000
k=3 ARET T
Revenue A 5 1,376,524 1,281,903
Cost of sales HE KA 8 (972,382) (898,066)
Gross profit EF 404,142 383,837
Other income Hfh Uz A 6 46,297 52,949
Other losses, net Hfvgia - F58 7 (8.432) (33,821)
Research and development costs B % B AN 8 (120,502) (109,840)
Selling and distribution expenses HEKRDIHEER 8 (126,500) (91,938)
Administrative expenses TEAXZ 8 (40,499) (34,939)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade &Y & X5 {8 5 18 3 [E
receivables 1,806 2,154
Impairment loss on amount due FE YR B & A RIFRIE 2
from an associate B EE 24 (590) (111)
Reversal of impairment loss on REE QRN R
interest in an associate VERIENSEi=EEAE] 18 — 1,500
Finance costs B 7 B AR (783) (549)
Profit before income tax BREr B8 AR A 154,939 169,242
Income tax expense FgtiE A 11 (16,988) (23,982)
Profit for the year FEFE 137,951 145,260
Other comprehensive expense for FEHEMEEBX
the year
[tem that may be subsequently AR B S 2B
reclassified to profit or loss: ZIEE -
— exchange differences arising on — MEBIINEBESE
translation of foreign operations B BE 5 = %8 (2,283) (3,206)
Total comprehensive income FE2HEWAHATE
for the year 135,668 142,054
SHEEEERERLAR —T=-—FF8% /3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

meBEEREMEZER AR @
HE2021F12A8318BIEZFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2020
Notes RMB"000
&t ARBTT
Profit/(loss) for the year EEFEFE (E8) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company iN/NETEZ =N 138,184 145,665
Non-controlling interests FEFE R M (233) (405)
137,951 145,260
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEEE2EmW A (EE)
attributable to: R
Owners of the Company iN/NETEZ =N 135,901 142,459
Non-controlling interests FEFE R M (233) (405)
135,668 142,054
Earnings per share FRAF 12
— Basic (RMB cents) — HEAR(ARES) 16.8 17.6
— Diluted (RMB cents) — 88 (AR%ED) 16.8 17.6

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI KR

At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2020

Notes RMB’000 5
ok AREFIT S
ASSETS a5 g
Non-current assets FREEE £
Property, plant and equipment Y RE MERE 14 413,365 365,212
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 37,825 41,920 =
Investment property "B Y 16 50,997 54,582 ok
Intangible assets B AE 17 — 3,471 "85
Interests in associates RN ol -y 18 — 4,964 -
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 30 7,694 9,400 .
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 25 211,916 76,984 EEw
Fixed bank deposits IRITEHFR 25 102,975 — o2
Total non-currentassets  FRBAEE® 824772 556533 . -
Current assets RBEE é
Inventories B 19 286,921 190,375 if o
Trade receivables FEU & =X 20 342,339 271,046 s
Contract assets BHEE 22 14,054 13,512 -
Other receivables and prepayments H A FE AN FE AR 23 43,006 21,392 2
Financial assets at fair value BARBEGTAER 5 .
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") 2EMEE([ARE é
ERPN-E- ) 21 180,205 256,733 S=u
= = i
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITER 25 7,294 166,971 =
Fixed bank deposits RITEHFER 25 594,630 724,123
Cash and cash equivalents ReELRREEEY 25 316,744 376,578 =
Total currentassets ~~ #*B@Ee®E 1,785,193 2,020,730 °©
Total assets EEHE 2,609,965 2,577,263
EQUITY BARRGHE £ os
Share capital fi& A< 32 1,192,362 1,192,362 S
Reserves 1 815,049 803,747
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AR RI#EH AEHHEZR gt
Company 2,007,411 1,996,109 § %j
Non-controlling interests JEIE PR RE RS 1,194 1,427 = S
Total equity R 2,008,605 1,997,536
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
e MBERRR @

At 31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

2020
Notes RMB’000
J/okza AREFIT
LIABILITIES 8@
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 7,221 11,360
Deferred tax liabilities EEIEAE 30 27,453 21,759
Total non-current liabilities EnRHAaGEEsE 34,674 33,119
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables ERNERREMNRE 26 422,506 365,428
Contract liabilities SEHMEE 27 28,053 50,864
Other payables H A FE A 3K 28 87,710 96,940
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 7,107 5,150
Government grants B 18 B 29 — 1,858
Income tax payable AT S AR 21,310 26,368
Total current liabilites ~~~ #®&FE#es 0000 566,686 546,608
Total liabilities EE8H 601,360 579,727
Total equity and liabilities EEHEEHAE 2,609,965 2,577,263

The consolidated financial statements on pages 173 to 295 were Z =€ B R2022F3815HEZ T BBE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 173EEZ9SE%$E\E7I?‘%$&§EE’\J§§H A

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: NTEEFEREKRE
LU RUN TING HOU PING
EFE B®m¥
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFTERHTEE HITEFEREEHTE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be |- ifi &7 & B 75 K % 5% JE B21% [ B 35 — (1 B2
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 2= o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company

HE2021%F12A831BIEZFE

AAAERARLES
Shares
held under ~ Exchange Non-
Share share award translation Other  Statutory Retained controlling
capital scheme reserves reserves reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
kb
L4 R
ke BERH  EARE  ABEE  EERE  AOEAE R FERER Ghl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTT ARETT ARETx
(Note i) (Note i)
() (Histi)
At 1 January 2020 202061818 1,192,362 (8015) 2,183 12,631 130921 642490 2,00572 1832 2,004,404
Profitloss) for the year ERRE/ (58 = - - - - 145,665 145,665 (405) 145,260
Other comprehensive expense FEEMZERY
for the year - - (3,206) - - - (3,206) — (3,206)
Total comprehensive EE2A(5R)/
(loss)/income for the year hALE — - (3,200) - - 145,665 142,459 (405) 142,054
Purchase of shares under share B ER (BB EEE
award scheme (Note 33) & (H7233) - (5,501) - - - - (5,501) - (5,501)
Transfers fb il - — - - 41,734 (41,734) - - -
Dividends recognised as AERE (M 13)
distribution (Note 13) — — — - — (143,421) (143,421) - (143.421)
Capitalisation of retained eamings KB ATA A BLAH
in a subsidiary A - - - 65,809 - (65,809) - - -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - BN - s ame pasy (e - (49
At 31 December 2020 120205124318 1,192,362 (13,516) (1.03) 108,440 172,655 537,191 1,996,109 1,421 1,997,536
SHERNBERERAA —B-—-F88 [//
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

= S 32 4= =
MERRBER @
For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A831B L2 FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAAERARLES
Shares
held under ~ Exchange Non-
Share share award translation Other  Statutory Retained controlling
capital scheme reserves reserves reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Kt
B8
Bx  BERE  ENRE  EBBE  HERE  AAEAE A FERER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note i) (Note i
(W) (i)

At 1 January 2021 R2021%£17818 1,192,362 (13,516) (1,023) 108,440 172,655 537,191 1,996,109 1421 1,997,536

Profit(loss) for the year EEHA/ (B8 - - - - - 138,184 138,184 @3) 137,951

Other comprehensive expense EREB2ERR

for the year - - (2,283) - - - (2.283) = (2,283)
Total comprehensive EE2E(BR)/

(loss)fincome for the year WABE - - (2,283) - - 138,184 135,901 (233) 135,668
Repurchase of shares (Note 32) ~ RIAEEE (Hz#32) - = - - - (12,661) (12,661) - (12,661)
Dividends recognised as PERE (Hit13)

distribution (Note 13) - - - - - (111,938)  (111,938) - (111,938)
I - - - - (159 (145%9) - - (145%9)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%128318 1,192,362 (13,516) (3,306) 108,440 172,655 550,776 2,007,411 1194 2,008,605
Notes: Hiat -

(i) Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves (i) HifFEREATRHEBERADEFNBEAAR A
and retained earnings into capital of subsidiaries, contribution from a MEBRRMERZEARYL —ZRERHEER
shareholder and share of other reserves of associates. FEMREE AR E M FENERER -

There was capitalisation of statutory reserves into capital of a subsidiary of the R20MEF - EERBERERERER AN B
Company, Goldpac Limited, in 2011. NAIEBEBRARNER -

There was capitalisation of retained earnings into capital of a subsidiary of the R2020%F » KO B FEE W E K AR T M
Company, Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company, in 2020. BRAAKEMSHESHUBBEARAAN

(i) Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), (i) BEFEAREMB ((REA)NEBER &
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required TRPBERLZARNTZHB AR ZIREETE
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after BBERERPBHEEZFFEMI0%TIRETEFE
tax based on their statutory financial statements. The statutory reserves may R ETHEERESDEBIMAIER
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated AR BEZENB AR R B EENE
losses or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries. NG

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be it 45 & 45 25 8 ) 2% fiE 6314 BT T 55 — BF B9

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. i o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE2021F12A31H1E2FE

2020

Notes RMB’000 2
k=3 AREFIT S
Cash flows from RETHEEZ S
operating activities HEeERE &
Cash generated from operations REESEE TSRS 31 9,897 232,111
Income tax paid BB (14,647) (34,672) g;;
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from RESER (A EEZ ;g
operating activities BEFHE (4,750) 197,439
s S
Cash flows from REEFBELEZ 5% x
investing activities HEeERE o
Redemption of financial assets BORALEBETARBR =
at FVTPL LEBMEE 536,859 182,723 S
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits REIRITEEER 1,401,998 884,707 §
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits #2EE KR 1T1E X 133,965 165,006 52 ‘E
Increase in amount due from an JE Ui Bek 8 A B 2R I8 32 A0 §5e
associate (590) (1,951) 5"
Consideration received from disposal U 5| g5 2 7O B 44 A &) 4 25 -
of interest in an associate B — 1,500 ;
Placement of fixed bank deposits TFHRERTTEEER (1,309,221) (915,938) S gw
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL B BIRZ A 4 EEGT ABZ= o e
ZEBMEBE (455,000) (256,0000 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits R EEIRITER (182,958) (31,308) s "
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BERHK
equipment (81,686) (80,336)
Interest received = YR B 31,378 27,261
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETBHELE (FTA)
investing activities BE&FHE 74,745 (24,336)
& Oy
%;i;'ﬁ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HERERER E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A31HILZ2FE

2020
Notes RMB"000
&t ARET T
Cash flows from financing METBHEEZ
activities ReRE
Draw down of bank borrowings IREVIRITIE X — 19,966
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIBITER — (19,966)
Acquisition of shares for employee EE KRR E
share scheme BERG — (5,501)
Principal elements of lease payments (EEHEBE 2 AL D (5,371) (9,056)
Payments for shares bought back % 17 [ B (12,661) —
Repayment of interest portion BEHERBEZNERD
of leases liabilities (782) (549)
Dividends paid to company’s A% B 3
shareholders (111,938) (143,421)
Net cash outflow from financing ®EEBFARESTEE
activities (130,752) (158,527)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRESZEEY D)
and cash equivalents R s (60,757) 14,576
Cash and cash equivalents at the FORERIAESEEY
beginning of the year 376,578 366,996
Effect of foreign exchange EREFHHTE
rate changes 923 (4,994)
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEXERLRBEELZEY
end of the year 316,744 376,578
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRFEcEEYER
and cash equivalents iy
Bank balances and cash RITEREE € 252,490 226,481
Fixed bank deposits which matured 31E A A 2| B3 #Y $R 17 %E HA
within three months T3 64,254 150,097
316,744 376,578

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are to engage in embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment and provision of data
processing services, digital equipment, system platform,
Artificial Intelligence (A.l.) self-service kiosks and other total
solutions for customers in a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare, transportation and retails
by leveraging innovative financial technology (“Fintech”).

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is Room
1301, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Center,
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Its parent and ultimate holding company is Goldpac
International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL") (a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong). Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Lu Run Ting, who is also the Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“Companies Ordinance”). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.

SR M BRRHE

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

—REHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

182

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time for accounting periods beginning on 1 January
2021:

o Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions — beyond 30
June 2021

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESFTHEm@
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

Corporate
Information
tEEH

2.3 New standards and interpretations 2.3 EEMEERNR2022F -
that have been issued but are not 1TR1B S 2 BEMMF ;
yet effective for the financial year HEAKEE KXEBHIR
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 M2 B q
and have not been early adopted by 5Li
the Group =8

Effective for ggﬁ
accounting SEH
periods beginning
on or after .
FEHE B
MR ZBER %
Merger Accounting for Common Amendments to AG 5 (revised) 1 January 2022 g @
Control Combinations ERECCIE BV PAC ) 20221 A1H -
HEES 2 AN SRR 5w
Property, Plant and Equipment — Amendments to HKAS 16 1 January 2022 ifﬁ
Proceeds before Intended Use BERGHERE 165 21EF] 202251 A1H 5 8%
ME BEMRE —BREMEZIAN -
R £
Onerous contracts — Costs of Amendments to HKAS 37 1 January 2022
Fulfilling a Contract BB G EREITHR 2 EFT 20221 81H o
BRAaHN — BITEOKNKA Eooh
Annual improvements to HKFRS 2018 Amendments to HKFRSs 1 January 2022 %1; %F[
to 2020 BN BRERAZEF] 20221 A1H S8g+
BB RS %2018 — 2020081 ¥ 8w
FREBE E
Reference to the Conceptual Amendments to HKFRS 3 1 January 2022 o
Framework BB RS ERE3R 2 EF] 202241 A1H g2
SEMAER il
Classification of Liabilities as Current ~ Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2023 ‘
or Non-current ERGHEREIR 2 ER] 202341 H1H g
RBHIERBEEHN D £
Classification by Borrower of a Term  HK Int 5 (2020) 1 January 2023 8w
Loan that Contains a Repayment on &/B I A5 555 (20204 ) 2023F1H1H 22l
Demand Clause g
fE TR 8B 17 B IR SRR -
EHERN DR s
Insurance Contracts Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023 % é
Rz A % EREMBRMEERNFE175 2 EFT 20231 A1H L%E

EHEARERERAT —S=-—FF5K 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHE@m
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 B EMENE RNK2022F
1B1ERZ2EERBOH
A R#ER XEEI
HIZ R R4 =)

2.3 New standards and interpretations
that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and have not been early adopted by
the Group (continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
FEHE

MR ZBER

Disclosure of Accounting Policies Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 1 January 2023
SRR E Practice Statement 2 2023F1A1H
ERGHEAE IR RBEENBRSE
HRIEBBH2ZERT
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Amendments to HKAS 12
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

1 January 2023

HE-XZEANBEEMBEREN FESHEAF125% 2EF] 20231 A1H
RIET I8

Definition of Accounting Estimates Amendments to HKAS 8 1 January 2023

Bt AFTEE BB GTHERFE’ 2 IBF] 2023F1A1H

Sale or Contribution of Assets Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 To be determined
between an Investor and its EAEERE28R N B AU B RS e

Associate or Joint Venture HERE1058 21T
REZEBENTRAEE AR ZEH

These standards, amendments or interpretations are not TERTZE XA BRI BREY

expected to have a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity 24 EHRERZERA

accounting

Financial

(a) Subsidiaries (a) BT

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

MEBAREAREHEAR
EEFIROMEER (8
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A 20w E RS EA A
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s S
Non-controlling interests in the results and Il ENGIE S =Sl g5
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the FERERDBINGEAE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other mhEMEERARK £ g
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of EREREEIHRNEETBE £
changes in equity and consolidated statement of MAEKPEFET - §g=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

186

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.12.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of Goldpac
Group Limited.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/ permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

o)
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R ELERE )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

2 FTESITBE@
24 SR ESZERA
(c) FTEREZRET
AEBEEHEAEHRLE
22 1) 4 A JE AR R S O R
%ﬁﬁﬁ$$l%ﬁ%ﬁ

EHREREEREBAT —F

%m 5 o P B S m
LA BIERAMIEEA
%ﬁm%@ﬁﬁ M&%
H M B A B] 1 o fE 1
mo FERESARS %’E
HENHEWHEZR
TRE8 BESH
ﬁ?kﬁ@ 7%%

m%mﬁ&ﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁé
2 HEmMEAENE
FABE - AREBES
MRBESNEBEARM

16 BR | f@ ER
NAE - BELERS
o WL AN - Z B BE %
1iEWA$ﬁ

i i*gﬁ

=y
T

i

=113
oy /
2y i 5

s

2
p
E
> 5
s

EEREZAAEEMEE
Yo A PR i R ) BRRRL B R
@é%éﬁ%émﬁﬁm
&8 WM % 8 A A48 T =X
AFREAMERIER -

MAEEEABEAR
F*ﬁﬁ&ﬂm&%

il
il

?f

[ 2 i 3k (R 8 &
ﬁ' BRI
ﬁ@iﬁ%k$$i
BEHOBEEER(

g) -

Iﬁ“\”\*@hHHEI

=

5
[ $%8 P O ot %

sy
pum}

——gg5g 187

Corporate
Information
PHEEE

Financial

2021

2
[
>
o

2021 F K=+

%=

Chairman’s
Statement

and /

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

i
o
a

B R
o) Cli
Q. o,
[

o= =

Report

Corporate Governance
A

Financial
Statements

I
&
8
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

188

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.5 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FTESITBE@

Corporate
Information
PHEEE

2.5 ¥4 0t @

2.5 Business combination (continued)

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

190

2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Company’s Chairman that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.8 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a net basis within “other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

192

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)
2.8 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate

2.9 Property, plant and equipment 29ME - -BERRE

All property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Buildings 20 to 50 years f1==) 20 — 504
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years RA - RENEHE 3—5F
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years HE 5 — 105
Plant and machinery 10 years B K 2s 104F
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

194

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until
it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

2.10 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently,
they are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost, over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are
shown at historical cost. Trademarks acquired
in a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Trademarks are
with finite useful lives and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over periods of 5 to 9 years
(2020: 5 to 9 years).

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

2 FESTHE@

QI EFREE

(a)

EHREREEZRERAT

HE

WENBAREELZEA
BIAAEBVEE BB
BEFEHE EBEEFAMN
BMEETHRA REH
EHHBRABRANER
Al RO E R - R
EITEREORAE R
12 B AR R AR (B B 18
DIk - EEEBO NS
MEBEEEELEER
R EEZ REEE -

BEIEERCELE
i LA 77 (B B & » 38
HRAXBAHMTEN
ReELBENRBRTE
A AR R R o B Tt
XGAHEENRE-
BErETAHEBRNRZ
EXABERHmEE
TEAMNRERER A
REDE -

G

SHEBEANEZRF
A] 75 3R S K A B BR o
EEBAHPBEANSE
EREEBRBNAARE
BIE -BAEEEHER
EAaER - BESHIF
(2020 : 5%29%F) A A&
HROEESY o

—g-—Fg% 195

Corporate

Financial

2021

0
o
>

i}

=

o~
o
~N

FX

)
=
9]
g
©
&a

»
©
©

(@]

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Environmental,
Social and

Report of
Directors

EEgR

$E AR

Corporate Governance
Report
A

Financial
Statements

I
&
8
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2

196

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the

expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate
Information
BEREHR

2.1 B EE @
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2.11 Intangible assets (continued)

Financial

(c) Research and development costs

(Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

2 FES

TR )

198

212 kTWEERRE

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value; and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s

business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecognition

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Investment income from financial assets at FVTPL
is included in the “other losses, net”. See Note 7
below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

200

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

() Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “other losses, net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets with
contractual cash flows do not represent
solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within “other
losses, net” in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EFESFHHEXR@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) %%?
2.13 Investments and other financial assets 2B RERHMEMERE -

(Continued) (%) 5
(d) Impairment (d) EE o
S EK
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis HRREEKAGEN g%;
the expected credit losses associated with its BEHEITH  REERHE =8
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The TEHA (= B B 18 % 1 B BE oo
impairment methodology applied depends on MR o B E R BUR E%‘T[
whether there has been a significant increase in REERERELSRZE cgn
credit risk. e
For trade receivables, the Group applies the HRERER X&EEH é;?
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which KRBV BmE LR 2?;
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised FE5 A FF R 7% Eom
from initial recognition of the receivables, see TE ) 05 W SR I 51 2 B IR gm;‘;‘!
Note 3.1(b) for further details. REEBREFEHRNE =
HERBL FRMZE -
3.1(b) ° s o
N L e : S
2.14 Offsetting financial instruments 214 EHEEWMTE § 5=
g i
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net EAREEBEAERHITRAAN
amount is reported in the consolidated statement HKHEHREE  TEEEIKR o5
of financial position where the Group currently has FREAELEE AR EIREE B0 88
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised MEEAER  SMEENS E= g
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a BRI EREE  AEHRAYH 3 g
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability MAKRREHFE - REE TN ST
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into AT AREEBEREZR i
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for B ENAFERXLERT (B o
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be WM ES S WK IE) HIHAAR £ o
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or HEE - gg;

the termination of a contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETFBXRmw

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.15 Inventories 2.15 FE&
Raw materials, work in progress and JRA R~ ¥ B R
finished goods
Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods RAEE 2 mm R A mm AR AR
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. RAI#EFEME 2BEEA
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an Ro-KAREEEME B
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead BIRBEE#HD < B EET
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis MEZEER RELERETKE
of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to BE ) o PR TR PR IAE ST
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted AR EEFENKMIEA
average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are B - FEREZKARINRR
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net MEFNEEE - AIZIREE
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the EERELEEHREGERE
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of IBET TR AN R IB AT S E
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make B o
the sale.

2.16 Trade receivables 2.16 EWWE
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers YR ERAEBELEEEHP
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary BLEHE B W 3 IR A AR 1 FE Uk
course of business. If collection or trade receivables BEFHRIE - IARTAREE —
is expected in one year or less, they are classified F ok 5 AT Y B ] P LR B 4R Bk
as current assets. Otherwise, they are presented as ERE  IBESE AR
non-current assets. BE - #EINRFERY
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the FE UL & SRR AT RIS a0
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless BeBETYIRER BEE
they contain significant financing components, when BEEARMEXNDFE  EAR
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the BEETYVIRER KNEER
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the FRKWEFREHEWREE L
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them Rens BALEBECAER
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective MEERBHK AT ERILRE
interest method. See Note 20 for further information Ko BRAEERKERES
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables RENEZER  F25HE
and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group's 20 > R AL B R EBER
impairment policies. EE S EERI()E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EFESFHHEXR@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) %
2.17 Cash and cash equivalents 217 RERBEZEY .

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MR enERNFERM &
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents T RekReEENEREE .
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with FRe eMEBRMTR _&#=
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid JRAGEAPR B = 1B A s A Ty a] Spu
investments with original maturities of three months ERSENBER e AHER 33
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts SRR RIOHEMERRR
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk BHREARBITES 554
of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. E%‘
2.18 Share capital and shares held for 218 RARREEZRET -
employee share scheme SRENRG 228
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. EERE DB RER %;m
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue EEBBRBITHREED =
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a RN A ERRTIARMER 5w
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. KR > (R FRIE) o g
Where any group company purchases the Company’s WEMEBEARBERAG Z 523
equity instruments, for example as the result of a #m T E  flanE@EisoiE gé;‘
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the S ARG RERE S AE S
consideration paid, including any directly attributable B AIBENRE (BIFEEMA
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted BEEEMEEXA (HBRAE %
from equity attributable to the owners of the M IEREFRNDIEEBNVA %
Company as treasury shares until the shares are RAHEAZE=RHR B g
cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are ZERMO B BRI AT o W& e
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net SEAaRMEEMET BB
of any directly attributable incremental transaction Wz EEARE (R EREE i
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in IEEER BN RAERAF St=
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. M E) B ABBRAR A 82w
x O g

BBEAN S -

Shares held by the Group Employee Share Trust are SEESROHEEFENRSG m
disclosed as shares held under share award scheme AR R AR IR AR D R E & B4 -
and deducted from equity. BWkG - WHRERP R - fn
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

204

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 60 to 180 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (Net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings (Continued)

2.21

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor
to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

2 FESTHE@
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2.21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

206

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate
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BERER

2.22 Current and deferred income tax 222 I RIEEFT B 18

ights

Financial

(Continued) (#&) :
Deferred income tax (Continued) IE 3 B 18 (@)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity

RIERBEEEE R REA AKX
J& SR A E R &) A DA SR 85 D B
MERZBRTER -

BAMEEEE EEBAAX

2021
Major Events

20219 K5

S5
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised HWINEINEBIEE ZEEEEBE gjé‘[
for temporary differences between the carrying HFENTEREEZR  F4ALQ
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign ARSI I E R M = E B0 5
operations where the company is able to control the R BZEZ20 2R S 2®
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences A iEE R ARREE - B HER f?—
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse BEEMBEEREE - %;u
in the foreseeable future. gm“r
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where %78 & % 0] o0& Hl 017 49 45 BD 2 5 w
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current MEEEHEAEEKY A= 5 ea
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax FIELEFT SR &R T KA —F E%l
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current TR BEIETHIBEENLA £ %f‘

has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

208

2.23 Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled.

Pension obligations and other social
welfare benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
various defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant governmental authorities. The
Group’s liability in respect of these plans is
limited to the contributions payable in each
period. The Group's contributions to these plans
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Assets of the plans are held and
managed by government authorities and are
separated from those of the Group.

The Group has no legal or constructive to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services in the current
and prior years. The Group’s contributions to
the defined contribution plans are expensed
as incurred and not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the plans
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share award
reserve/share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share award reserve/share options reserve.

Under the share award scheme, BOCI-Prudential
Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) administers and holds
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

210

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to
withhold an amount for an employee’s tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and transfer
that amount, normally in cash, to the tax authority
on the employee’s behalf. To fulfil this obligation, the
terms of the share-based payment arrangement may
permit or require the Group to withhold the number
of equity instruments equal to the monetary value of
the employee’s tax obligation from the total number
of equity instruments that otherwise would have been
issued to the employee upon exercise (or vesting)
of the share-based payment (i.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a “net settlement feature”).

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares
to fund the payment to the tax authority in respect
of the employee’s tax obligation associated with the
share-based payment as repurchase of vested equity
instruments, therefore, the payment made shall be
accounted for as a deduction from equity for the
shares withheld, except to the extent that the payment
exceeds the fair value at the net settlement date of
the equity instruments withheld.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FTESITBE@
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Information
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2.25 B &

2.25 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and
make good obligations are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.26 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a AREHBEFAEBHEERER 5 L
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” WA BIEEETEANEER sg@
of the goods and services underlying the particular EMS R [ R4 |EEE = O

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

212

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good and service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods and services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Performance obligation for contracts
with customers

(i)

(i)

Sales of embedded software and
secure payment products

The Group sells embedded software and
secure payment products to financial
institutions, government agencies, retail
businesses, healthcare businesses, public
transportation operators and others.
Revenue on sales of embedded software
and secure payment products is recognised
at the point of time when control of the
goods has transferred to the customers,
being when the goods have been shipped
to the designed location and accepted by
customers.

Sales of data processing services

The data processing services, including
encode cardholder information and/
or develop and load custom software
applications to embedded software and
secure payment products, which are
considered to be a distinct service as
it is regularly supplied by the Group to
customers on a stand-alone basis. The
transaction price of data processing service
per each activity makes reference to the
guotation that the Group offered to the
customers and revenue is recognised over
time as the performance obligation is
satisfied through creating or enhancing an
asset that the customer controls.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

214

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Performance obligation for contracts

with customers (Continued)

(iii) Sales of digital equipment

The Group also provides self-service kiosks
and on-site card issuance system solution
to its customers. Revenue on sales of
self-service kiosks and on-site card issuance
system is recognised at the point of time
when control of the goods has transferred
to the customers, being when the goods
have been shipped to the designed location
and installation of the digital equipment is
completed with customers’ acceptance.

(b) Contracts with multiple performance

obligations (including allocation of
transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations (i.e. embedded software
and secure payment products for smart secure
payment and data processing solution) the
Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct
good or service underlying each performance
obligation is determined at contract inception. It
represents the price at which the Group would
sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FESTHE@

Corporate

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.26 WA FEFR ()

(b) Contracts with multiple performance

obligations (including allocation of
transaction price) (Continued)

If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using
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exchange for transferring the promised goods or
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The normal credit period is 30-150 days upon
delivery. Retentions held by customers are
normally payable between 6 months to 1 year
by the customers from the date of issuance
of invoice. Such retentions include retentions
for embedded software and secure payment
products required by customers to insure
performance of Integrated Circuit (“IC") chips
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

216

2.27 Earnings per share

(i)

(ii)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.28 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at FVTPL. Dividends are recognised as other income
in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established. This applies even if they are paid
out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of an
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FTESITBE@

Corporate

2.29 Leases 229 fHE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is
a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for these
as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

218

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.29 Leases (Continued)

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to
the lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 FTESITBE@

Corporate

2.29 Leases (Continued) 2.29 #HE @)

ARERBRIRA] BEE m Ee 2 0

Financial

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in

variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the

equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option.

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on PR B2 FE S HA R 2 30 A Y HA R St=
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain NIZEGEETIRITE o« fiASE §§f
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is BEiEBTeTEEERE A s
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. EEHEERNSE R ERANLYE »
FRAETRITE - 5
Payments associated with short-term leases of B ZR 5 N BB A 52 B & RN P féi

A R REEM A EEENK
BIBMAER - S0 R 24
ENFBEEERZLREAAM
EaE - EEREHAMERY
MENRBEETHER - HE
BERTAEGILRIEEME
BERHE-

HEMNKBERNS M BERA
2T - M ANETE
ERAR ARG HREEN
AN XSS HEAEEH
AERNE -

FRBEERKAGTE @ 21

e HEABEMVBIES
-

e HEMHEHMB AN ZA
X AT H & REE R
W B &9 78 E8ED

o VINREEER UK

o TBIRPKA ©

FREEE—REEENFER

EEREEEEHERBMNNMNR
BERERIERATHERRE
FA-EHHEREHENR2
BAxENRI2ZEABREE
BEEEgnHEE-

EHEARERERAT —S=-—FF5K 19

2021

2
[
>
o

2021 F K=+

Chairman’s
Statement

Management Discussion

@
&
©
©

Directors and Senior

Environmental,

A

Financial
Statements

I
&
8
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

220

ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.29 Leases (Continued)

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendment provides an
optional practical expedient allowing lessees to elect
not to assess whether a rent concession related to
COVID19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this
election may account for qualifying rent concessions
in the same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: a. the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; b. any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and
c. there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has ealry adopted Amendment to HKFRS
16 — Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021, which extended the practical expedient to
lease payments that were due on or before 30 June
2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.30 Dividend distribution

2.31

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets. Note
29 provides further information on how the Group
accounts for government grants.

2.32 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.
See Note 6 below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

222

Bt 7% 3 3= M & ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risk: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by
the directors of the Company. The Directors provide principles
for an overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC
with most of the transactions originally
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollars (“USD")
and Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities,
which are denominated in these currencies.

During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group has not entered into any
derivative instruments to hedge its foreign
exchange exposures (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

R T E N EEAC )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

B EREEE m

3.1 Bt R b2 A & (&)
(a) ™iERE K m)

(i) SMNEmEE &)

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency AEBERFKEHRE
risk at the end of the reporting period, e Hy S B R B (DA A
expressed in RMB, was as follows: REXRR)OT :
2020
usb HKD
ETT ok
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ETT
Trade receivables FEW &= 3,062 — 998 19,718
Other receivables H b e Wk 2,954 61 1,620 2,320
Fixed bank deposits #2717 & HifF 7
and Cash and cash M4 KK
equivalents LEEY 377,936 72,317 409,160 129,341
Trade payables JEfF &R (1,496) — (2,300) (95)
Other payables H th B - 3R (1,471) (2,442) (2,626) (3,540)
Net monetary assets FEEKEE 380,985 69,936 406,852 147,744
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% A R BN FE RN
against the relevant foreign currencies, with HEBZES% ' m
all other variable held constant, the post-tax Hipr G S E2HFT
profit would have been (lower)/higher as & BREET EES
follows: CRA) /M :
2020
usbD HKD
ETT ok
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT
(Lower)/higher on [ 75 12 K B
post-tax profit CrA)
i
— Strengthened 5% — FH{E5% (14,287) (2,623) (15,257) (5,540)
— Weakened 5% — B2{E5% 14,287 2,623 15,257 5,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from fixed rate pledged bank deposits and
fixed bank deposits (see Note 25 for details),
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing financial assets, mainly
interest bearing bank balances. The Group
cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s RMB denominated bank balances.
The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances at
the end of the reporting period and assumed
that the amount of assets outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. 50 basis points were
used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBRAREREmw 5x
(Continued) ggﬁ
Sed
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B EEEZ @ = L
9 ouE
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) ™R M@ T
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate (i) BERERIAE = ET
risk (Continued) 16 FI| 3 [ B2 (#4) Ng¥
=3
If interest rates on bank balances had been HERITERA R T+ P
50 basis points higher(lower) and all other (N B&) SOfE = 2 - 5o
variables were held constant, the potential WA BEEMEET g@ft
effect on profit for the year is as follows: 2 HEEMNEERE
BB 5 .
2020 S3%
RMB’000 2o
ARETT B
s
Increase/(decrease) in FEHE 5 @
profit for the year #n CRd) &g
e 50 basis points higher o b FH5OMEEES 1,695 849 -
e 50 basis points lower o T FE501E A B (1,695) (849) 55&?
£
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity EEEBRA ARNE
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent KRR =RERREET o
interest risk as at the year end exposure does BE R A 2 R b g%g fglm
not reflect the exposure during the year. o AESREDN %g -
TEBREKME - %é%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under Expected Credit
Loss (“ECL"”) model upon application of HKFRS 9
on trade receivables and contract assets based on
credit rating. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Mainland China
and Hong Kong.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 46%
(2020: 54%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2021 which was due from customers
engaged in the banking industry.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

MR REE m

Corporate

1 IR R E @
(b) FEER K @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances

B R - E 18 IR
TT17 5+ IR1TE R 7 54
RRIT 77

2
[
>
o

2021 F K=+

The Group also have concentration of credit risk rEEFEHREEESER zim
on pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits ERRITHEEARITRE 2s
which are deposited with banks with high credit ?J\&fEﬁEHﬂT_?AJTTE

rating. Other than the above, the Group does %EPE'E B o bR Lt

not have any other significant concentration CAEEWEAEMER ®

of credit risk. The credit risks on pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank
deposits and bank balances has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and has
assessed the expected credit loss rate under 12
month expected credit loss (“ECL") method based
on the Group's assessment in the risk of default of
the respective counterparties.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has assessed

%¢Eﬁ Br o RRAE K
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that the expected loss rates for other receivables, B EEMERR  EE T S
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and HIRTHERRITEHE %gf
bank balances were insignificant. Thus, no loss RABITERNFERER e
allowance for other receivables, pledged bank TTEK B It R iR A o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Amount due from an associate

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the expected credit
loss of amount due from an associate based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company believe
that there is a significant increase in credit risk
of this amount since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on lifetime ECL.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group assessed the ECL for amount due from
an associate, RMB590,000 (2020: RMB111,000)
loss allowance was recognised.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

3 BI¥ERERE@m

3.1 i EREZE @
(b) EERE K @)

AEEABEERR AR5

Corporate

Financial

comprises the following categories: i EETER gf \'f
Trade receivables Other _
Category  Description and contract assets financial assets £ 4
b3l i ERERRENEE HEHEE %E
Sat
Performing  The counterparty has a low risk of  Lifetime ECL — not 12 month ECL =
default and does not have any credit-impaired g =
past-due amounts 2
E% HrENEARREEEARERE HREBBEEERE — NREAEBEEER é
KR 55
Watch list ~ Debtor frequently repays after due  Lifetime ECL — not 12 month ECL
dates but usually settle after due credit-impaired = =
date é él
i2pzd BEBAZRAPEFEBERRE KIRPEEFE — R2ERBRHAEEERE 5 2
] K {5 R fE g2
Doubtful There has been a significant Lifetime ECL — not 12-month ECL
increase in credit risk since initial credit-impaired .
recognition through information §
developed internally or external %
resources z
AJ &t NEEENRINBERNELET KEBVHAEEERE 128 AFEHEEEBR
EERRBEVNHERELRERE — NMEARIE
i 7J|] 1) (2R
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL <0y
asset is credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
BB EREBRABECERRE REBBEEER rERBEEER g
— EERRIE — BEERRIE 5w
o g%
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written ééj%
the debtor is in severe financial off s
difficulty and the Group has no _
realistic prospect of recovery =85
% 3 BEBRABKALEABRENHRN SBEBEZXIE T R I ‘ﬁﬁ
EEAEEARKEL YD i R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
estimate default rates and loss rates by making
reference to the credit rating given by external
ranking agency over the expected lives of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information, including but not limited to changes
of future economics, GDP growth rate forecast
and market environment, that available without
undue cost or effort.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed based on the provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of
their corresponding estimated default rates and
loss rates, together with the forward-looking
information.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEEKREREm
(Continued) %g?
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B Rk EE @ =

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEB @ .
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRIFNWAER S G E _ ?}
the Group's financial assets, contract assets, which E AHNBEEENTEHSE S
are subject to ECL assessment: EEBTHNEERRE =39

Internal é 58
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount w5 -
ABER  NEARYEEEE _
Hit FR FREGEMEEER REEEAR 5
2020 2
RMB000 S
— o <
}\E#}:FE £
o © B
Financial assets at amortised cost -
RBHEEATECEREE 5 m
Trade receivables 20 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 199,870 189,094 E i]‘l
— contracts with customers — not credit-impaired é 5=
BRER —BEFAH 3 BRRBEEESNEIESE £
EER — AERRAE
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 94,880 67,199 t¥¥
— not credit-impaired = ;1“’
2pa BRRBEREESNEIESE E= g
SEB — RERAE 3
Doubtful Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 51,187 20,175 T
— not credit-impaired -
A&t BERBERESNEIESE _y
SR — RERAE Stw
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,437 1,471 ggg
BA REBBEEBRRE — EGERARME ‘
Other receivables 23 Performing  12-month ECL 31,272 19,586 é 41
Hih R % REARSREEER g5

=
o]
c
<
=
ic
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(b) Credit risk (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

3 BI¥EREREm

3.1 I EREZE @
(b) EER K @

Internal
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
w4 A 12EREHEEFR
i A& RAGEHAEEER REEELAE
2020
RMB’000
ARET T
Financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)
REBHERSGTECSRMEE (H)
Amount due from an associate 24 Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 13,901 13,311
JE B & 1\ R FRIA BB KEEHEEER —
BEERRE
Pledged bank deposits, fixed bank 25 Performing  12-month ECL 1,233,559 1,344,656
deposits and bank balances and
cash
BEBBIESR  BIITHERMN E% NEAEHREEESE
FOERERE
Other items
Hig e
Contract assets 22 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 14,054 13,512

AHEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MHERERE@® 252
(Continued) g %Iﬁ
8“‘_56

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 IR EEE @ = Ei
9 Sim

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE @ o
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, ERAEBEERKREE ﬁét

the Group applies internal credit rating for its B —3n  NEBREHE Rk
customers in relations to its operation. The BHBENEFPETAZ(E =g
following table provides information about the BiEf - TRAREKER o
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which ERFEHEERE (K 52

is assessed based on provision matrix within EHREREE) BT ERNE E%f
lifetime ECL (Not credit-impaired). A Debtor with HBEEIEHEERR - o

credit-impaired with gross carrying amount of M2021612H318 - % 5

RMB1,437,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: FEEmEBEAEAARE i
RMB1,471,000) was assessed individually. 1,437,0007C (20204 @ A éﬁii

R #1,471,00070) M E 12 23l%

BRENEBAETTE goH

BTl =

Gross carrying amount FREEEAZZE ggg

O © X

At 31 December 2021 g

720215128318 -

K

:‘gggtﬁ

£ Y

Internal credit rating W1 A RE AR §§ 2%

Performing E® 0.65% 199,870 0.65% 14,054 S oEm

Watch list F7hza 1.09% 94,880 — = "
Doubtful Al &% 2.45% 51,187 — — .
345,937 14,054 §5fﬂ;
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RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERKBEEm
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 i AEREZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEE B @)
Gross carrying amount (Continued) FREEEAE5E ()
Average Trade Average Contract
At 31 December 2020 loss rate receivables loss rate assets
#2020%12831H TR FEURER FHEEX BHEE
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETIT
Internal credit rating A= AFER
Performing e 1.54% 189,094 1.54% 13,512
Watch list x 2.20% 67,199 — —
Doubtful AJ &k 5.13% 20,175 — —
276,468 13,512

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the trade receivables within performing, watch list
and doubtful at the end of the reporting period
which have been past due over 90 days are not
considered as in default with the consideration
that most of the customers are banking institutes
and the expected subsequent and historical

repayment from trade debtors.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the amount due from an associate was within
the category of loss. There is evidence indicating
that the debtor is credit-impaired. Impairment loss
on amount due from an associate amounted to
RMB590,000 (2020: RMB111,000) is provided.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE m

Corporate
Information
SEEH

3.1 i EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the contract assets was within the category
of performing. Since the assessed probability
of default of contract assets is minimal, no

ARREERB AHNE
EBRIEEER - ARG
RANAHNEEEZOBRERR
o B N ETER R E B 1B

2021

n il
o
g
zi
2
TN
o
E(\1

impairment loss (2020: nil) is provided. (20204 : 47) o ‘é ?
= S
Eg,\
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the B E2021F12H31H 1k -
Group performed impairment assessment and ZEE AEEBYHERE 5
did not provide allowance for credit losses for KB U R E A E U B i
financial assets other than trade receivables, RAEIRIEAINN © REE B 55
contract assets and amount due from an associate #EIT T RUER S B R R e
as the calculated provision is insignificant after FEBEREE AAZE %Eﬁ
considering the probability of default, loss rate FEOMATRENE  BEX s
and adjustment with forward-looking information. MEBAEEREENHA B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEREREE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 i EKREZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEE B @)
The following table shows the movement in TRETRREILET B
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade ERCERANKRGIEHSE
receivables under the simplified approach. BEEEfNEE -

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(Non-credit (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
RERH RERH
FEE#R FEE#R
(RERAE) (BEARE) &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR

As at 1 January 2020 R2020F1818 7,604 1,572 9,176
Changes due to financial instruments RIATERACEHMIA

recognised as at 1 January: Sl -

— Impairment losses reversed — REEEEED (6,543) (101) (6,644)
New financial assets originated HELREE 4,361 — 4,361
As at 31 December 2020 ®2020512A31H 5,422 1,471 6,893
Changes due to financial instruments RIATARRZEMIA

recognised as at 1 January: Sl L -

— Impairment losses reversed — REBEEE (5,386) (34) (5,420)
New financial assets originated MEEMAE 3,562 = 3,562
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12831H 3,598 1,437 5,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3

For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.
Our Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated
through the availability of financing through
its own cash resources to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of our directors, our
Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

3

R T E N EEAC )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

B EREEE m

3.1 i EREZE @
() REHEREK

RENRIUERARERE
REEFEANRE A
CEEY - AKE AR
HEGRGERETRE
BEITH M F AR - &M
E-FREERER
- AEBEERSAE
ErAEBERNRB LR

TRAJNAEEFETES
MEENRBREOHR -
FZRDERAEEAEL
XN RFAHMNESRE
BORMRBES R -
Hith T2 B E2 5
BEMmEMMEBR B - %
REFEMNEANRERER -

At 31 December 2021 R2021£12A31R

Trade and bill payables ERERREMNER 422,506 - - = 422,506 422,506

Other payables EtERE 8,867 - - - 8,867 8,867
431,373 - - - 431,373 431,373

Lease liabilities HEAE 2,055 4,651 5,614 2,789 15,109 14,328
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R TEL N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERKBEEm
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B R b2 A & (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () HENHEEBE (&
Repayable
on demand Total
or less than 3 months 1 year 2years  undiscounted Carrying
3 months t0 1 year t0 2 years to5years  cash flows amount
ek
BN =fiA -k mE AR
fHARER E-f EmE ERE Rengd KEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETRT AR%ETR  ARETRT ARETRT  ARETR
At 31 December 2020 R2020512831H
Trade and il payables ERERREMNER 309,775 55,653 - - 365,428 365,428
Other payables AfERR 4,89 - - - 4,89 4,894
314,669 55,653 = = 370,322 370,322
Lease liabilties HEAE 1471 3,236 5,409 7.210 17,326 16,510
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE m

Corporate
Information
BERER

3.2 A RBEME

3.2 Fair value estimation

ights

Financial

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial (a) ZEAAREBEKEMS o
assets that are measured at fair value ENFEETREE o
on a recurring basis WA REE 53K
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured REBLDEHEERNT =K
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. BEHREHRIZRA L BE Co.
The following table gives information about E-HARZELRHEERN Eﬁéﬁ
how the fair values of these financial assets A EBEZPMTEEOGER 22y
are determined (in particular, the valuation EEBHEREROE A
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level ) URERFTEAR 5
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair BEA A SIS ERE é;?
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to EMNENAABEER 23
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the (FI1EREFIEL) A Eom
fair value measurements is observable. B RREM - ”%?mi“r‘

=
e Level 1 fair value measurements are those o EIEAZXAREBEESR 5w
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in SHEEAHEREEXK e
active market for identical assets or liabilities; BENERTISHNR 2 gl
BCRIERE)HE 552
= l“
e Level 2 fair value measurements are those o ZFE2ERAREESR -
derived from inputs other than quoted prices EEERABREIBR
included within Level 1 that are observable HERREBIN BE

for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices); and

HEEEER (HIWE
%) & (2012
EBRFTEMKT) A&

Environmental,

R AR =
&
5 0l
. Level 3: fair value measurements are those o FIB RN R EBEG %gf
derived from valuation techniques that ERHBEREFREA -
include inputs for the asset or liability that A ER TR M o
are not based on observable market data HBEIE (T ER 5
(that is, unobservable inputs). ASB)WEENE su
B A BUEE - oS

EHREREEZRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

240

Bt 7% 3 3= M & ()

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 UBHEREE@
(Continued)
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 A REEMEF @

(a) Fair value of the Group'’s financial (a) BAREBELKLE M
assets that are measured at fair value ENAEEELREE
on a recurring basis (Continued) A LEE@E
Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurement EI3E R EL R
The following table presents the reconciliation of THREVNNEREENES
Level 3 Measurement of the financial assets: B 4=t 2 %85 -

Valuation Relationship
Fair value technique(s) and key ~ Significant unobservable inputs to
Financial asset Fair value hierarchy input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
HERER EXFTRR FUBEGAHEHRD
tREE MMEE MEEER  IEHARE BAEE AEEZBE
Structured deposits As at 31 December 2021:  Level 3 Net asset value as Estimated return ranged  The higher the estimated
RMB180,205,000 stated on the from 1.05% to return, the higher the
(as at 31 December 2020: quotation report 3.55% (as at 31 fair value and vice
RMB256,733,000 issued by financial December 2020 versa.
institutions ranged from 1.15%
105.25%)

SRUEER R20215128318 : 3B R SRERLAY RathaaEMR1.05% BithaEds -

AR 180,205,007 RERSPEAN  F355% MEEER:
(20206128318 : EERE (RO0F12R31B: RZAHAe
AR #256,733,0007) gEMm1.15%

75.25%)

Unlisted equity (Sichuan As at 31 December 2021: Level 3 Asset-based valuation  Discount ratio The higher the discount
Zhongruan Technology Ltd. ~ RMB Nil method - fair ratio, the lower the fair
("SCZR")) (as at 31 December 2020: value is estimated value and vice versa.

not applicable) by multiplying the
carrying amount of
the recoverable net
assets of investee
which is in the state
of bankruptcy and
liquidation, with a
certain discount ratio

FLmkE 201E128318 : £3ER BEREZ—DAE HEX EREHE AAER
(mIeREERAR  AREE ENHREBRER B RZR
(o)) (2020%12R318 : Figh) REREMEN TN

EEEENRAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B 7% B B B I ()

Corporate
Information
BEREHR

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 A REEMEF @ =
(a) Fair value of the Group's financial (a) BAAEBELE MG .
assets that are measured at fair value ENFEEERMEE o
on a recurring basis (Continued) NAREE @ 53‘};’
RMB’000 =8
}\EM:Fﬁ: ~; 41
At 1 January 2020 R2020F181H 180,084 Sat
Net gain on financial assets PREEF R 3,372 N
Purchase of financial assets BESREE 256,000 7 =
Redemption of financial assets BOmEE (182,723) e
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 256,733 %
Net gain on financial assets S RVE EF WS 5,331 5 L
Purchase of financial assets HFESMEE 455,000
Redemption of financial assets BoemEE (536,859) 5
At 31 December 2021 7R2021412A31H 180,205 é

Except for the reclassifying of the equity
investment of SCZR from interest in an associate
to FVTPL (see Note 18) in the period, there were
no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
periods.

The total gains for the year included a realised
gain of RMB5,126,000 and an unrealised gain of
RMB205,000 relating to financial assets that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period (2020: a realised gain of RMB2,639,000
and an unrealised gain RMB733,000). Such fair
value gains are included in “other losses, net”.

EHREREEREBAT —F

BN DN e /N
ANERE AR BER
ERHEDHTAZTHESR
(R EE18) 4 - M fE HA FE
i@#ﬁi@})\ﬁ%ﬂi%B@%& °

EARBEMENERE
ERHEHAE TR K=
ANER#5126,000T M AE
Iz A R #205,0007T
(2020F : EEIHR U A
R #2,639,0007t R A E R
Hﬁzﬁ/\E ?%733 oooﬁ)

At A FE@EEE : @%’EJ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3

242

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses the market value as
stated on the quotation report issued by financial
institutions.

In estimating the fair value of unlisted equity
("SCZR"), the Group uses the investee’s financial
statements as the basis for calculating the fair
value of unlisted equity (“SCZR") under the
asset-based valuation method.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets are disclosed above.

Fair value of financial instruments at
amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values at the end of each reporting
period.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

(a)

(b)

Provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories

Management identified slow moving and obsolete
inventories that were no longer suitable for use in
production or sales based on ageing analysis, and
estimated the provision for inventories based on ageing
of inventories, current market price and estimated
future market demand.

The identification of slow moving and obsolete
inventories required the use of significant judgment
and key assumptions which take into consideration of
historical sales records, utilisation records, ageing and
expectations for future sales orders. Such judgment was
subject to uncertainties as a result of future changes in
market trends and customer demands.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are
assessed based on the provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar credit
risk characteristics, with consideration of their
corresponding estimated default rates and loss rates,
together with the forward-looking information. The
Group uses estimations and judgments to estimate
default rates and loss rates by making reference to
the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(b).

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

4 BRETHEERHE

(a)

(b)

EHREREEZRERAT

mHEREFERE

IR I IR 4 0 0 5 T 4 BB 2
57 75 3 FR 0 2 2 2 8 B R
ErE UREEEER Y
A1 T 453 A 9B B R 2K 25
S {3t 7 B o

BRFBHEEREFERERE
RAEERBFARER AFTEE
ELHERERLE FEK
A RERRHEFT ENTAH -
HRMZBEMEFFRAR
KEL BEHAFNIRRFE
THEFE I o

TREEZRE

CREAEREREREENEE
EE - BABAEFEHEUEAER
BREBgNSEEFSADHE I
ERHEBEHGFTELNENIE
KR ARATESERE S RFTMHE
e RNEBBRSEINBIR
BELEOEATANER R
BREREZMATEEESE &
B 5T R0 1 B 2R 18 51 49 =
BRE - AEBE AR
R EIETPN ¢ = A
FE3.1(b)AI TR AEH o

—Bo—FFg 243

Corporate

Financial

2021

0
o
>

i}

=

o~
o
~N

FX

)
=
9]
g
©
&a

»
©
©

(@]

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Environmental,
Social and

Report of
Directors

EEgR

$E AR

Corporate Governance
Report
A

Financial
Statements

I
&
8
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

244

INFORMATION

(a) Description of segments and principal

activities

Segment information has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports which are reviewed by the
Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, in order to allocate resources to the
operating and reportable segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Embedded software and secure payment products —

BMARKH ML 2 Em —

Platform and service —

F e kR —

Each operating and reportable segment derives its
revenue from the sales of products and provision of
data processing services. They are managed separately
because each product requires different production and
marketing strategies.

Segment results represent the gross profits earned by
each segment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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DEHERARBAIEERS
AETEM M - bR B E IR W
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AEEEMN UMREEER
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HERE -
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AEBEERARED AT -

Manufacture and sale of embedded
software and secure payment products for
smart secure payment

HEMBETELEXTRINRAAK
2N Em

Provision of data processing, digital
equipment, system platforms and other
total solutions for customers in a wide
business range including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation and
retails by leveraging innovative Fintech

mEE Jsﬁﬁ‘i\ﬁﬂﬂ& Ao BT HE
RB-EEEECENEFIRESEERE
CHF 1t S EABETAREMEBREEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

For the year ended 31 December

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R T E N EEAC )

2021 REZE2021F128318BILZFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDHEE @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)
(a) Description of segments and principal (a) o SPHmul BE F E R B (:
activities (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and R AEREBIKZAHREDIH
results by reportable segment: WAREE 2D :
Revenue Results
(Y ON ¥E
2020 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTFT
Sales to external parties of  [ISMNBRF 2 H4E
— embedded software and ~ — Bx AR E M Z
secure payment products X HNEM® 752,828 747,781 186,089 181,930
— platform and service — EEER 623,696 534,122 218,053 201,907
1,376,524 1,281,903 404,142 383,837
Other income H U A 46,297 52,949
Other losses, net HEE - S5 (8,432) (33,821)
Research and development A Z5pk A&
costs (120,502) (109,840)
Selling and distribution costs $5& &9 #HE F (126,500) (91,938)
Administrative expenses TR (40,499) (34,939)
Reversal of impairment loss on J& 4 & 7R B &5 18
trade receivables B g 1,806 2,154
Impairment loss on amount  [EUCHE & A E1ZIE 2
due from an associate HEEE (590) (111)
Reversal of impairment loss on BB A 7] 2 2 2
interests in an associate B B R — 1,500
Finance costs B B R AR (783) (549)
Profit before income tax & BT B 5 A F 154,939 169,242
The management of the Group makes decisions AREEEEERES D BER
according to the gross profit of each segment. No EE L - MESTEERE

information of segment assets and liabilities is available
for the assessment of performance of different business
activities. Therefore, no information about segment
assets and liabilities is presented.

& & B A LA P45 R R 505
BOHRR- Bl TE2BH
BAERAEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B 7S 3R R M R (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDEHESR wm
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Revenue (b) WA
The segment information for the year ended 31 #H Z£2021F12H31H Kk20204F
December 2021 and 2020 by business segment are as NRAMBLEZFESEBHE
follows: ZHHERMT :

Types of goods or services &Y S REEE
Embedded software and BRA

secure payment products T2y NER 752,828 — 752,828
Data processing HIE R — 239,988 239,988
Digital equipment HF(%E — 383,708 383,708
Total &5t 752,828 623,696 1,376,524

Revenue from sale of embedded software and secure BAXBHB ML 2 NERD
payment products and sale of digital equipment are HERARBFERBHHEE
recognised at a point in time, and revenue from data We A\ 72 5 B P B W R T X
processing services are recognised over time. R IR AR TS ) U RIS — R B

RARER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDHEE @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Corporate
Information
AR

(b) Revenue (Continued) (b) WA ()

Financial
Highlights
MBHmE

2021
Major Events
2021F KFi

Chairman’s
Statement
EREHE

Geographical markets HE TS 5 Ef
Overseas and the special BINREBRERITTHE 5 S
administrative regions of ([&#&]) R g
Hong Kong HRIFTHE (TR ) -
(“Hong Kong") and 5 -
Macao (“Macao”) 76,956 43,933 120,889 & i
Mainland China t A it 675,872 579,763 1255635
Total At 752,828 623,696 1376524
For the year ended 31 December 2020 t;;
BZE2020512A31A 1L 2 5 T 58
Embedded 5590
software and s
secure 5%,
payment Platform O
products and service Total
AR 5ol
nx2 585
TREMR Fa kR B galg
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

=

Types of goods or services E¥ = RBEESE S5«
Embedded software and A ZE AN g2y
secure payment products ZEINER 747,781 = 747,781 g «
Data processing HiERE — 225,640 225,640 S
Digital equipment Bk — 308,482 308,482 )
© c4
Total EEr 747,781 534,122 1,281,903 E %;*IS

EHEABZRERAT —S=—F58% 24/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R TEL N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Revenue (Continued)

5 WARDZHER @

(b) WA )

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HBZ2020F128318 L2 FE
Embedded
software and
secure
payment Platform

products and service Total
BRARBMY
Mzz

XN EmM FakR% A&t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTT AR®T T

Geographical markets 1t B %
Overseas and Hong Kong BN B ABFRM

and Macao 70,124 20,232 90,356
Mainland China B 3 677,657 513,890 1,191,547
Total BEr 747,781 534,122 1,281,903

(c) Other information

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
except for financial instruments and deferred tax assets
by location of assets is presented as below:

() HEH

AEBERERIAKELERE
BENINZHIBEFRRBEER
BEMEWE D 2RMT :

2020
RMB’000

AR®T T

Hong Kong BB 134,869 150,666
Mainland China SeRElvNp:] 367,318 319,483
502,187 470,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Other information (Continued)

Information about major customer

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was
one customer with revenue of RMB151,888,000
in aggregate (2020:Nil) from the segments of both
embedded software and secure payment products and
platform and service which accounted for more than
10% of the Group's total revenue.

R T E N EEAC )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

5 WARDZEHER @

(c) EtER @)
EBETEEFMWER

HE2021F12A831H It 2 F
E R ARNRKGNET 2
EaMEekREoHE —
BAEPHBRALRT BEARKE
151,888,0007T (20204F : &) 1
AEEFEBRKARI0%A E

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HlkA
2020
RMB'000
ARETIT
Government grants BRI 8 B 6,272 8,112
Interest income from bank deposits 817 1% 3% F & W A 23,900 28,260
Value-added tax refund 1% (8 T 3R B 14,088 14,846
Rental income from investment BEWENHES KA
property 1,463 1,532
Others Hib 574 199
46,297 52,949
7 OTHER LOSSES, NET 7 HMEE - FHE
2020
RMB'000
ARETIT
Net exchange losses P& 5 E 18 FE (13,709) (37,083)
Investment income from financial BARBEAABEEZEME
assets at FVTPL EZERA 5,126 2,639
Unrealised gain from financial assets 2 A A BEABRZZEBME
at FVTPL (Note 3.2) EZAREBRWE (K1:23.2) 205 733
Others =i} (54) (110)
(8,432) (33,821)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 KBHEBESENEH
2020
Note RMB’'000
Bt ARBT T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 19 826,971 761,694
Reversal of provision for FEEERED
inventories (9,510) (910)
Employee benefits expenses BEIRFBER 9 216,325 197,957
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ - &= MR ETE
and equipment 14 30,802 35,168
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEERE
assets 15 7,284 9,286
Depreciation of investment wEWMERE
property 16 2,056 2,153
Amortisation of intangible assets & JiZ & 7= # 44 17 2,096 2,290
Reversal of warranty provision B RS B E R (3,062) (1,713)
Legal and professional fees EENMBEEER 2,983 2,495
Auditor’s remuneration % 25 B B <
— audit services — R 1,311 1,216
— non-audit services — BT 415 391
Business entertainment expenses % &1B1FE A 7,348 5,086
Freight and duties EBEREM 18,526 12,077
Professional service fee HERKE 32,490 17,574
Testing fees R & 13,858 10,583
Travelling and transportation =IRE
expenses 20,364 14,929
Other expenses H i & 89,626 64,507
Total cost of sales, research and & AN » AR -
development costs, selling HERDHAZUR
and distribution expenses and THRXZ A
administrative expenses 1,259,883 1,134,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

R T E N EEAC )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

$éz
2020 SEd
RMB'000
ARBTR  3ip
£82
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) EE=Me (#aF10) 15,724 15,949
Retirement benefits scheme RIKTE A ET IR (A7) e
contributions (Note) 12,795 6,743 §aK
Staff costs B BRA 187,806 175,265 3
Total employee benefit expenses BETIFBERAG 216,325 197,957 EEu
Note: The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in Hong B AEEREBNEREISNESATE S
Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees S ARBBEER EEFTEZHANE _
are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s salaries, up to a T AHKS% - LAE A A %1,5007T 2 =
maximum of HKD 1,500 per employee per month. The assets of MPF are RER - BRESHNEERREB O geq®
held separately from those of the Group companies in an independently HXFEABLER o ‘ET?%
administered fund. g <im
g ot
2~
The qualifying employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China AEBRTPRAHHBRARNERES S
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated 2N AT EBAEENBERERRINE -
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a Fetd - ZEWB LRI BRETERE 5
— 2] . o il
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to ) — € Lt Bl e AR AR AR R AT BB FR - A& S o my
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the E R RE A R E - B ERREZ = g
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under B R TR R - %}{}7
the scheme. ge
= i
[a)
Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation. No forfeited B buts REBIWEEMEE -8
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the BRI K (RIEFRZSEHRTE 40
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the SEAMERLHAEZEEED) THESE - é*L’t
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. FAABIRIR A K EZ K - %g S
€ - =
53 ca@
s 3 5@
5 éé
E‘Z;;
4
® 5
— O #F
‘gg éﬁ]l
2ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10

252

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

10

EE EHFEHTEHRAN
REFHETHS

2020

RMB’'000

ARETF T

Directors’ fees we 547 573
Other emoluments to executive EMFHITESHING

directors

— basic salaries and allowances — EXRE o HER 9,901 10,070

— bonus — DAL 5,196 5,212
— retirement benefits scheme — RIRAEFIFT B

contributions 80 94

15,724 15,949

Unless indicated otherwise, the bonus of the directors was
discretionary and determined with reference to the Group's
performance, individual performances and comparable market
statistics.

Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (the “Chief
Executive”) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
below include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10 EE - EFEHTEEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEEMEaTME @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Corporate
Information
e

= 2R

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, WRIEEA 2 BB & A B EE T ézii;%
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and B ESNERHTEAFEZMHE I E
Companies Ordinance is as follows: LU i
i

S oK

For the year ended 31 December 2021: HZE2021F12A318IE2FE - S
£g

EREWmE

Chairman’s
Statement

o Uim
£
o © B
c
(A) Executive directors (A) BITEE z !
Mr. Lu Run Ting ERERE 3,468 — 2,221 — 5,689 _
Mr. Lu Runyi EBEE 1,208 - 539 15 170
Mr. Hou Ping FERRLE 2471 - 1,777 15 4,263 2ER
Mr. Wu Sigiang ZREBEE 610 - 300 20 930 g gg&
Mr. Ling Wai Lim EREEE m = 154 15 911 g
Ms. Li Yijin (Note) SRR (HF) 1,402 - 205 15 1,622 -
4o
(B) Independent non-executive (B) BYFHTES = éj’i
directors é % E E,[:
Ms. Ye Lu ) T — 164 — — 164 sge®
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin EXREE — 219 - - 219 & %j;
Mr. Yang Geng BBEE = 164 = — 164 w

==

9,901 547 5,196 80 15,724

Z 3R

Report of
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=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10 EE - EFEHITEEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EESEMETME @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020: HZE2020F 128318 L2 FE ¢
Retirement
Basic salaries benefits
and Directors’ scheme
allowances fees Bonus  contributions Total
354 RINET
H2E e A4 SHEIfT A

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARET:R

(A) Executive directors (A BTEE
Mr. Lu Run Ting ERELA 3,631 - 2,326 = 5,957
Mr. Lu Runyi EEREE 1,265 - 565 16 1,846
Mr. Hou Ping LS 2,587 - 1,860 16 4,463
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong (Note) ENEEA (HE) 271 = = 10 281
Mr. Wu Sigiang REREE 622 - 300 20 942
Mr. Ling Wai Lim BERREE 776 - 161 16 953
Ms. Li Yijin (Note) SRR (HE) 918 - - 16 934
(B) Independent non-executive (B) BYFHTEE
directors
Ms. Ye Lu Rt - 172 - - 172
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BXREAE — 229 - - 229
Mr. Yang Geng BBEE — 172 - - 172
10,070 573 5,212 9 15,949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10 EE - EFEHTEEAN

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

EeFME IS @

FHRATESCME REEEAQE
RAEEEBZRGE

Corporate
Information

Financial
Highlights
B

DRAH

R R
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown FRBIRAITESFCHEETERHE S
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EBRNATIEEZREE o =S
Note: et - ngz S
sk
— Mr. Lu Xiaozhong was retired as executive director with effect from 18 — E/NB A B2020F5 5188 BRI #H fﬂjg 1
May 2020. TEE -
— Ms. Li Yijin was appointed as executive director with effect from 18 — FHELTHR2020F5 18 EZ T A %
May 2020. HITESE - a
The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 BZE2021F12A31B L2 FE R %
December 2021 included four (2020: four) directors of the ReH AT BEME (20209 - M 5

Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above.
The remuneration of the remaining one (2020: one) highest
paid individuals who is neither a director nor Chief Executive
of the Company during the year was as follows:

fEFE HMSFBHEHRN LK K
EEREFRRTEI AFEH TR

— {7 (20205 : — 1) ZmHFM AL
MBS T -

Directors and Senior

2020
RMB'000
o — 4
ART T . &%
%? &jﬁ
- E° Y
Employee BT sga®
— basic salaries and allowances — E R Fr & BERL 1,659 1,694 zve”
O,‘Dg
— bonus — D4 83 — ™
— retirement benefits scheme — RIREFEEIH R
contributions = 15 5ol
égqﬂl
2
1,742 1,709 18
°
x
S

EHREREEZRERAT
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10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose fell within the following
bands is as follows:

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10 EX - EFHITEEAN

EaFME IS @

BREEUINEEHFMALHOABRET
REBEN :

Number of employees
ETIAE

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017E

A K #2,000,0007T

1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.

Directors’ retirement and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
and termination benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by any third

parties for making available directors’ services during the year
(2020: Nil).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 10 EE - EFEHTEEAN

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FEaHFME I ME @ gé?@
BEX 1= 8 5%
SES
EMPLOYEES (Continued) _
= 2k
I A A 2 ol
Information about loans, quasi-loans and BERUESE -ZTZE5EEE5E 5L
other dealings in favour of directors, SN EABEEBNZEEEN
controlled bodies corporate by and AEERAZSZANER =
0.0 o o S S S ~ oK
connected entities with such directors EEREREMRXZHNER S5k
No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in R ek F N {E ) Fr ] - B AR B
favour of the directors of the Company, or controlled bodies N BEERTREESITHNEAE é ?‘M
corporate by and connected entities with such directors BYZEEENEETLEATEAN E%ﬁ%
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the EX - EERREMZTZHTHE - -
year. 5
Directors’ material interests in EERNRS - ZHFEELH 5%
- g <im
transactions, arrangements or contracts EDW I ES Com
g
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in N EREF S E RE A R - AN 58 =
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a BIIVHEASEEKEBAARRRE 5
party and in which a director of the Company had a material EREREENEEREEAEZD égi;
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of BARS BHEREH - = ai:;
the year or at any time during the year. 5§§
£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1

258

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax
expense, and shows what amounts are recognised directly in
equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable
and non-deductible items. It also explains significant
estimates made in relation to the Group’s tax position.

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

11 FISHREHR

RIEMELIT T AEBHNAFHRE
A AR TERERESERN SR
AR BER R A HEHIE B %
EREAXL  BERETREANKEON
B ARRE R E AR ET

2020
RMB’'000
ART T
Current income tax BV HA BT 43 %5 18

Mainland China corporate R TSR
income tax 1,950 13,452
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 7,638 4,392
Mainland China withholding tax o B A TE P AS R = 9,412
9,588 27,256
Deferred income tax TR IE 7,400 (3,274)
Income tax expense Fristi & M 16,988 23,982

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKD2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, starting from the year ended
31 December 2019, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 8.25% on the first HKD2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HKD2,000,000 for Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021

M EF E BB RSB Iz h 5T B R
TR EY16.5%5T & o

EBETESN2018E3A21B BB T
20175 % (BE]) (B75%) G A E
=) ([EHER]) - ZIEHIERSIA
B MRS - 2 R2018F3528H
RERBEERIRBRAIE - EFE
TGS T HRFEERNEEE
B2 B 8 #52,000,0007T % A B9 A 13 5
& £58.25% + B i85 #2,000,0007T
=AM B D KRS E B16.5% © &
EREANSHMANNER T E
BB S —LA16.5% B FEF R - 43
FEH - B A E2019F 128318 [FF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11

For the year ended 31 December 2021

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Mainland China corporate income tax is calculated at
the applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are subject
to Mainland China corporate income tax at 25%, except
that Goldpac Limited which is approved for 3 years as an
enterprise satisfied as a High-New Technology Enterprise and
is entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% in 2017, 2018
and 2019. Goldpac Limited has obtained the renewal in 2020
and continued to be entitled to the preferential tax rate of
15% in 2020, 2021 and 2022.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No.
1, only the profits earned prior to 1 January 2008, when
distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered with
the exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the Corporate Income Tax Law and
Article 91 of its Implementation Rules, dividend distributed
out of the profit generated thereafter, shall be subject to
corporate income tax at 10% or reduced tax rate if tax treaty
or arrangement applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement,
withholding tax rate on dividend distribution to the qualifying
Hong Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred tax liability
on the undistributed profits earned by Goldpac Limited since
1 January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.

EHREREEZRERAT

fr e B R a3k B R (|)

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

11 FTEHER @

TEAMEEAERRETEALE
ARERRBERANOMERTE -

AR F)HY AR A B B A R 125 % B
MEHMPE RN ERER - S
FHEZERAREWRE A= FME
¥ WA R20174F ~ 20184 %2019
FZFERNERISHNERKRR - &
ZEHRATIDN2020F EBELN - I
Al FA20204F - 20214 R2022FE =4
NEBEZZI5%NERFR -

BEVERIMBRREERMH
(2008)F 15k Bt & B AN - K [A 35 4N K
BEEEHDIRE - R B R2008%F1AH
18 Z B BREX A% FI 0] e g FE 0 FH o
R BB ERTS A E3E K27
ERHEEHAMBIEIEIRTE  LAH%E
EEMFES R B - BiE10%:K
(WM BERZHER) BRIEA R
KEAMEEMSH - BREABRKE
B DETFTEEREBERAARE
MBI EBS% - HEFRAQ A
E2008F 1 A1 8 B BEM KD &
FEER B ETE L5 %I RTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R TEL N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit before
tax as follows:

FEeHREA @

4 [ ST P BLIR BL AT B R
mF -

2020
RMB’000
AREF T

Profit before tax B B AT & A 154,939 169,242
Tax at PRC tax rate of 25% 1%25% R B R+ E 1 B8

(2020: 25%) (20204F : 25%) 38,735 42,311
Tax effect of expenses not PHHBFAXOHE T E

deductible for tax purpose 4,287 5,252
Tax effect of income not taxable BHEIHRBANRGEZE

for tax purpose (4,509) (6,496)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRBEEONBHETE

recognised 2,646 791
Tax effect of tax concession HMIEEBENHETE (26,999) (25,459)
Tax effect of different tax rate of EEMBRE R EZERLELERN

subsidiaries operating in other tax Bt /& A & &) 1 B 7 R 59

jurisdiction Mg (2,310) (173)
Withholding EIT on undistributed R B s A ) A B FE 04 3

profits in the PRC FriS 3t 5,694 7,346
Others HAth (556) 410
Income tax expense for the year FEMMEHRER 16,988 23,982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 B8KRER
The basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of SBERARAREAEANGRERAER SEQ
the Company is calculated by dividing: RIBBATAEETHE B
o the profit attributable to owners of the Company ° NN EER AFEGTE é?
e by the weighted average number of ordinary shares e KBRUAXRESHFEZEBTHM
outstanding during the financial year HE 19 3 5 PR I

2021
Major Events

20219 K5

Profit for the period attributable ARBEE AREHAFNE ECh
to owners of the Company (AR¥T ) 5o
(RMB’'000) 138,184 145,665 B

Weighted average number of =B 5 A% B AR 2 F BT ER RO B0 S
ordinary shares for the purpose WEF A5 E R I AR B (FAR) g;‘;{
of basic earnings per share (Ha2) -
(thousand) (Note) 823,410 825,907 gem

g il

Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) EAFR AT (ARKE D) 16.8 17.6

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the HiaF : sTEMEERERRES R NEFH E

calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years LB ER  HE MK AR A KD & f
have been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the BIEtE2EE THESEEATRAR T S
Company by an independent trustee under the share award scheme of BHEMRKRG - §

the Company.

i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, diluted B £2021412H31H k20205128 r gﬁ
earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per share MNALZFE  sREFRANRTR 5
as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding EXBANER BRFEYELERE ég fm
during the year. BEMEND BITEBK - 20
G’
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

13

262

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

DIVIDENDS 13 RE
2020
RMB’000
ARET T
2021 Interim — HK2.5 cents 2021FFEFRE — ERERA
(2020 Interim — HK3.0 cents) & & 2 541
per ordinary share (2020F FEH H —
% I A A 3.010) 17,143 21,920
2020 Final — HK10.0 cents 2020 FEARH — BERERA
(2019 Final — HK10.0 cents) % & #510.011
per ordinary share (20195 FERH —
SR E BB E10.000) 67,711 75,938
2020 Special — HK4.0 cents 2020F FEFRIKRE — B
(2019 Special — HK6.0 cents) TR B 4.01L
per ordinary share (20195 FEFRIKRE —
SR E BB Ee6.00L) 27,084 45,563
111,938 143,421

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK10.0 cents (2020: HK10.0 cents) and a special
dividend of HK4.0 cents (2020: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 have
been proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject
to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The dividend declared
after 31 December 2021 has not been recognised as a liability

as at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% - BERZRB 252
SER
Furniture, SEd
fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total E
CENES | E
B® R RE BERKESR ERIR CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 2
ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR%TR ARETT AR%T:H g%T
Cost RA -
At 1 January 2020 120206118 165,559 67,137 5,267 325,448 84,437 647,848 2 g
Additions RE — 7811 — 3171 69,354 80,336 ELF
Disposals RE — (52) — (2,819) — (2,871) SEH
Transfers &7 — 132 — 2,335 (2,467) — -
Exchange realignment iR E (6,517) (59) (59) — - (6,635) .
[a)
At 31 December 2020 120206124318 159,042 74,969 5,208 328,135 151,324 718,678 5
Additions hE = 3,793 1,328 5,074 71,491 81,686 %
Disposals RE — (43) = (13) = (56) s
Transfers &7 — — — 3,754 (3,754) —
Exchange realignment BH AR (2,894) (33) (268) - = (3,195) 5
At 31 December 2021 202146127318 156,148 78,686 6,268 336,950 219,061 797,113 g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

264

(Continued)

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

14 Y% - BERRIRE @

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
Bi KB
BT &L RE HBERKE ERIE at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Depreciation e

At 1 January 2020 1202061818 42,128 52,271 3,425 224,300 — 322,124
Provided for the year FREE 5,961 9,619 536 19,052 = 35,168
Eliminated on disposals RERHHE — (52) — (2,708) — (2,760)
Exchange realignment X AR (976) (78) (12) — = (1,066)
At 31 December 2020 120205124318 47,113 61,760 3,949 240,644 — 353,466
Provided for the year ERNEE 5,805 4,281 426 20,290 = 30,802
Eliminated on disposals B 5 — (43) — (9) — (52)
Exchange realignment I A% (419) (24) (25) — — (468)
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 52,499 65,974 4,350 260,925 - 383,748

Carrying values REEE
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 103,649 12,712 1,918 76,025 219,061 413,365
At 31 December 2020 "2020%12A31H 111,929 13,209 1,259 87,491 151,324 365,212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

15 LEASES 15 #HE g 52
< T Y
S Ew
This note provides information for leases where the Group is AMFRENHESEPAEE K Sgd
a lessee. A o
o ﬁ%b
2 oi
(i) Amounts recognised in the (i) ZREMBRARDER £S5
consolidated statement of financial oL -
position gﬂ
The consolidated statement of financial position shows kR & B A5 RO R R B S AR A §§
the following amounts relating to leases: MEBEWT B
55
Leasehold Leased E %[[
Right-of-use assets lands  properties Equipment Total o
FREEE AELHE  EENE R a -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 % P
ARBTT ARMTT ARETT ARETR s
At 1 January 2020 20201818 25,803 16,373 1,035 43,211 %
Additions NE — 7,995 — 7,995 2
Depreciation we (564) (7,687) (1,035) (9,286) 5
At 31 December 2020 720206 12A31H 25,239 16,681 — 41,920 E
At 1 January 2021 2021F1818 25,239 16,681 — 41,920 5w
Additions NE — 3,189 — 3,189
Depreciation i (564) (6,720) = (7.284)
£2lu
At 31 December 2021 R2021412/8318 24,675 13,150 — S c -
2020 °F
RMB'000
AR T T 5o
9] gw
Lease liabilities HEEE =Om
Current 35 HR 7,107 5,150 g
Non-current JEI8 HA 7.221 11,360 5
14,328 16,510 %g;w
g «

Financial
Statements

EHEABZRERAT —S-—F58 65



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

15

266

LEASES (continued) 15 *Eg (%)
(i) Amounts recognised in the (i) MEBERTBANS
consolidated statement of profit or ]
loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the SEEZRTPHEHEEREN S
following amounts relating to leases: BT
2020
Note RMB’'000
i aE ARET T
Depreciation charge of ERAREEREER
right-of-use assets
Leasehold lands HELH 564 564
Leased properties HEYHE 6,720 7,687
Equipment B — 1,035
8 7,284 9,286
Expense relating to short-term E25EHAFAEMREMHRA X
leases (included in cost of (Fr ASHERK AT
goods sold and administrative Ef )
expenses) 151 236
The total cash outflow for leases during the year REE2021F12A8318 L2 &F
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB6,153,000 (2020: E-HERSRLEREEAAR
RMB9,605,000) excluding short-term leases. #6,153,0007T (2020%F : A B

#9,605,0007T) + He N 4E

HEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

15 LEASES (Continued) 15 HE @)

(i) AEBWHEEEB AR

Corporate
Information
SEEH

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how

these are accounted for

The Group leases various leasehold lands, properties
and equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 50 years for leasehold
lands and 2 years to 5 years for properties and
equipment, respectively.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

M ETE R EE

AEEBAHEKEHEREHEE

T MEREFHE -BELH

BHBEEHRB50F - WX
RIEOHR B2F 255 o

HEGRARBILHEN B85
& T[R9 8 SR R 1 o BR
MABBHEEEMNERER
S - FAE B I RA] -
HEEETSERBRER -

EHEABZRERAT —B=-—F58% 6/

Financial

2021

»n
©
£

‘©

<

(@}

Management Discussion

Financial
Statements

n il
o
g
zi
2
TN
o
E(\1

T REAR
JE S

9]
=
9]
D
©
&a

ERER®ED

(iv) Variable lease payments (iv) I BENI K
A lease of equipment is either with only fixed lease HEzHEAEEBREATETHER B
payments or contain variable lease that is based on the ESeESERIER /A& §ﬁg
volume of printing and minimum annual lease payment ErEHEHANBETHNRIEKSE 5 £y
that is fixed over the lease term. The amount of fixed HEZR - BEAEE Bk g ;?i\
and variable lease payment paid/payable to relevant FENEHEB LA AN RETA gz“::

=, N = i
lessor for the years ended: FHERNTREL -
4
2020 . &%
RMB'000  Z:
ARBT T 5T 5a
Fixed payments BN 1,440 1,080 7
Variable payments Al R 173 507
w i
Total payments B RAE 1,613 1,587 é‘é;ﬂ
£y
g «

I
b
8
=




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16 REY=
2020
RMB’'000
AR®T T
Non-current assets — at cost FERBEE - ALK
Opening balance as at 1 January 1H1 B By 62,576 66,601
Exchange realignment PE W 38 & (1,787) (4,025)
Closing balance as at 12 A31 B R A
31 December 60,789 62,576
Depreciation e
Opening balance as at 1 January 1H1 B By 4k 7,994 6,288
Provided for the year F R 2,056 2,153
Exchange realignment i 5 A (258) (447)
Closing balance as at 12 A31 B R A
31 December 9,792 7,994
Carrying values REEE
At 31 December ®12A31H 50,997 54,582
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (i) REVECEBRZRE
for investment properties Er o O -
2020
RMB’'000
ARET T
Rental income from operating LT E WA
leases 1,463 1,532
Direct operating expenses from EAHEEW AW ER
property that generated rental BEERKEEH
income (2,056) (2,191)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

16 REYZE @)
(i) HEZH

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Corporate
Information
O EEH

(ii) Leasing arrangement

In 2020, the Group leases out certain portion of its office
building under operating lease with rentals payable
monthly. The lease has a lease period of 3 years.

The fair value of the Group’'s investment property
at 31 December 2021 was RMB51,198,000 (2020:
RMB55,274,000). The fair value has been arrived at

R2020% AEBIAE AAH
NHEenK2HRESTALER
oM AE - HEIR3F -

KEBEEMEN2021F12
A31IBEMAAEBEAARE
51,198,0007T (20204 : A R ¥#

2021
Major Events
2021F RFEL

Financial
Highlights

g et

based on a valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal 55,274,0007T) - AR EEEIR € hu
Limited, independent valuer not connected with the B N EE B MmN B T %%‘rt
Group and consideration of management by reference WEPNEEENEBRBAER =
to market value comparison. RAREBEZ2EZEMBEETH <
8 - :
The valuation has been arrived by reference to direct HEEDNEREELBALEET 5
comparison method as available in the market and LEEENEE YEBERS %
where appropriate, on the basis of referencing to the RT2EREREBMEDEDN s

sales transactions of similar commercial properties in
Hong Kong.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest
and best use of the property is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment property and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

EFEOMENRABER B
ZWENRSNRECARZE
ERMER -

HEAREHER A£BERE
MENEBRAARBEEBRE
T

Directors and Senior

Environmental,
Social and

Governance Report
t& RE

4

&R

17 o

2020 "
Fair value i}
Carrying at level 3 ol
amount Hierarchy £ qéjf}
EIBM gag
KHEE®R BRERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 S
ARBTT  ARETR &
Office unit located in Hong Kong AR B BRI B AE T 50,997 51,198 54,582 55,274 gfg

The above investment property is depreciated for 30
years on a straight-line basis.

Eii R E Y E R E KIEN30F
HIBR AT E -

EHEARERERAT —S=-—FF5K 69

=
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c
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R TEL N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

270

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

17 BEREE

Trademarks Goodwill Total
R RS T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETIT
At 1 January 2020 ®2020€181H
Cost (3N 18,318 1,375 19,693
Accumulated amortisation LB EMRE
and impairment (13,932) — (13,932)
Net book amount RHEFE 4,386 1,375 5,761
Year ended 31 December #HZ2020F128318 1
2020 ZEE
Opening net book amount B9 BE R B 4,386 1,375 5,761
Amortisation charge BERY (2,290) — (2,290)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 2,096 1,375 3,471
At 31 December 2020 72020%F12 8318
Cost (3N 18,318 1,375 19,693
Accumulated amortisation 2B EMRE
and impairment (16,222) — (16,222)
Net book amount RHEFE 2,096 1,375 3,471

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R T E N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

18

17 BEEEE @

Corporate
Information
GRER

BE
2

Highlights
5

Financial

Year ended 31 December HZE2021F12A318 L £
2021 ZEE )
Opening net book amount HYIERmEFE 2,096 1,375 3,471 - §g
Impairment charge SHER — (1,375) (1,375) -
Amortisation charge B (2,096) — (2,096) Ltuw
Closing net book amount B REREF (B = — _ Satt
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 g e
Cost A 18,318 1,375 19,693 Sk
Accumulated amortisation and 2 & # 8 AR (B e
impairment (18,318) (1,375) (19.693)
Net book amount RmEFE — - - 5 @
The trademarks are with finite useful lives and are amortised HIZEBEAREAERR - BAESH94E EEJ;M
on a straight-line basis over periods of 5 to 9 years (2020: 5 (20204 : SE|9F) NIAE 43 58 8 - égi
to 9 years). I
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REFE DT 2R tw
c2 &
2020  Eg X
RMB'0O00 & -
AR T T - G
Unlisted investments in associates, &N ELT 2B L AT 5 pill
at cost KA 2,200 32,120 ?ggln
Share of post-acquisition results IR R EE R FEE <0y
and reserves 1,300 (4,929)
Impairment loss on interests in an  REEE QR Z S 2 REEE 2 .
associate (3,500) (22,227) étl
= 4,964 s 4

EHEARERERAT —S=—FF5 /]

MBS

0
_ 2
=5
s}

c €
T o
c =
[
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

RE=E2

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

272

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Name of entity

0215 12A31B L2 FE

18

T B

RABRERRAEKE

2N EZER @

4 N\/
PIEN==NVAN

Z A

EEWMT ¢

Proportion of issued ordinary

Country of incorporation
and operation

share and capital indirectly held
by the Group

Principal activity

HAKBEEEEEAN
BEREH RINELER ERTEBERRER 2L FERK
Kaixin Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands 45% 45%  Investment holding
YEBRARAT EBRARRE BRAF
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. Philippines 45% 45%  Data processing
("Goldpac ACS") FRE HERE
Sichuan Zhongruan Technology ~ Mainland China 19.68% 19.68%  Smart city platform
Ltd. ("SCZR") B A (Note i) (Note i) BEATFAE
MmN EER AR (Hati) (i)
(M) ])

Note i:In February 2021, two external professional firms were appointed by Hiati - 2021462 B AR BB ER S ((2020) )1
the court to act as the liquidation administrators of SCZR pursuant 0104HRASRTEE) Ek T MK IMEFEH 2%
to the court order ((2020))110104%%455% & £ &) . The operation and MO IET )| BB EEE A - 19l
management of SCZR during the period of bankruptcy and liquidation PR E S E RN TR E
is undertaken by the bankruptcy administrator. In November 2021, the I AR o E b SERR A20214E11 24
court declared the bankruptcy of SCZR but the liquidation process was BEMHN)|RERE - & E2021F K »
still in progress at the end of the year 2021. Therefore, according to 70| R E)EE TEDIEEITR o« Bt -
HKAS28R (“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”), the 7@@;%% HERFE285E 218 5] ([ H B
Group has reclassified the equity investment of SCZR from interest in BNANTARARDENEBE])  BARAE
an associate to FVTPL as the Group has lost significant influence over ERAEENU)IFEMEAZE S A
SCZR. The Group has reviewed and estimated the fair value of SCZR on £ E DY) BRI S R
a regular basis under the requirement of HKFRS9. AR EZET>BEARALEBAETA

TEmZ%mﬂﬁF TEBERBEEY
B EEREIRHRTE - FEEZ R
stz R A EE -

Note ii: As at 31 December 2020, the Group was able to exercise significant B atii : 782020412 8318 » AN &£ B 2 ae ¥ rm )|
influence over SCZR because it is entitled to appoint two out of the REGEINEASE  FAASEEN)| F
seven directors of that company under the article of association of that CATER  AEEARIERELZE
company. ERHOHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18 REFENE 2 EHE @ 25z
S T K
S Ew
Aggregate information of associates that BRIEEKEEZ DTN ESL Sg¢
are not individually material =L = L8
Q oiE
2020 £ 2%
RMB'000 B
AR T T - ?@;
The Group's share of losses of REBEERHS AR ZEIE 23
associates — — .
Aggregate carrying amount of NREBRBERNTERZERER o
the Group's interests in these BEASE
associates i 4,964 s .
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss AEEEEILBRELMBE QAR ZEH E
of associates because the Group's share of losses of the B EAEARNEE RIS FELEZEA g
associates in previous years has exceeded its investment RAEESBEHBERENA - R1E g
costs. The amounts of the unrecognised share of losses of the REMBENRZEEESRE (KFH -
associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: MEFFE)WT : 5
5 ng
2020  Eis
RMB'000 £
ARBFT 7L
Unrecognised share of losses of REREREEHENFZ ) gﬂ
the associates for the year &5 18 (1,185) (1.224) =.2)
£ Y
53 ca@
Accumulated unrecognised share of RFFRIEREGEE AR 2 EA g
losses of the associates B8 (5.116) (3,931) Of

Report of
Directors

EEEWME

Corporate Governance
Report

0
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=5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

19 INVENTORIES

2020
RMB’'000
AR®T T
Raw materials R4 %} 207,034 127,110
Work in progress + 5K m 5,369 5,974
Finished goods X & 120,778 113,061
333,181 246,145
Less: provision W B e (46,260) (55,770)
286,921 190,375
The cost of inventories and consumables were recognised as RE Z2021F 128318 1IEZ2 & E -
expense and included in cost of sales during the year ended FTELREMRAERAEE R it
31 December 2021 amounted to RMB826,971,000 (2020: ANHEK AR/ AR #826,971,0007T
RMB761,694,000) (Note 8). (2020%F : AR¥761,694,0007T) (Kt
F8) °
20 TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 EWRE R
2020
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Trade receivables EE = 347,374 277,939
Less: Loss allowance (Note) B R (5,035) (6,893)
342,339 271,046
Note: Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s Kist: BRAERSREE AEEEENEE
exposure to credit risk can be found in note 3.1(b). B KA - HR2EKEE3.1(D)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring REBRBEST B HRE LR FH H1L
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance FEtEEHEEEE  BHMmAEREKRE
for all trade receivables. The assessment resulted in a decrease of the FOEITIR B TE BB B - 20214128
loss allowance on 31 December 2021 by RMB1,858,000 for trade BTHENEREERBERERDARKE
receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the 1,858,0007T ° BT IE BT E B R
allowance. 3.1(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers
from date of issuance. The following is an ageing analysis
of trade receivables net of provision for impairment loss
presented based on the invoice date:

R T E N EEAC )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

20 EWE R @)

REFRNEREERROIAAEER-

HEEPHNRBEREZRRIR - #F
— A A B B F308 21508 K
HEPXN ZEWMBEZEBAHEIH
FEWE SR (FOBR B E RSB E) Rie
DHMT

2020
RMB’000
AR®T T
Ageing BR R
0 - 90 days 0-90H 260,511 186,187
91 - 180 days 91-180H 34,250 32,776
181 — 365 days 181-365H 33,458 21,756
Over 1 year HBil—F 14,120 30,327
342,339 271,046
21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21 BAREBETTAEBEZZS

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(i) Classification of financial assets at
FVTPL:

The Group classifies the structured deposits at FVTPL:

MEE

(i) RAABEFABREZ
AEEE U T ERET RSB
BRAA BB AR -

2020
RMB’000
ARKETTT

RBEE — #HBIETER

Current assets — Structured
deposits

180,205 256,733

The Group classifies the unlisted equity SCZR as FVTPL,
please refer to Note 3.2 for more details about the fair
value of the equity investment as at 31 December 2021.

EHREREEZRERAT

AEBBRETRESIEAR
AEEAEEEEZHTAES
B BREREMR2021F12A4
BTENAREBEFARNE32 -

—g-——Fg8 2/5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R TEL N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(ii) Risk exposure and fair value
measurements

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk
is provided in Note 3.1. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining fair value
refer to Note 3.2.

21

BEAREBEFAEZZS
& E )

(i) AEMORDAREESR

=

=

B [ 7N & [ [ B 9 B 18 L B2 BY
ER - H2AME31 - BRH®
ERARBENTERBERENR
MES  F2RME32-

22 CONTRACT ASSETS 22 EHNEE

2020
RMB’'000
ARETF T

Embedded software and AR
secure payment products TEXNER 1,986 4,045
Digital equipment H T HEE 12,068 9,467
14,054 13,512

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
receive remaining payments from customers and not billed
because rights are conditioned on the satisfaction of quality
over the products delivered at the reporting date. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The condition is fulfilled upon
the completion of retention period which is normally between
6 months to 1 year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23

24

For the year ended 31 December 2021

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

fr e B R a3k B R (|)

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

3 Hfth FE WM 7R Y =K

PREPAYMENTS
2020
RMB’000
AR T T
Rental and utility deposits HekKEHRE 1,592 2,940
Tender deposits KZRES 9,606 7,267
Deposits paid to suppliers YRGB HERNES 15,752 6,752
Prepayments to supplier ) 4 FE P TE P K 10,415 —
Other prepayments and deposits HMBAHRERES 5,641 4,433
43,006 21,392

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided borrowings with a total of RMB590,000 (2020:
RMB1,951,000) to Goldpac ACS for maintaining its daily
operation.

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the directors of the
Company believe that there is significant increase in credit
risk of the amount due from an associate since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on lifetime ECL. Accordingly, an expected credit loss of
RMB590,000 (2020: RMB111,000) was recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment loss on amount due from an associate.

Details of impairment assessment of amount due from an
associate are set out in Note 3.1(b).

EHREREEZRERAT

24 FEUNEEE N B FRIA

HE2021F 128318 ILFEE - A&
E [ Goldpac ACSHE fit & Z =t A
R #590,0007T (20204 : AR ¥
1,951,00070) LAERF LA F L E -

RERAEER 2 ARREREE -

MR2021412A831H fM20205%12 A31
B ARAIEERAEBVIRERIAR
FE U B & R Rl IE R = B R b R E 1
m- BMAEBEERKRFBEHREESE
FHRBEEE - At - BAEEEE
A R #590,0007T (20204 : AR
111,0007T) 7 18 2 9 7 3R A FE W
EA R FIBRERSE -

JE Y Bt 2 2 ) SRIRRLE R ORI Y
B EE3. 1(0) IR B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

25

278

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

EEARTERRTE
HERNBREREAEEE
¢l

2020

RMB’000

AREEF T

Cash at banks and in hand RTERMBS 252,490 226,481
Short-term bank deposits with an =& A sk AR E Hi Y

original maturity of three months ySR-RERN
or less 64,254 150,097
Cash and cash equivalents e RReEEY 316,744 376,578

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills payables and
carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0.30% to 3.99% (2020:
0.03% to 4.13%) per annum. As at 31 December 2021,
RMB219,210,000 (2020: RMB243,955,000) represents bank
deposits pledged to banks for the Group’s bank facilities.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the
floating rate of 0% to 0.30% (2020: 0% to 0.03%) per
annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group are denominated in
RMB and carry interest at the fixed rate of 0.89% to 4.13%
(2020: 0.30% to 2.90%) per annum. Fixed bank deposits
of RMB102,975,000 will be matured over one year as at 31
December 2021. No fixed bank deposits would be matured
over one year and therefore classified as non-current assets
as at 31 December 2020.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are set out
in Note 3.1(b).
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THE o

AEBHENRITETIZFEF AR
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WS B - $20.89% %4.13% (2020
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5B - MR2021F12A831H - AR
102,975,0007c B E BRER 1T R 2
—F L ERE - 72020128318 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26 ENERRENERE

o Ew
2020 SE
RMB'000
AR®T T \Ef@i
Trade payables R E 321,963 257,995 \
Bills payables — secured BEMENZE 100,543 107,433 3%
Sl
422,506 365428 oo
Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 FENEFEIER  WiBEAEEREGD é ?
to 180 days of recognition. The bills payables are secured by HZE180B AN TS o FER Z i LA soE
pledged bank deposits. EERRITERIER/ER - -
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are HAHBRRE  ENEXREMEE %
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their HWEEEEHRAEEAABEHRSE - a8
short-term nature. é
The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables LT ABEEREREMNETRENEZE s
based on invoice date and bill issuance date respectively at REREMOHEZEER A DENERER D
the end of the year. o = =
2020 IEe
RMB’000 258
AREET T 5
o
Ageing AR e 5 %Lt
0-90 days 0-90H 344,496 309,775 Efrﬂ
91-180 days 91-180H 76,338 47,390 5% §jf
181-365 days 181-365H 904 5849 -
Over 1 year iR —F 768 2,414 “
422,506 365,428 =

o
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R TEL N EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

27 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Embedded software and NG E T
secure payment products 22N E

28,053

2020

RMB'000
ARBTT

50,864

The Group receives 10% to 100% of the contract value
as deposit from customers when they sign the contracts
with customers. Contract liabilities represent the receipts in
advance from customers which is recognised as revenue at
a point in time when the control of the goods is transferred
to the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
revenue recognised in the current year relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year is RMB43,734,000
(2020: RMB37,974,655).

28 OTHER PAYABLES

EHEFRIANE  A£BRNE
FAHNESHENI0%EI100%IEARF
REL - AHNBEBARFENRN B
EMEHERNE —RHERERP
BRI FER U A » B £2021F12 831
Atz FE  BREAFVIEHAEER
B8 U A A R #543,734,0007T (2020

£ ANR#¥37,974,6557T) °

28 HMEAR

2020

RMB’000

AREEF T

Payroll and welfare payables B ITE MAEH 37,145 46,056
Delivery and postage payables EEE N EE 4,833 4,111
Other tax payables H A FE T 7R 18 27,871 34,609
Others =i 17,861 12,164
87,710 96,940
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29

30

For the year ended 31 December 2021

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

R T E N EEAC )

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

29 BUAT B

2020

RMB'000

AR®T T

At 1 January W1A1H 1,858 1,858

Returned to government during FRRME

the year (1,858) —

Received during the year F N T 6,272 8,112
Released to profit or loss during FANFFABER

the year (6,272) (8,112)

At 31 December M®12A31H — 1,858

c
2o
k=
= © X
@ 27
o Sk
6 O
£
UC‘H

2021 Financial

Major Events
2021 KRER

Chairman’s

T REAR
JE S

Statement

Goldpac Limited received government grants from the
relevant local authorities in Mainland China as an incentive in
relation to technical know-how on the development of smart
cards and solutions services. Such government grants were
recognised in the profit or loss as “other income” when the
research completed and the related verification procedures
have been completed and approved by the local authorities in
Mainland China.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting period
date.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial positions:

30

& 3038 75 18 2 7 AT URE] 0 o B 7 B
FIRRE 2 (e 5 559 SR AR 7 R 1
M3 R A BB - 1L 4B T R 7 B B
R MR ERFRRTEGE
P s 38 P 8t 14 46 1 8 [ At Mg
INEUN -2

i SE B

BEERBRRIBEEBEERSHEREE
EEARSHAMCBRMLEL LD
B HEEER

NTEHELEEBBEERGEE P
MERAFRAT :

2020
RMB'000
AREFIT
Net deferred income tax assets BRERMIELETIEE =55
recognised 7,694 9,400
Net deferred income tax liabilities B HERHELER IEE & %5
recognised (27,453) (21,759)
(19,759) (12,359)
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30

282

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movements in the deferred income tax assets and

liabilities are as follows:

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

30 iE 3L BiIE (@)

UTFAREHAAERAENES

Temporary
differences The PRC's
arising from withholding
loss allowance tax on
and inventory  undistributed
provision earnings Total
HERBER
FERBBEEN  ROBEFED
ERMEZRE PEARANHR &at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARBT T
At 1 January 2020 7202041 A1H (8,192) 23,825 15,633
(Credited) to profit or loss ~ FRREZEH (3L 0)
during the year (Note 11) (Bratr1) (1,208) (2,066) (3,274)
At 31 December 2020 72020 12H31H (9,400) 21,759 12,359
Charged to profit or loss FARBEP R
during the year (Note 11) (Ktaz11) 1,706 5,694 7,400
At 31 December 2021 720215F12831H (7,694) 27,453 19,759

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income amounting
to RMB2,715,000 (2020: RMB2,799,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to the unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash generated from operations

fr e B R a3k B R (|)

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

31 ReREER
RETBMERE

Cash flows from operating
activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value changes of
financial assets at FVTPL

Investment income from financial
assets at FVTPL

Interest income

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of investment
property

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on
interest in an associate

Impairment loss on amount due
from an associate

Reversal of provision for
inventories

Interest expense on lease liabilities

RETHELEZHRERE

BR P15 350 A1 it 1

BT BRHE
RAABEFARZZ
TRMEENAEE

RAOABEFARZZ
SREERBKRA

MEKA

NE - BELRBITE

EREEENE
REMEFE

B EERH
EEERE
BENE BER
REER
Y& SR BB E R

NN g
BERRED
iRl NI
BE & B
FEERFRED

HEREMEMAX

2020
RMB’000

ARET T

154,939 169,242
(205) (733)
(5,126) (2,639)
(23,900) (28,260)
30,802 35,168
7,284 9,286
2,056 2,153
2,096 2,290
1,375 =

4 110
(1,858) (2,283)
= (1,500)

590 111
(9,510) (910)
782 549
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

32

284

Cash generated from operations (continued)

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

31 REREER @

RETEMBRES @

2020
RMB’000
ARBT T
Operating profit before working capital 4 i& & 4 & &A1)
changes in: 18 A 159,329 182,584
— Inventories —F& (87,073) (2,949)
— Contract assets —ANEE (542) (800)
— Trade receivables — ERER (69,868) 59,574
— Other receivables and — Hfth e R R IEA K
prepayments (21,730) 24,310
— Contract liabilities — BB E (22,811) 8,396
— Trade and bills payables — ERERREGERE 57,256 (33,918)
— Other payables — H AR (2,806) (5,086)
— Government grants — B A (1,858) —
Cash generated from operations RETEHERS 9,897 232,111
SHARE CAPITAL 32 IR
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZTERHE -}
‘000 HKD'000
T ok v
Issued and fully paid: BEETEAR
At 31 December 2020 2020912 A31H 833,561 1,499,498
Shares bought back on-market f& E1ETH 5 £ B8 I 538
and cancelled (5,556) —
At 31 December 2021 2021412 831H 828,005 1,499,498
RMB’'000
ARET T
Shown in the consolidated financial %|/RIAGES B S HEzx —
statements as of 31 December 7R2020F12H318 &
2020 and 2021 2021912 831H 1,192,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32

33

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

From September to November 2021 the Company purchased
8,870,000 ordinary shares on-market in order to simplify
the Company’s capital structure, and cancelled 5,556,000
ordinary shares in October 2021, the rest of 3,314,000
ordinary shares were cancelled in January 2022. The buy-back
and cancellation were approved by shareholders at last year’s
annual general meeting, and the payment was made out
of the Company’s distributable profits with no reduction of
capital.

The shares were acquired at an average price of HK$1.72 per
share, with prices ranging from HK$1.62 to HK$1.80. The
total amount of HK$15,286,000 (RMB 12,661,000) paid to
acquire the shares has been deducted from retained earnings
within shareholders’ equity.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from
11 December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award
Scheme are to (i) align the interests of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of
any member of the Group whom the directors in its sole
discretion considers may contribute or have contributed to
the Group (the “Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate
the contribution of the Participants and to provide incentives
in retaining the Participants for future operation and
development of the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel
for the long-term growth and further strategic expansion of
the Group.

The Company has engaged the Trustee to administer and
hold the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases the
Company’s shares being awarded from the open market with
funds provided by the Company by way of contributions.

32

33

EHREREEZRERAT

fr e B R a3k B R (|)

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

N )

E2021F9R =211 A IR - R A&
Mg FHE 78,870,0000% & iE A%
AL R R E ARG - WH2021
F10H 44 75,556,000R% © T~
3,314,0000% 2 7202241 A i 8 - &
KREEFHEEHEEREFREAS b
ERBERESEZBB AARADE
FEZA TRE -

BEAD A B B%1.7278 T 1) SF 19 (B 18 %
WEE BN TEMN1.62BLE1.80
BT - BREROINTNBESEAR
15,286,000/ 7T (A K #12,661,000
L) BB EEZANEFRES
bR -

IR BERNZNRS

B 1 R B 5 &8

AR R2015%F11 8308 ([ #
B HWR G5 RE T & ([R5 55 @
sH&l)) - R EBE 8 52015412
ANMBRABESIA15F - 5782 8
MAENVFEERABEIBEHAE
EELEERZET - 2% BEM K
RN BERHER (582
HZE ) 2 F B AL B & — 8 (i)
EEMSEE2EEZER T4
THE - BB E2EE - BAE
ERFECE RBERBD  Kii)k
SIEEASEBAEBERPEERE
—HERARE -

ARAREREXFAABERFTAEAR
Az BEESHEBRMOEZE T
g2HEE IRARGENRFERER
MM EARGREGRN  BAHEAR
DA °

—g-—FgH 285

Financial Corporate

2021

Major Events

2021 F K=+

Chairman’s

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

5]
o
o
)
o«

Corporate Governance

Financial
Statements

«»
9
o
)
T

Statement

Management

Gl
i

o
a

Report

EERRE

41
&
8
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRAN SACT'ONS (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under
the Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares
awarded shall be vested in three years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date, which is 26 November 2017,
in equal portions. The estimated fair value of the shares
award granted at the grant date were approximately
HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the
market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.

As at 31 December 2021, all these shares were either vested
or forfeited; for which a total of 8,146,000 shares of the
Company were held by the Trustee at the year end date.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Trustee did
not acquire any ordinary shares of the Company (2020:
RMB5,501,000 for 3,766,000 ordinary shares), and no shares
were granted to employees under the Share Award Scheme
during the year. The Group did not recognise any expense for
the year ended 31 December 2021 in relation to the shares
award granted by the Company (2020: nil). At 31 December
2021, 8,146,000 ordinary shares of the Company (2020:
8,146,000 shares) are held by the Trustee.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2021

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

33 URGOABERNOZIARS

(%)
B4 B E & (@)

M2017F58 - A& B 110,374,000
&Ikt REE B ARG X TErEI2
HE - REBRHELEERER (A
2017F11H268) £ 03F 58 -
FTHEBHHEMRR ZETENMS
BRGHE  BERONBEFEHNAA
B{E#) /B #27,564,0007T (T & 4 A
R#24,239,0007T) °

R2021%F12A8318 © Fi A EZE R D
ERBREEAM SEAREXREA
NN F18,146,0000% & 3@ A% o

HE2021F12A831BILFE > ¥+
AR UREE AR B T AR (20204
A R #5,501,0007T #23,766,000% &
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

34 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 34 RIERBELE 2B EAE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES S

Corporate
Information
BERER

TERFANAAEERARE LB E

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and THAaGEES  AEESRIERESE %
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities B AMEFHELANARBEELAE =
are those for which cash flows were, or the future cash flows Bt enEaRkPE I BANBE

WOBRBERBSNE S MIARRKER

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows from financing activities.

TRERNAR -

2021

8
o
)
T
=

2021 KREF

Dividend Lease
payable liabilities Total cEuw
EERE HEAE |t Egi s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 5o
ARETT ARETT ARETT B
As at 1 January 2020 720201818 — 17,571 17,571 ozL
Financing cash flow BEEZHRS R (143,421) (9,605) (153,026) éiﬁ
Dividend declared SIRKE 143,421 — 143,421 g
Foreign exchange gain GNEE R I 25 _ _ o 5 ffn
New leases entered MBI HE — 7,995 7,995
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBENE = 549 549 g m
At 31 December 2020 7220204124318 = 16,510 16,510 ‘]
s W
As at 1 January 2021 72021118 — 16,510 16,510
Financing cash flow MEBHEER (111,938) (6,153) (118,091) i
Dividend declared TR E 111,938 — 111,938 . ;%”
New leases entered HEI2HEE — 3,189 3,189 g5 Ec;u'ﬂ
Interest on lease liabilities HERREF S = 782 782 sged
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H — 14,328 14,328 )
5 0l
£l
galf
.
Sgs

EHEABZRERAT —S=-—F58% 5/
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

35

36
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OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to
investment property owned by the Group with lease terms of
nearly 3 years, without an extension option. The lessee does
not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of
the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

35 HEMHE

AEBERHBEA

AEBEREAANKEERE S RA
SEEENREMFHE  HEMEI
3F - EEHEER - ABEAEHE
WakEREEZYE -

HESERKBEESZRMOT :

2020
RMB’000
ARBT T
Within one year —F R 1,172 1,488
In the second year B _4F 1,118 248
In the third year F=F 1,305 —
3,595 1,736

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36 EARAIE

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as
follows:

RERECRFITAWERERREEN
EREARFAXWT

2020
RMB'000
ARBTT

Capital expenditure contracted ERREME BE X
for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements KERE BB IRE A
in respect of acquisition of B

property, plant and equipment

REHEFTHERIIA

32,962 68,083
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37

38

For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

fr e B R a3k B R (|)

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

AEBBEATERIA :

2020
RMB’000
ARETF T
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHER AT EZSRMEE
Trade receivables e E 342,339 271,046
Other receivables H th i Wk 31,272 19,586
Pledged bank deposits EHERITIER 219,210 243,955
Fixed bank deposits RITEHFR 697,605 724,123
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEEY 316,744 376,578
1,607,170 1,635,288
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABREZ
TREE 180,205 256,733
1,787,375 1,892,021
Financial liabilities ctHas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#EHKA AT EZ SR A B
Trade and bill payables ERERNEMNEE 422,506 365,428
Other payables H M JE - 3K 8,867 4,894
Lease liability HEAE 14,328 16,510
445,701 386,832

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated financial statements,
during the period, the Group has no significant transactions
with related parties

The details of compensation of key management personnel
and remuneration of the directors of the Company are set
out in Note 10.

38
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39

290

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held
directly by the Company, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Company.
None of the principal subsidiaries of the Company issued
any debt securities as at the date of this Annual Report. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal

RNEZE2021F12831B1IL2F &

39 & A F

MN2021F 128318 - A2 Gl HEA N
FENMNBATFBHR TR - BRI
REHRE  KMBARNRAERARD
AHEEBEFENILBRER  MARA
BEMAERZERZERE - R
RNEFRBH  ARAFBEZTEHBERD
ABTIMESRES - HEBRRKY
HEMHBRERFARhEEEBEKH

place of business. Bh o
Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share capital Ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity Principal activities  and debt securities by the Company
ERRLHER BRTRAR
HEAR EEERE IEER EREESHE AAARENAERER
Goldpac Investment Limited (Note ) Hong Kong, limited liability  Property holding Ordinary share 100% 100%
company — HKD1
PHERERRAA W) & AREALH mER LERG
—RHIT
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ (Note ii) (Note iii) and ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
(Note i) company investment holding ~ — HKD500,000
SARBBERAA M) &k RREELH (Wei) (Wai)  ERRG
RERLA — 7%500,0007C
Goldpac Innovation Limited (Note ) The British Virgin slands, ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
limited liability company —USD100
EEERRNE TRA LARA
BRELAF — 1007
SecureTech Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary share 60% 60%
limited liability company —USD100
ERARREE AR LERG
ERELAT — 71007
Goldpac Fintech Private Limited Singapore, limited liability ~ (Note i) Ordinary shares 60% 60%
company —5GD100
omg AREGDA (W) FRRH
— MK 1007
Goldpac Fintech Philippines Limited Inc. The Philippines, limited (Note ii) Ordinary shares 60% 60%
liability company — PHP11,000,000
FRE BRARMLE (W) LaRA
— FEZLZ1,000,0007
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39 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

fr e B R a3k B R (|)

39 & A F

REZE2021F 12831812 F &

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share capital Ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity Principal activities  and debt securities by the Company
ERALBYR BRTRAR
WEAH EETRE IEXH ERUESRE AAARRNFERRER
Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  (Note ii) (Note i) Ordinary share 60% 60%
company —HKD1
SRECRNRBEARLT B ARRELT (Hitii) (Witii) Lkt
— BB
Goldpac Limited (Note ) Mainland China, limited (Note ii) (Note iif) and  Registered capital 100% 100%
liability company* investment holding ~ — USD43,000,000
SRERRAA M) hEm BREERE (W) (i) 3AMER
RERAA — 5743,000,0007
Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited Mainland China, limited (Note iii) (Note vii) Registered capital - 100%
liability company® — RMB1,000,000
ENmeAEEHFERAR REMY - BREERE  (Wai) i)  BREA
— AE#1,000,0007
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin) ~ Mainland China, limited (Note iv) Registered capital 100% 100%
liability company® — RMB20,000,000
SRERERE (RZ) BRAT RN AREEAR (M) HfEx
— AR20,000,0007
Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company Mainland China, limited Investment holding ~ Registered capital 100% 100%
(Note i) liability company* —USD10,000,000
KETe RS RNRERARRAN )  PEMM AREALZAY BERAT AR
— £7110,000,0007
UMV International Holding Limited (Note ) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary share 100% 100%
company —HKD1,000
SHERERERERRA (W) Bt AREELT BRAT LaRA
— 11,0007
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) Mainland China, limited (Note v) Registered capital 100% 100%
("UMV Zhuhai") liability company* — RMB10,000,000
SHERBRCRE) BRAD(LNER)  TEAY EREEAF* (W) AR
— AE#10,000,0007
Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) ~ Mainland China, limited (Note vi) Registered capital (Note viii) —
Co., Ltd. ("Zhirong") liability company® — RMB10,000,000
BRERNE RS ARAR(BRER))  +ERM AREEAR  (Hi) AfEx (i &2vii) =
— AR10,000,0007
* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law * BEREEETMANEEE Y

Registered under PRC law
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

39 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:
(i
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Directly held by the Company

Embedded software and secure payment products for smart secure
payment

Provision of data processing, system platforms, other total solutions
and digital equipment for customers in a wide business range including
financial, government, healthcare, transportation and retails by
leveraging innovative Fintech

Provision of logistical auxiliary service

Provision of consultancy services on information technology research
and development

Provision of computer software and hardware, research and
development in network technology and the restricted business (the
“Subject Business”)

Deregistered by the Company in 2021

On 8 February 2021, UMV Zhuhai, entered into a series of Variable
Interest Entity agreements (“Contractual Arrangements” which include
The Exclusive Technological Consultation, and Services Agreement, The
Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement, The Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, The Equity Pledge Agreement, The Spousal Consent
Letter and The Loan Agreement) with Zhirong and Zhirong’s PRC Equity
Owner. Such Contractual Arrangements enable the Group to control
Zhirong. The PRC Equity Owner is a nephew of both Mr. Lu Run Ting
and Mr. Lu Runyi. Mr. Lu Runyi is an executive Director of the Company.
Upon entering into the Contractual Arrangements, the financial results
of Zhirong were consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of UMV Zhuhai and Zhirong became an indirect subsidiary of the
Company.

Zhirong was wholly owned by the PRC Equity Owner and is principally
engaged in the Subject Business. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
and set out below, information service platform for online data
processing and transactions processing services as well as information
service businesses (the “Restricted Business”) of the Subject Business fall
within the scope of “Value-added Telecommunication (“VAT") Services”
and Zhirong has obtained the VAT License under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC to operate the above services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39

40

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(viii)  (Continued)

Pursuant to Contractual Arrangements, Zhirong shall engage UMV
Zhuhai on an exclusive basis to provide technological consultation and
services. Unless prior written consent has been obtained from UMV
Zhuhai or its designated nominee(s), Zhirong shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially adversely affect
the assets, business, personnel, obligations, rights or operation of
Zhirong. UMV Zhuhai shall provide a non-interest bearing loan in the
sum of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC Equity Owner of Zhirong, and the
PRC Equity Owner shall accept such loan in accordance with the loan
agreement.

In November 2021, UMV Zhuhai provided a non-interest bearing loan
of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC Equity Owner of Zhirong, and such loan
was totally used by the PRC Equity Owner to inject into Zhirong as
capital. During the year ended 31 December 2021, UMV Zhuhai did not
provide any technological consultation and services to Zhirong.

Due to the implementation of the share award schemes of
the Group, the Group had also set up a structured entity (the
“Group Employee Share Trust”) in 2015, and its particulars
are as follows:

Structured entity
EEEER

Principal activities

FEEXEK
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Group Employee Share Trust

Administering and holding the Company’s shares before they are vested

and transferred to the Participants

SEEERNER
2EE

As the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Group Employee Share Trust and
can derive benefits from the contributions of the eligible
persons who are awarded with the shares by the schemes,
the directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate
to consolidate the Group Employee Share Trust.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year’s presentation as the directors of the
Company consider that the new presentation is more relevant
and appropriate to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
S B 7 R R MY (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 41 KPR EEEBERREE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BEIR
Balance sheet of the Company KRAI2EERER
2020
RMB’000
AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets mEEE = 2,096
Property, plant and equipment YE - RE N EE 127 202
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIRE 435,696 435,696
435,823 437,994
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGRS 610,154 612,877
Fixed bank deposits RITEHFER 514,361 537,891
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 145,944 158,529
1,270,459 1,309,297
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables Eh JE < 5K 3,291 2,817
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASH BT B A Bl F 386,947 293,709
390,238 296,526
Net current assets REBEEFE 880,221 1,012,711
Net assets EEFE 1,316,044 1,450,765
Capital and reserves EARRFHE
Share capital R& X 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves H 123,682 258,403
Total equity EREmE 1,316,044 1,450,765
The balance sheet of the Company was approved and EEx22N2022F3H15BE X1 B
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March BAAREEBBERNER  WHNA
2022 and are signed on its behalf by: TEEFEREEE -
LU RUN TING HOU PING
EFE BE
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFSTERHTEE HNITEEFREEHNTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B R B (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 R&EZE2021F12A831HIEZ FE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE M KPREEEEBEREGEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) BERm 2ia
Reserve movement of the Company APTZEEEHR = 2
Shares oL
held under AFE
share N g%
award Other Retained §“g§
scheme reserve earnings Total 23

B tn -
2Bt 2 s g
FEARD  HbeHE  RHRER A 5o

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 Chs

ARBTT ARETT AR®TRT ARETR <
At 1 January 2020 720201818 (8,015) 37,681 153,975 183,641 5 2
Profit and total comprehensive & [Z & | &k 2 A B % éi;
income for the year — — 223,684 223,684 %gf’ﬂ

Purchase of shares under share & %5 52 B =t 8135 5 % :

award scheme (Note 33) tn (HfiE33) (5,501) — — (5,501) :
Dividends recognised as DRI E (HiE13) 2 o
distribution (Note 13) — — (143,421) (143,421) 5 el
At 31 December 2020 72020912 831H (13,516) 37,681 234,238 258,403 225;

Environmental,

Social and
Governance Report
ek

Bxe

4o

TR

R

==

o =

« O gy

At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 /18 (13,516) 37,681 234,238 258,403 £ ur

Profit and total comprehensive 4 € & Fl| & & H U A 4258 E é‘“

income for the year — — (10,122) (10,122) £ 2

Purchase of shares (Note 32) I B8 (4/:£32) — — (12,661) (12,661) - h
Dividends recognised as DRI E (HiE13) _

distribution (Note 13) — — (111,938)  (111,938) gy

2Ew

At 31 December 2021 R2021412 4318 (13,516) 37,681 99517 123682 |
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M EME
Year ended 31 December
REBEZNAMBLZEE
2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTT AREFTT ARETR
Results 4
Revenue A 1,400,842 1,411,127 1,415,665 1,281,903 1,376,524
Profits before taxation B 3 A A B 198,764 207,802 206,882 169,242 154,939
Income tax expense Fris i & (34,287)  (33,154) (30,459)  (23,982)  (16,988)
Profit for the year FERNE 164,477 174,648 176,423 145,260 137,951
Attributable to FE1h
— Owners of the Company — AR EEA A 164,477 175,187 177,125 145,665 138,184
— Non-controlling interests — JERR RS — (539) (702) (405) (233)
164,477 174,648 176,423 145,260 137,951
At 31 December
®12H31H
2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT
Assets and liabilities BEENMEE
Total assets BEE 2,706,875 2,628,452 2,635,228 2,577,263 2,609,965
Total liabilities HAEE (776,992)  (648,369)  (630,824)  (579,727)  (601,360)
Net assets EEE 1,929,883 1,980,083 2,004,404 1,997,536 2,008,605
Attributable to JE1h
— Owners of the Company — KATEAA 1,929,883 1,977,549 2,002,572 1,996,109 2,007,411
— Non-controlling interests — RS — 2,534 1,832 1,427 1,194

1,929,883 1,980,083 2,004,404 1,997,536 2,008,605
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